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Corporate Profile
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C.banner International Holdings Limited

T B R A R A A

Vision To be a leading ladies’ fashion footwear branded

group in China

Brand Values Elegance, Charm, Fashionable

CORPORATE PROFILE

C.banner International Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “C.banner”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is the leading retailer of mid-

to-premium women’s formal and casual footwear in the PRC.

The Group distributes self-developed brands and licensed brands products
through department stores and independent retail stores in different
cities, ranging from first-tier to third-tier cities in the PRC, and is also
proactive in developing online business as to further expand its customer
base as well as sales and distribution network. In addition, the Group also
acts as an original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) or original design
manufacturer (“ODM”) manufacturer for international shoes companies

dealing in export markets.

Striving to be a leading ladies’ fashion footwear branded group in
the PRC, the Group upholds a diversified brand strategy and product
portfolio as to diversify its footwear offerings and enter diversified
market segments. The Group is popular for its brand values of elegance,
charm and fashionable in the market, and operates self-developed brands,
including C.banner, EBLAN, sundance, MIO, Badgley Mischka and

natursun, and licensed brands, United Nude.
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SELF-DEVELOPED BRANDS

Co

EBLAN
Com)

~7 1
MIO

BADGLEY
MISCHKA

natursun

is one of the leading brands in the mid-to-
premium formal and casual segment in the
PRC, offers a range of mid-to-premium fashion,

business and business casual footwear.

is comparatively more youthful, colorful and

energetic in its designs.

is the most casual in appearance, in line with its

younger customer profile.

offers a range of trendy and high-quality ladies

footwear for most young female customers.

is a well-known fashion brand, offers fashion
ladies footwear to be worn in important

occasions.

is committed to comfort technology research
for the creation of comfortable and fashionable

footwear targeted at office ladies in China.

LICENSED BRANDS

LI uNITED NUDE ™

Its simple, elegant and creative style is no

substitute.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Yixi (Chairman)

Mr. Huo Li (resigned on 4 February 2021)
Mr. Yuan Zhenhua (President)

Mr. Wan Xianghua

Mr. Wu Weiming

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Miao Bingwen

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson

Mr. Li Xindan

Mr. Zheng Hongliang

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Huo Li (resigned on 4 February 2021)

Mr. Yuan Zhenhua (appointed on 4 February 2021)

Ms. So Lai Shan (resigned on 29 March 2021)

Ms. Wong Sau Ping (appointed on 29 March 2021)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson (Chairman)
Mr. Miao Bingwen

Mr. Li Xindan

Mr. Zheng Hongliang

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Li Xindan (Chairman)

Mr. Miao Bingwen

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson

Mr. Zheng Hongliang
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Corporate Information
NEIER

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Chen Yixi (Chairman)

Mr. Li Xindan

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson

Mr. Zheng Hongliang

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. So Lai Shan (resigned on 29 March 2021)
Ms. Wong Sau Ping (appointed on 29 March 2021)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Victoria Place
5th Floor

31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM10

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Unit 2904, 29th Floor

Far East Finance Center

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
1028

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.cbanner.com.cn

LEGAL ADVISER
David Lo & Partners

Suite 402, 4/F, Nan Fung Tower
88 Connaught Road Central
Central, Hong Kong
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AUDITORS
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

SHARE REGISTRARS

Principal Share Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
Ocorian Management (Bermuda) Limited

Victoria Place

5th Floor

31 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM10

Bermuda

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and Transfer Office
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Agricultural Bank of China, Nanjing Qinhuai sub-branch

Bank of China, Suining sub-branch

China Construction Bank, Suining sub-branch
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Financial Highlights
B 255 1 22

Year ended 31 December

BWEI12H31H IL4EE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFL ARBTIT
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FRE R BT
Revenue Wit 1,539,368 1,935,538
Gross profit EH 860,668 1,159,086
Profit/(loss) before income tax ok BT A5 B i A1 (R 48) 14,813 (90,567)
Income tax expenses AR B (9,208) (114,709)
Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing o B FEAER BTN
operations Al (B8) 5,605 (205,276)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION AR
Loss for the year from discontinued operation TR SERB A N 1R - (102,159)
Profit/(loss) for the year AEWNRA (5 18) 5,605 (307,435)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable A2 W) HE £ R N A AN
to owners of the Company Al O 18)
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations 2 AR 2N
Hi A, (itH) 6,179 (209,493)
Loss from discontinued operation K H B AR 1 IEE - (101,987)
6,179 (311,480)
% %
Gross profit margin from continuing operations oA AR S 2 B 55.9 59.9
Operation profit/(loss) margin from continuing K A FriE 2‘“%%4%9’] gy
operations Al (k8) 2 1.0 .7
Net profit/(loss) margin attributable to owners of the KB R %i’% AR w4
Company from continuing operations el NEIS IR A (kR) 3= 0.4 (10.8)
Earnings/(loss) per share U ()
Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share BB IEA R A (R 1R)
(RMB cents) DN
— From continuing and discontinued operations — A& [ R AR I DAL SETS 0.30 (15.11)
— From continuing operations — & A FHAE RS 3 0.30 (10.16)
Bank balances and cash SRATHS B M4 546,391 401,057
Borrowings ERSN - -
% %
Liquidity ratio (Note 1) BG4 LR (D 340.3 4113
Gearing ratio (Note 1) HaE AR R - -
Days Days
H % H %
Average inventory turnover (Note 2) TR A7 & SR (5 2) 228.5 237.8
Average account receivable turnover (Note 2) T4 FRE SRR TR (o 5 2) 58.2 49.8
Average payable turnover (Note 2) ST F59 B A5 I B (5 2) 83.7 57.1

COB A RSB B A WA
FR=HB R A Y R, AR
SR S G R s A 1L 2T

Note 1: Liquidity ratio = current assets/current liabilities; gearing ratio = total loans and BRFREL |
borrowings/total assets
Note 2:  Continuing operations and discontinued operations are included in the calculation of BFGE2 -

turnover period

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020



Financial Highlights

A B4

T E i R 4 I A PR

128
il
7
MY
'
&y
B
X
<4



10

Chairman’s Statement
FEREEE

‘o M &

-

Chen Yixi P 22 &
Chairman I J&

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020



66

Chairman’s Statement
T

Stay focused on strengthening the core
business and optimizing online and
offline experience in an effort to further
enhance the competitiveness.??

[ 48 A S AN m s O R Rk EAARR LD
mrmebk - PRABEF -

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the
Company, I am pleased to present the Group’s annual report for the year

ended 31 December 2020.

The unprecedented challenges brought by the COVID-19 pandemic along
with the intensifying economic and political conflicts between China
and the United States in addition to other geopolitical issues generated
immense pressure on the global economy in 2020, according to the World
Bank, the global economy contracted 4.3% in 2020, resulting in the
severest recession since the World War II. Nevertheless, China reported
2.3% gross domestic product (“GDP”) growth in 2020, rebounding from
a historic decline in the first quarter of the year, making it the only major
world economy to grow. China’s strong rebound was mainly due to its

success in taming COVID-19 within its borders.

However, the retail industry was the one of the hardest hit industries
during the pandemic-ravaged year. According to the National Bureau
of Statistics of China, total retail sales of social consumer goods are
expected to be RMB39,198.1 billion, for a decrease of 3.9% over the
previous year. Overall sales benefited from the booming online retail
sector. In 2020, China’s online retail sales were RMB11,760.1 billion,
for an increase of 10.9% over the previous year. Online retail sales of
physical goods reached RMB9,759 billion, for an increase of 14.8%,
accounting for 24.9% of the total retail sales of social consumer goods.
Online retail sales are broken down into three categories: food, clothing
and consumer goods which increased by 30.6%, 5.8% and 16.2%,

respectively.
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Chairman’s Statement
R

Though e-commerce and other forms of digital interaction were already
popular in China, the pandemic contributed to its further acceleration as a
result of the new “stay-at-home” economy. With more people choosing to
shop online in an effort to limit physical interaction, traditional retail and
consumer service companies moved to enhance their digitalisation. This
ushered in a new round of rapid development of e-commerce requiring
transformation and upgrades in operation models, methods of promotion
and other aspects to satisfy online shoppers’ preferences and consumption

patterns.

In response to economic challenges and the adverse business environment
in 2020, the Company took specific measures to capitalise on its
business development in an effort to maintain sustainable growth and
reduce market risks. It expanded brand connotation, optimized brand
portfolio, enriched its retail network, enhanced online sales channels, and
centralized its quality business. Additionally, it further pushed forward its
strategy in forging an exceptional online and offline shopping experience
for consumers as well as integrated resources and streamlined operations
across various business units to strengthen its brand presence and boost

sales performance.

Over the years, the Company has built a reputation of providing premium
service. Its ability to deliver exceptional shopping experience through
comprehensive and complementary online and offline retail networks
forms its core strength which enabled the Company to sail through
this challenging market environment. While strengthening its core
competitiveness, the Company will continue to prudently explore new

growth drivers to unleash the biggest potential of its resource advantages.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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In the beginning of 2020, the Company increased its interest in Mega
Brilliant International Limited (“Mega Brilliant”), which allowed it to
centralise and streamline the operation and management of its footwear
retail business. By July 2020, the Company completed the disposal
of Allied Great International Holdings Limited (“Allied Great”) with
the aim of concentrating its production activities in Xuzhou while
saving costs on internal governance, logistics and warehousing. These
adjustments are expected to contribute to the Company’s efficient and
high-quality operations, sustainable development and unleash its potential
and resource advantages. This once again demonstrates the Company’s
perennial commitment and decisiveness in maintaining its leading market

position.

Although few customers cancelled their orders at the factory in Dongguan
City, Guangdong in the first quarter, the Company resumed full operation
as of early March 2020 when it began to receive new orders from existing

and new business partners.

Looking ahead, the possibility of resurgences in local COVID-19
cases, global economic uncertainty and the continued deterioration of
the relationship between China and the U.S. all pose downside risks
to China’s and the world’s 2021 economic growth outlook. The OEM
business may continue to be affected and the Company intends to
gradually close the low-efficiency store and enhance the sales volume of
a single store and leveraging the online sales to boost the overall sales
volume. With the gradual implementation of re-centring strategies over
the years, the operational system will be reformed to adapt to the latest
operational mode and the core business of the Company, especially the
first self-owned brand of the Company, C.banner, will unleash great

potential.

Chairman’s Statement
4

2020 4F W) > AR 2 E)BGOm A 35 K B R
FRA (T35 % 0) M RE £5 > fof HL 45 D)L 4E P lf
W EEEEEFMES REM AL
A A 2020 4F 7 H T o8 A B HE G R AR
AR A (T 5% ]) > #5 0 2F 7 3% B 48 o
TEFR N > [ I 6 & 0 BB R - R B
JRAS o T A B W RO A B AR A R R R
Ko B R FRA R R > WA KB IR e
B RS B TR B R AN A TE R
TE ST b A R AR R R D e

filh B 1 2 5O S — 2 BE IO R4 1) B
RERZH LR NZEMNT R BFEAL
F BH U H M AR B BLA KO S BE 0
FTEL > AR 0 H] R 20204F 3 A A Kk 18

B

J& B R > A Hh T R BLCOVID-199% il
A BR AN W B DA % R O B AR R A E AL
752021 4F B K 4 B0 AR 5% 0 R AT S
WP N AT R B o TR e R Y Rk 2E % 5L
i ¥ B NN (B2 |
B A 35 fiff o 0GB TR 5 S g W)
WE R A% b 85 65 4 = R B B o B E A
N A Z AR R B A B O Y B
AR N A AT R DA e R I o
B T AR A F R R D FEH (R R
i B A R T R ) R B R .

THERBERARAR T REFEERE

13



14

Chairman’s Statement
R

In addition, the Company values talents and is determined to attract
talents to upgrade the knowledge structure of management team,
transforming itself into a modern and fashionable company. The
management structure and personnel of the Company will be further
adjusted to optimize the team structure and enhance operational

efficiency so as to navigate through adverse market conditions.

On behalf of the Board, I would like to extend my sincerest gratitude to
shareholders, business partners, staff and other stakeholders’ tremendous
support, and to my fellow Board members for leading the Company
through this challenging year. We will stay resilient by exploring and
pursuing new opportunities for additional business development as we

strive to maximize shareholder value.

CHEN Yixi

Chairman

PRC, 29 March 2021

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31

December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 42 to the

consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
is set out in the “Financial Highlights”, “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on page 8, pages 10 to 14 and

pages 35 to 52 respectively of this annual report.

A description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
can be found in the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 10 to 14 and note 5
to the financial statements on pages 126 to 134 of this annual report. An
analysis using financial key performance indicators can be found in the
Financial Highlights on page 8 and Management Discussion and Analysis

on pages 35 to 52 of this annual report.

The Group is committed to enhancing governance, promoting employee
benefits and development, protecting the environment and giving
back to society in order to fulfill social responsibility and achieve
sustainable growth. Discussions on the Group’s environmental policies
and performance, compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
which have a significant impact on the Group and relationships with key

stakeholders are provided below.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group recognises the importance of good environmental stewardship
and endeavours to increase its utilization rate of energy, water and
materials. In the meantime, the Group minimises the use of natural
resources and optimises its production process while enhancing efficiency
and reducing the use of energy and chemicals of every unit of products.
It also adopts various environmental measures and promotes waste

reduction as well as recycling and reuse.
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Report of the Directors
R

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Group is mainly engaged in mid-to-premium ladies footwear brands
and retail of toys in the PRC. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations concerning
labour rights, environmental protection, product safety and health,
information privacy and regulatory requirements that have significant

impacts on the Company.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

Employees

The Group considers its employees as important and valuable assets, and
is committed to providing a pleasant working environment and promoting
work-life balance. It also offers competitive remuneration packages and
provides a harmonious working environment to its staff members so
as to maintain a high retention rate. In addition, the Group organises a
comprehensive training programme to enhance employees’ capability and

efficiency in daily operation.

Customers

The Group considers customers as a major stakeholder and is committed
to providing comprehensive and high quality customer services.
The Group has established good relationship with many renowned
international brands so as to provide customers with the best services and

high-quality and safe products.

Suppliers

The Group prudently selects its suppliers and builds long-term business
relationship with numbers of suppliers. Such suppliers have to meet
certain assessment criteria of the Group and comply with anti-bribery

policies launched by the Group.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income on page 84 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board did not recommend a final dividend for the year ended 31

December 2020 (2019: Nil).

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS
The register of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday,
23 June 2021 to Monday, 28 June 2021, both days inclusive, in order
to determine the identity of the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) who are entitled to attend the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Monday, 28 June 2021.
All transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer
forms must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712- 1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 22 June 2021.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 29.9% (2019: 22.5%) of the Group’s total purchases and
the Group’s largest supplier accounted for 11.5% (2019: 6.2%) of the

Group’s total purchases.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s sale to its five largest
customers accounted for 13.5% (2019: 10.5%) of the Group’s total sale
and the Group’s largest customer accounted for 3.6% (2019: 3.3%) of the

Group’s total sale.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the Group’s five

largest customers and suppliers during the year ended 31 December 2020.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 16 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS
Details of movements in the share capital and share options of the
Company during the year are set out in note 34 and note 37 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set

out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had no reserves available for

distribution (as at 31 December 2019: RMB139.7 million).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Yixi (Chairman)

Mr. Huo Li (resigned on 4 February 2021)
Mr. Yuan Zhenhua (President)

Mr. Wan Xianghua

Mr. Wu Weiming

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Miao Bingwen

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson

Mr. Li Xindan

Mr. Zheng Hongliang

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Mr. Chen
Yixi, Mr. Miao Bingwen and Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson will retire by
rotation in accordance with Bye-law 99 of the bye-laws of the Company
(the “Bye-laws”). All retiring Directors, being eligible, had offered
themselves for re-election as Directors at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Group

are set out on pages 72 to 75 of this annual report.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) from each of the independent
non-executive Directors and the Company considers such Directors to be

independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year

without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party

subsisting during or at the end of the year ended 31 December 2020.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into

or existed during the year ended 31 December 2020.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance of the Directors and senior management

and comparable market practices.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme and a share award
scheme as incentive to eligible employees, details of the schemes are set
out in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme” and “Share Award

Scheme” below.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid

individuals are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, every Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution
of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto. There is
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the

Directors and officers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) (i) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or (ii) which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into the
register maintained by the Company, or (iii) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers

(the “Model Code”) were as follows:
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Approximate

Total number of percentage

shares/underlying of interest in

Name of Director Nature of interest shares held the Company

i A 4

i %5 1 4/ HE 15 0 40

HHEMA HE 23 1 B B AR A 4 T\

Mr. Chen Yixi (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 762,074,000 36.69%
i 25 BB 5 A (B EE 1) 2 FE I R g5 (long position)
(A

Mr. Miao Bingwen (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 80,000,000 3.85%
B 3 A (I 2) 2 HE 3 R g5 (long position)
(A

Beneficial owner 20,000,000 0.96%
T A A (long position)
(F8)

Mr. Huo Li (Note 3) Beneficial owner 979,000 0.05%
B A (M 5E3) Hia A (long position)
(F8)

Mr. Wan Xianghua Beneficial owner 529,000 0.03%
B B A A (long position)
(F8)

Mr. Wu Weiming Beneficial owner 50,000 Less than 0.01%

G HE W] e HaEa A (long position) DI 0.01%

(JF A

1 B [ PR 2 A PR

|
<
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i

Notes:

1. Mr. Chen Yixi is the beneficial owner of all the issued share capital of Hongguo
International Group Limited (“Hongguo”) and Orchid Valley Holdings Limited,
which in aggregate held 762,074,000 shares of the Company in long position,
among which 348,940,000 shares have been charged in favour of Cheer Hope
Holdings Limited.

2. Mr. Miao Bingwen is the beneficial owner of all the issued share capital of Sure
Manage Investments Limited (“Sure Manage”) which holds 80,000,000 shares of
the Company in long position.

3 Mr. Huo Li resigned as an executive Director on 4 February 2021.

Save as disclosed above, and as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which would be required to be notified to the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or otherwise notified to
the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, no time during the year
ended 31 December 2020 were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Director or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or
were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company and any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors, or
their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, to acquire such

rights in any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ =& % B 30 i 4y B2 #H BA i 10
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN w2 fisE Rk

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, to the best knowledge of the Directors, 202041231 H - #§# F Pr &% A > LA F
the following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the A (G e aliA 2 | F 247 BN 8BRS
Company) had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying B Hy SRR B R M b B A R AR A R M
shares which fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions B ) 55 XV R B 2 T 343 BB ZH T N g AR
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register 2% AL RE g BOR R B IR G R &
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO: 156 151 565 336 16 78 5L % i w% 16 SC BT 4R AR 4 H)

R0 MR AY B A BRI

Approximate

Total number of percentage

shares/underlying of interest in

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest shares held the Company

i 5 1B 1/ ot A 4 ] B gk

[y TS HE 5 1% B AT DBt O 4 W#w

Hongguo (Note 1) (Fff 5% 1) Beneficial owner 658,650,000 31.71%
Haa A (long position)
(5 )

Central Huijin Investment Ltd (Note 2) Person having a security interest in shares 380,000,000 18.30%
R B 4 4% A R ST A A (K RE2) S 0 1 A PR R RE 22 A (long position)
(5 )

China Construction Bank Corporation (Note 2) Person having a security interest in shares 380,000,000 18.30%
B R ARAT M A BR A R (M aE2) S 0 1 A PR R RE 22 A (long position)
(5 )

Cheer Hope Holdings Limited (Note 2) (Iff 52) Person having a security interest in shares 380,000,000 18.30%
BB 7 A PR R RE 5 A (long position)
(k)

China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd. (Note 3) Interest in a controlled corporation 493,750,000 23.77%
H I T R N O AR A A (B 3) 3 P Ik R £ (long position)
(5 )

123,750,000 5.96%

(short position)

(RA)

THEMBERARAT % R RS
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S
Approximate
Total number of percentage
shares/underlying of interest in
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest shares held the Company
i 5 &t/ 5 A 2 vl B 46
TR BB R HE 25 B I B 4y 28 W&
Huarong Huaqiao Asset Management Co., Ltd (Note 3) Interest in a controlled corporation 493,750,000 23.77%
T 3 A5 R A R R (B EE3) VR A (long position)
(4 £
123,750,000 5.96%
(short position)
(kA
Timely Assets Global Limited (Note 3) (ff 5% 3) Person having a security interest in shares 370,000,000 17.81%
B 7 A OR R RE 5 A (long position)
(#5)
Beneficial owner 123,750,000 5.96%
iR XN (long position)
(4 A1)
123,750,000 5.96%
(short position)
(A
Arch Capital Group Ltd (Note 4) (}ff 5:4) Interest in a controlled corporation 127,387,086 6.13%
328 i R 4 (long position)
(#5)
ADM Galleus Fund II Limited (Notes 4 and 5) Interest in a controlled corporation 127,387,086 6.13%
(B 54 K 5) 328 i (R (long position)
(5
ADM Investment Management Limited (Note 6) Interest in a controlled corporation 127,387,086 6.13%
(bt 5E6) 3 P Ik R £ (long position)
()
UTAH Retirement Systems (Note 5) ([ff 5 5) Interest in a controlled corporation 127,387,086 6.13%
328 i R (long position)
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R
Approximate
Total number of percentage
shares/underlying of interest in
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest shares held the Company
i 5 &t/ Al Ak 2 W B 4
TR BB R HE 43 1 B HH B M8t A 4 W&\
Utah State Retirement Investment Fund (Note 5) Interest in a controlled corporation 127,387,086 6.13%
(Jff 3%5) VR A (long position)
(4 £
Eight Dragons Investments Limited (Notes 4 and 5) ~ Person having a security interest in shares 127,387,086 6.13%
(Bt 3% 4 % 5) B A RSN A (long position)
(4 A1)
OCI International Holdings Limited (Note 7) Person having a security interest in shares 131,000,000 6.31%
TR R M A PR R (B EET) RO R A RERER N A (long position)
(4 A1)
Notes: Bt 5
1. Hongguo had charged 348,940,000 shares in favour of Cheer Hope Holdings 1. Hongguo PA Cheer Hope Holdings Limited % % 4
Limited. N & 1171348,940,000 B B £ <
2. Cheer Hope Holdings Limited had a security interest in 380,000,000 shares of 2. Cheer Hope Holdings Limited & 4& 24
the Company. Central Huijin Investment Ltd. held 57.11% shareholding in China 380,000,000 A % 173 v 4 7 Of 7% HE £ o v S B
Construction Bank Corporation. China Construction Bank Corporation held 100% GG REARA AR b B RAT R
shareholding in CCB International Group Holdings Limited, which in turn held B A B A A ST.01% 1 Ik B - b B g R 1T
100% shareholding in CCB Financial Holdings Limited. CCB Financial Holdings AR A BR 2 B B A R AT BB A I PR A R
Limited held 100% shareholding in CCB International (Holdings) Limited, which oy m) A R OORE > AT R BR R IRA R
in turn held 100% shareholding in CCBI Investments Limited. CCBI Investments O AR AT A PR IR BR A A A R -
Limited held 100% shareholding in Cheer Hope Holdings Limited. Therefore, AT 4 R PE I PR A E R A AR R (R
the above entities were deemed to be interested in 380,000,000 shares of the FORR S ED A R R RE > oA AR R (R A
Company, in which Cheer Hope Holdings Limited was interested. [ 2% ] #F 47 CCBI Investments Limited % & Ji&

HE o CCBI Investments Limited - 75 Cheer Hope
Holdings Limited () 4 ¥ % #E o K4t > | alk &
f# B #L /E * Cheer Hope Holdings Limited # 47
4 119 7% 2 7)380,000,000 % 173 o e 47 HE 2k <
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According to China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd.’s Notice of Disclosure
of Corporate Major Shareholders’ Interests filed on 5 March 2020, Timely Assets
Global Limited has a security interest in 493,750,000 shares of the Company and
is the beneficial owner of 123,750,000 shares of the Company in short position.
China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd holds 100% shareholding in Huarong
Zhiyuan Investment & Management Co., Ltd. Huarong Zhiyuan Investment
& Management Co., Ltd. holds 91% shareholding in Huarong Huaqiao Asset
Management Co., Ltd., which in turn holds 100% shareholding in China Huarong
Overseas Investment Holdings Co., Limited. China Huarong Overseas Investment
Holdings Co., Limited holds 100% shareholding in Pure Virtue Enterprises
Limited, which in turn holds 100% shareholding in Timely Assets Global
Limited. Therefore, the above entities are deemed to be interested in 493,750,000
shares of the Company in long position and 123,750,000 shares of the Company
in short position, in which Timely Assets Global Limited is interested.

Eight Dragons Investments Limited had a security interest in 127,387,086
shares of the Company. Arch Capital Group Ltd held 100% shareholding in
Arch Reinsurance Ltd. Arch Reinsurance Ltd held 43.70% shareholding in
ADM Galleus Fund II Limited, which in turn held 74.95% shareholding in Eight
Dragons Investments Limited. Therefore, the above entities were deemed to
be interested in 127,387,086 shares of the Company, in which Eight Dragons
Investments Limited was interested.

Eight Dragons Investments Limited had a security interest in 127,387,086 shares
of the Company. UTAH Retirement Systems held 100% shareholding in Utah
State Retirement Investment Fund. Utah State Retirement Investment Fund
held 54.90% shareholding in ADM Galleus Fund II Limited, which in turn held
74.95% shareholding in Eight Dragons Investments Limited. Therefore, the above
entities were deemed to be interested in 127,387,086 shares of the Company, in

which Eight Dragons Investments Limited was interested.

Eight Dragons Investments Limited had a security interest in 127,387,086
shares of the Company. According to the notice of disclosure of interests dated
18 January 2018 submitted by ADM Investment Management Limited, it held
100% shareholding in ADM Galleus Fund II Limited, which in turn held 74.95%
shareholding in Eight Dragons Investments Limited. Therefore, the above entities
were deemed to be interested in 127,387,086 shares of the Company, in which
Eight Dragons Investments Limited was interested.

OCI International Holdings Limited held 100% of OCI Capital (BVI) Limited,
which in turn held 100% of OCI Capital Limited. OCI Capital Limited had
a security interest in 131,000,000 shares of the Company. Therefore, OCI
International Holdings Limited was deemed to be interested in the 131,000,000
shares of the Company, in which OCI Capital Limited was interested.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Directors were
not aware of any persons (who were not Directors or chief executive
of the Company) who had an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be required,
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred

to therein.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Review Period”), neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any

of the Company’s listed securities during the Review Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or
the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a

pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Review Period, the Group conducted the following continuing

connected transactions:

On 10 October 2019, Meihong Footwear Company Limited (“Meihong
Footwear”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into the
2019 Framework Procurement Agreement with Jiangsu Meisen Footwear
Company Limited (“Jiangsu Meisen”), pursuant to which Meihong
Footwear agreed to procure from Jiangsu Meisen, and Jiangsu Meisen
agreed to manufacture and sell to Meihong Footwear, certain branded
fashion footwear products from time to time during the period from 21

August 2019 to 31 December 2020.

Mr. Wan Xianghua has a 33% shareholding in Jiangsu Meisen, a
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Wan was appointed
as an executive Director with effect from 29 November 2019, upon which
Jiangsu Meisen became a connected subsidiary of the Company, and

hence a connected person of the Company.

Report of the Directors
o i il

B L SCH FE A 0 R 20204F 12 A31H >
M A ERAT ] A £ (N JF 38 2 s AR A A
FEATHA B) AL [ RO 5 H B R Oy
Mo A AR DR SR KT B R A XV A
2 ]34y FHBJH T K B 0 RE 3 Bk A BAR
P8 55 5 K W) & 0 00 5 336 1 2B R0 B R R 1K
SCHT AR A LS R R R R AR SR -

L= O - O

2020912 H31 B 1k 4 B (1 [8] BE
1) > A 2 &) B AT ] B g 2 A S0 J
B B AR A B AT TR e

1 o HE

CHESE T ACINGES R a b
HE W) o L O AL OB SR 4 A
) T 45 3L A7 SR M ) 58 5 565 AR £ o

FEHERS
e 0 B I 5 A g WO AT T DL F A
5

2019410 H10H » £ BB £ A R A A
(TEWmEED KA 22 EHEA ) #
LR E R EARARTILHEERD T
372019 4F HE B2 £F i 1 ok - 98 0L - R 2019 4F
8 H 21 H F 20204 12 431 H HA [ » 3 i &
3£ [ 2 S TR [ YRR 55 AR PR M TV AR 9% AR
] 7 K IRF 40 NI 1) 3% i Rk L B A TR
JL IR 1 E e

WA ARAANTZ R EHEA
F VT AR 95 AR 33% I HE o B Y5 4 H 20194 11
H20R BHERAL HAATESF - WHEILEK
Bl NN O G RN I Sl ]
p NN RIGN R N

THERBERARAR  —F REEERSE

27



28

Report of the Directors

For the period from 29 November 2019 to 31 December 2019, the
2019 Footwear Procurement Transactions were fully exempt from the
reporting, announcement, annual review, circular (including independent
financial advice) and Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The annual cap for the transaction amount for

the year ended 31 December 2020 was RMB11,000,000.

On 9 December 2020, Xuzhou C.banner Shoes Co., Ltd. (“Xuzhou
C.banner”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into the
2021 framework procurement agreement with Jiangsu Meisen, pursuant
to which Xuzhou C.banner agreed to procure from Jiangsu Meisen, and
Jiangsu Meisen agreed to manufacture and sell to Xuzhou C.banner,
certain branded fashion footwear products from time to time during the
period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021. The terms of the 2021
Framework Procurement Agreement are substantially the same as those
of the 2019 Framework Procurement Agreement entered into by the
Group on 10 October 2019. The annual cap for the transaction amount for

the year ending 31 December 2021 is RMB16,000,000.

For details of the above continuing connected transactions, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 5 August 2020 and 9 December
2020.

During the Review Period, the independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
such transactions were entered into:

(i)  in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(ii)  on normal commercial terms; and

(iii) in accordance with the agreements for such transactions, the

terms of which are fair and reasonable, and in the interest of the

Shareholders as a whole.
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The auditor of the Company has performed certain agreed-upon audit
procedures for the above continuing connected transactions entered
into by the Group during the Review Period, and concluded that such

transactions:

(1)  have been approved by the Board;

(2)  have followed the pricing policies of the Group in all material
aspects, if they involve the goods or services provided by the

Group;

(3)  were conducted in accordance with the relevant agreements for

such transactions in all material aspects; and

(4) have an aggregate amount not exceeding the relevant cap disclosed

in the respective announcements of the Company.

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Directors (including our independent non-executive
Directors) believe that the related party transactions set out in the note
41 to the consolidated financial statements are carried out in the ordinary

course of business and on normal commercial terms.

During the Review Period, save for the lease agreement between the
Group and Hongguo Industry Group Corporation which is an associate of
certain Directors, no other transaction listed in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements constituted connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
transaction under the above lease agreement is exempt from the relevant
reporting, annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’

approval requirements under the Listing Rules.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Each of Mr. Chen Yixi and Hongguo (the “Substantial Shareholders”) has
executed a deed of non-competition through which they have irrevocably
and unconditionally warranted and undertaken to the Company not to,
directly or indirectly engage, participate or hold any right or interest
in or render any services to or otherwise be involved in any business
in competition with or likely to be in competition with the business
of design, manufacture and sale of footwear and other businesses
as conducted by the Group; or take any action which constitutes an
interference with or a disruption to the business activities of the Group
including, but not limited to, solicitation of customers, suppliers or

personnel of the Group.

The Substantial Shareholders have confirmed to the Company of their
compliance with the deed of non-competition during the year under

review for disclosure in this annual report.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the status of
compliance and confirmed the Substantial Shareholders’ compliance of

the deed of non-competition.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 26 August 2011 which has become effective upon the
Company’s listing on 23 September 2011. Subject to early termination
by the Company in general meeting or by the Board, the Share Option
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing

on 26 August 2011.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain or
otherwise maintain on-going business relationship with the eligible
persons whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term
growth of the Group; and to motivate the eligible persons to optimize

their performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion,
offer to grant an option to any employees, executives, officers, directors
(including executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, any advisers,
consultants, suppliers, customers and agents and related entities who, in
the sole opinion of the Board, will contribute or have contributed to the

Group.
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The subscription price shall be a price determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the shares on the date of the grant; (ii) the average closing price
of the shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of

the grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares.

The acceptance of an offer of the grant of the respective share options
must be made within 30 days from the date of grant with a non-refundable
payment of HK$1.00 from each grantee. An option may be exercised at
any time during a period to be determined by the Board, which shall not
in any event exceed ten years from the date of grant. The Share Option
Scheme does not specify any minimum holding period but the Board has
the authority to determine the minimum period for which a share option
in respect of some or all of the shares forming the subject of the share

options must be held before it can be exercised.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme must not exceed 30% of the total issued share capital of
the Company from time to time. The total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares
in issue as at the date of commencement of the listing of the shares on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The Company may seek approval of the
Shareholders in general meeting for refreshing the 10% limit under the
Share Option Scheme save that the total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme under the limit as refreshed shall not exceed 10% of the total

number of shares in issue as at the date of approval of the limit.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
total number of shares in issue as at the date of grant. Where any further
grant of options to a participant would result in the total number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all the options granted and to be
granted to such person (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in the 12-month period up to and including the date of such
further grant representing in aggregate over 1% of the total number of
shares in issue, such further grant must be separately approved by the
Shareholders in general meeting with such participant and his associates

abstaining from voting.
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Since the effective date of the Share Option Scheme, no share options
had been granted, exercised or cancelled by the Company under the
Share Option Scheme and there was no outstanding share option under
the Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2020. As at the date of this
annual report, the number of securities of the Company available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme was 200,000,000, representing
approximately 9.63% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the

date of this report.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME
On 31 August 2015, the Company adopted a share award scheme

(the “Share Award Scheme”) to recognize the contribution of certain
employees of the Group and to provide them with incentives in order to
retain them for the continual operation and development of the Group
and to attract suitable personnel for further development of the Group. A

summary of the Share Award Scheme is as follows:

(a)  Duration: Subject to any early termination as may be determined
by the Board pursuant to the rules to the Share Award Scheme, the
Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of ten

(10) years commencing on 31 August 2015;

(b) Maximum aggregate nominal value of shares to be awarded to a
selected employee: Shall not exceed one (1) percent of the issued

share capital of the Company from time to time; and

(c)  Limit: The Board shall not make any further award of shares which
will result in the nominal value of the shares awarded by the Board
under the Share Award Scheme exceeding ten (10) percent of the

issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

Details of the Share Award Scheme are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 31 August 2015 and 19 October 2015. During the
year ended 31 December 2020, 13,588,000 awarded shares have been
granted by the Company (2019: Nil).
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing shares, or that require the Company
to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares, were entered into by the Company during or at the end of

the Review Period.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee had reviewed together with the management and
external auditor the accounting principles and policies adopted by the

Group and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in Appendix 10 — Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) under the Listing
Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they had complied with such code of

conduct during the Review Period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report

on pages 53 to 71 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public at all times during the Review

Period.
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AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned as the auditor of the Company with
effect from 11 July 2018. Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited was
appointed as the auditor of the Company with effect from 25 July 2018 to

fill the casual vacancy.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited resigned as the auditor of the
Company with effect from 7 November 2019. ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA
Limited has been appointed as the auditor of the Company with effect

from 8 November 2019 to fill the casual vacancy.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited shall retire in the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of ZHONGHUI
ANDA CPA Limited as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Chen Yixi

Chairman

PRC, 29 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The COVID-19 pandemic spread around the world with alarming speed
since first emerging at end of 2019, infecting millions and bringing
economic activity to a near-standstill. Countries immediately responded
by imposing tight social restrictions in an effort to halt the spread of the
virus. As the health and human toll grows, the economic damage was
already evident and represented the largest economic shock the world
has experienced in decades. According to the World Bank, the global
economy contracted 4.3%, resulting in the deepest global recession in
decades. In response to the economic uncertainly, few customers of the
Company cancelled orders at the Group’s factory in Dongguan City,
Guangdong during the first quarter. However, as of early March 2020
operations fully resumed as the Group began receiving new orders from

the existing and new business partners.
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Despite the unprecedented challenges, the Chinese government’s quick
actions were able to get the pandemic under control. Additionally,
it implemented effective fiscal and monetary policy to stimulate
the economy and social development in an effort to restore growth.
In January 2021, China reported 2.3% GDP growth for 2020, a
stronger-than-expected number that reflected a V-shaped recovery from
a pandemic-induced economic slump that is still devastating most of the
world’s economies. The IMF’s latest World Economic Outlook stated that
China is the only G20 economy to post GDP growth for the year. China
was the first country to go under a lockdown in 2020 and its recovery is
underpinned by gains in industrial production, investment and exports,

specifically during the final months of the year.

Retail sales, despite severely contracting in the beginning of 2020,
rebounded to a 4.6% increase year on year in December. For the full
year 2020, retail sales declined 3.9%, with sales in catering services
dipping almost 17%. In contrast, online retail sales grew 10.9% due to the
COVID-19 restrictions requiring limited social interaction. Online retail
sales of physical goods reached RMB9,759 billion, an increase of 14.8%,
accounting for 24.9% of the total retail sales of social consumer goods.
Online retail sales for the physical goods three categories: food, clothing

and consumer goods, increased by 30.6%, 5.8% and 16.2% respectively.

In response to the challenges and the adverse business environment,
the Group further pushed forward its strategy in forging an exceptional
online and offline shopping experience for consumers. It integrated its
resources and operation across various business units, reallocated more
resources and manpower to optimize its online platform and expanded its
online channels to adapt to online shoppers’ new habits and preferences
arising from the pandemic. This strategic adjustment proved efficient as
the impact brought by the temporary closure of its physical stores was

mitigated.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Exploring Innovative Branding Strategy to Enhance Competitive
Edge

Over the years, the Company established a robust reputation for
providing quality products that are elegant, charming and fashionable.
After launching the first self-developed “C.banner” brand, the Company
gradually launched brands like “EBLAN”, “Sundance”, “MIO”,
“BADGLEY MISCHKA” and “Natursun”. By implementing its
multi-brand strategy with C.banner as a core, the Company was able to
unleash the synergy among all its brands. C.banner has established strong
brand value and broad recognition for its premium quality in business and
business casual footwear with a loyal customer base. In order to further
strengthen the brand’s influence and better inform customers about
C.banner, we have taken steps to enhance our brand building efforts. The
Company’s media department contracted with high profile celebrities
to enhance its media opportunities and brand positioning. We increased
our products’ exposure through product placements with celebrities and
movie scenes to showcase the latest C.banner’s design concept to our
customers. Our brand operation department is responsible for the whole
process supervision and selection planning. We also promoted our online
segment on social media platforms in combination with brand promotion

activities and live recommendations.

The Company boasts a sophisticated and fashionable brand image as a
leading branded group of mid-to-premium women’s footwear in China.
Leveraging on its reputation to strengthen customer relationships and
market position, the Company stays competitive among consumers

interested in fashion and elegance.

LR SO

B & AW G M BE DL B OR N B S

Z AR AN R TE R 3 3R )
5 0 A 4 B 7 TR L R BE B R e R
M MAE ERRITEE] 2K AR
BB T TR S TREL
NI I Nyt SRS s B A T A
HOME LT | R R L 2 R A
23 T AT DT A B T Gt [ A o
THEBHEERME EHALAEF
SRS R R R RS AL N
9 fin R M - S MG R BB AT o Jy i — A
BRammyBE O mERE S TOE
W9 7R - FAM T3 TR R T AR .
EEANSE i I SIS B - I |
T B A MR O B e fR T A R E (L e 3K
12 8 45 N S 76 R 3 SOEAT A
] & RN T A R BB ek Rt B S
39 R B O A o TR A b
AR A R R K SR E o AN IR
TE 4L 22 1 B °F & b o G R AR R T ) B
JEIE N il w1

o o B0 45 S 09 o B R
A G A S R B R RE & o A
28 B BT 0 R %5 B AR K
55 o 3 SR O T 0 O 2 o AR
B ) -

THERBERARAR T REFEERE

37



38

Management Discussion and Analysis
T i S o A

Re-centering Business to Strengthen Leading Position in Footwear

The Company has established a market leadership position in China’s
women’s footwear industry. This segment has always been the

Company’s core business and most valuable asset that fuels our success.

Following the Group’s disposal of Hamleys Global Holdings Limited and
its subsidiaries in July 2019, the Group’s toys retail business is solely
operated through its three Hamleys store franchises in the PRC. As a
result of the COVID-19 outbreak which deterred parents from bringing
their children to shopping malls, revenue from these three Hamleys stores
in 2020 saw a year-on-year decrease of 51.6%. The Group also acts as an
OEM or ODM manufacturer for international shoes companies in export
markets. Due to the COVID-19 outbreak which caused a widespread
suspension of business operations first in the PRC and then in the USA
and globally, revenue from the Group’s footwear contract manufacturing

business decrease of 46.9% year-on-year in 2020.

During the year under review, the Group recorded a net reduction of
169 proprietary shoes retail outlets and 48 third-party shoe retail outlets,
respectively. As at 31 December 2020, the Group operated a network of
1,045 proprietary retail outlets and 197 third-party retail outlets across
China, maintaining a strong presence in 31 provinces, municipalities
and autonomous regions across the country. In response to changing
consumer patterns and habits rising from life adjusting to COVID-19,
the Group further optimised its retail networks comprising both online
and offline stores. The Company strategically cooperated with retailers
such as department stores, shopping malls and outlets of varying scale
to increase its market presence and coverage as well as enhance offline

store’s same-store sales growth whilst actively promoting online sales.
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The following table shows the Group’s geographic distribution of shoes

LR SO

RN A G TR A

outlets:
Badgley Licensed
C.banner EBLAN MIO Natursun ~ Mischka  Sundance Brands
[k
THE ¥ KR W OREE KRR RHERR
Proprietary ~ Third-party  Proprietary ~Third-party ~ Proprietary ~Third-party ~ Proprietary ~Proprietary ~ Propriefary —Proprietary
outlets outlets outlets outlets outlets outlets outlets outlets outlets outlets Total
e B2 HE 8= HE B0 H# R A& A#

Distribution Regions & % 3 FEE O OREE O OFEE O OFEE OFEE O FEE REN FEE ZEE Z&H #it
Northeast Rl 7 18 ) - 16 10 - - - ! 166
Northern China e} 106 7 % - 14 0 14 - ! - s
Eastern China ElNE 178 2 5 I % I % 3 - ! 3%
Shanghai L E 88 - 13 - § - 16 1 - | 128
Southern China EHHE 9 10 9 - 13 - 3 - - 1 136
Western China 4 3 3 s 108 13 3 3 1l 14 2 ! - - 182
Totl At 8 146 189 4 115 a7 7l 6 I 5 14
Notes: Fff 5E -
(1) Northeast region includes Jilin province, Liaoning province, Heilongjiang 1) WA EEESAE BEY BHEILE

province and Hulunbuir City in Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region; KNS E EIGE NG B
(2) North China includes Beijing, Tianjin, Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region ) AL [ AL T K R

(except Hulunbuir), Hebei Province, Shanxi Province, Henan Province and GEm O EBH AN ~mdtd - s -

Shandong Province; WMEERILES
(3) Eastern China includes Jiangsu Province, Anhui Province and Hubei Province; 3) R AT ITHS  TUE RIS
4) Shanghai area includes Shanghai City and Zhejiang Province; ) A E T RIS
5 Southern China includes Hunan Province, Jiangxi Province, Fujian Province, (5) H S E TS R

Guangdong Province, Hainan Province and Guangxi Autonomous Region; and ERE - BEELEREGE: &
(6) Western China includes Shaanxi Province, Qinghai Province, Gansu Province, (6) TS m A ST S SilE - Bl s

Xinjiang Autonomous Region and Ningxia Autonomous Region, Sichuan
Province, Guizhou Province, Yunnan Province, Chongqing City and Tibet
Autonomous Region.
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Leveraging the Power of E-Commerce Business

Due to pandemic prevention and controls restricting social activities, a
new “stay-at-home” economy emerged during the year. Both food and
daily commodities categories showed a significant growth, while the
“footwear” category recorded a slight growth. Revenue from the Group’s
footwear retail and wholesale business in 2020 recorded a year-on-year
decrease of 15.1%, primarily due to the COVID-19 outbreak in the PRC.
During the year under review, the Company strategically leveraged its
online sales channels on platforms such as vip.com (ME /i ), Tmall
(X %) and WeChat (7 {%) to offset the closure of physical stores.
The president of the Company also did a live stream to sell products
for the first time which overwhelmingly received positive feedback.
It is encouraging that revenue from online sales channels recorded a
year-on-year increase of 61.4% as a result of the Group’s aggressive
online promotion initiatives and the nationwide shift of retail activities

from offline to online during the COVID-19 pandemic.

Regarding offline channels, the Company has been strengthening its
cooperative relationship with department stores, shopping malls and
outlets to foster existing distribution channels. As part of the strategy
to streamline operations and control costs, directly-operated stores are
becoming more optimised with loss-making stores being reviewed and

closed as needed.

Improving Customer Satisfaction to Enhance Customer Retention

Customers’ love and support is the driving force for the Company’s
development. In order to deliver products tailored to the customers’
diverse requirements, the Group established research and development
(“R&D”) teams. In-house training is provided to our staff to ensure that
they have strong sense and connection to the latest market trends. In
addition, the Company continues to collect, analyse and draw on a wealth
of sales data to get the latest fashion insights and provide quality and

trendy products to our customers.

In order to further improve customer satisfaction, this year we invited
loyal customers to participate in our new product development. We
obtained customer feedback from offline stores and major online sales
platforms. We also arranged special personnel to collect usage feedback
and understand customer expectations. Our designers took the initiative
to communicate with customers to learn about their actual needs so that
they could design more comfortable and stylish products for them. While
satisfying customers, we are also increasing sales thus creating win-win

situation between customers and the Company.
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Enhancing Productivity and Logistics Efficiency

The Group adopted advanced designs and technology to simplify
production process and improve production efficiency. This also reduces
unnecessary waste of resources while ensuring product quality and
meeting consumers’ variable and diverse needs along with promoting

sustainable and efficient development of the business operations.

Furthermore, the R&D department basically completed the deployment
and application of the ERP system in the Company’s subordinate
factories which significantly increased the utilisation efficiency of
resources. While maintaining the products’ high quality, it has also

increased production lines’ diversity and flexibility.

Productivity improved mainly from the following three aspects:

Closed-loop production line

All forming lines in Xuzhou factory were upgraded and modified to small
closed-loop lines. The number of employees in a single production line
was reduced from 55 to 28. Other factories are gradually completing the

production line transformation.

Optimise production methods
Flexible production modes and methods were adopted, saving 20% to

30% of production capacity.

Intelligent production
Intelligent production of each factory was further improved. Thanks
to the efficient material utilisation of imported advanced equipment,

production efficiency was significantly enhanced.

In order to enhance logistics efficiency, the Company continued to
improve the construction of the warehouses at the regional centre level.
The routes from the subordinate factory warehouses to regional centre
warehouses were also rationally adjusted. Moreover, the Company
optimised the Warehouse Management System based on the experience
of the previous year. The upgraded system is expected to further improve

the efficiency of warehouse operations.
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Optimizing Organisational Structure

In a fast-changing business environment, efficiency creates value.
One of the most effective method to increase efficiency is to optimize
the organizational structure by flatten it out in an effort to greatly
reduce the cost and time for internal discussion and approval. In 2020,
after diligently reviewing its organisational structure, the Company
consolidated ten distribution regions into six at the regional level and
greatly increased employees’ level of responsibility in the organization.
The removal of excess layers of management improved the coordination
and speed of communication between employees and encouraged an

easier decision-making process among employees.

Acquisition of Further Interest in Mega Brilliant International
Limited

On 17 January 2020, the Company announced the acquisition of 28% of
the issued share capital of Mega Brilliant International Limited (“Mega
Brilliant”), a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, for a total
cash consideration of RMB59,717,391. Mega Brilliant is the holding
company of Jiangsu Mega Shoes Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu Mega”), which
is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of branded fashion

footwear and related materials.

Following the acquisition, it is expected that the previous distributorships
between the sellers’ affiliated footwear distributors and Jiangsu Mega
will not be renewed. As a result, Jiangsu Mega will be able to regain its
distribution rights in the regions concerned, thereby allowing the Group
to centralise and streamline the operation and management of its footwear

retail business.

Moreover, with the decrease in shareholding of Mega Brilliant’s minority
shareholders from 49% to 21% following the acquisition, the portion of
Mega Brilliant’s profit or loss attributable to non-controlling interests
will diminish. From the perspective of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, provided that Mega Brilliant continues to generate a profit,
the acquisition is expected to result in an increase in profit (or a decrease
in the loss) attributable to owners of the Company in the future. The
acquisition was completed on 20 January 2020. Upon the completion,
the Company indirectly holds 79% of the issued share capital of Mega
Brilliant.
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Disposal of Allied Great International Holdings Limited

On 18 June 2020, the Company announced the disposal of the entire
issued share capital of Allied Great International Holdings Limited
(“Allied Great”), then a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, to
Huaxin Ventures Limited for a cash consideration of RMB5,000,000.
Allied Great is the holding company of Mayflower (Nanjing) Enterprise
Limited (“Nanjing Mayflower”), which is principally engaged in
manufacturing and retail sales of footwear mainly in Nanjing. As at the
completion date of the disposal, certain trade debts of RMB505,030,000

was payable by Nanjing Mayflower to various members of the Group.

Following the disposal, the Group is concentrating its production
activities in Xuzhou (as opposed to both Nanjing and Xuzhou previously),
thereby saving costs on internal governance as it improves logistics by
running production facilities in one locality instead of two. The Group
will also save costs on storage of the excess inventories and avoid
potential future costs of having to recognize obsolete inventory. This
is in line with the adjustments to the Group’s organisational structure
described above, which will allow the Group to take advantage of the

lower operating costs in Xuzhou.

Moreover, the settlement of the trade debts by Nanjing Mayflower
pursuant to the Obligations and Debts Framework Agreement will lead
to a gradual improvement in the Group’s cash position, while the transfer
of certain shoe trademarks to the Company pursuant to the trademark
transfer agreement will allow the Group to continue to operate its
self-developed brands. As such, the disposal will not pose any material

adverse impact on the Group’s existing footwear businesses.

The disposal of the entire issued share capital of Allied Great described
above was completed on 31 July 2020. Upon completion, the Company
no longer holds any direct or indirect interest in Allied Great and Nanjing

Mayflower.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s total revenue
decreased by 28.7% to RMB1,539.4 million, compared to the same
period of last year. Gross profit from continuing operations decreased by
25.8% to RMB860.7 million. During the year, the continuing operations
recorded a profit of RMBS5.6 million, compared to a loss of RMB205.3

million in the same period of last year.

Revenue
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s total revenue
decreased by 28.7% to RMB1,539.4 million, compared to RMB2,157.5

million for the same period of last year.

The Group’s revenue from continuing operations decreased by 20.5%

from RMB1,935.5 million for the same period of last year.

The Group’s revenue mix comprises income from retail and wholesale
of shoes (“Retail and Wholesale”), contract manufacturing of shoes
(“Contract Manufacturing”) and retail of toys. The revenue distribution
of Retail and Wholesale, Contract Manufacturing and retail of toys is set

our as follows:
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2020 2019
2020 4 2019 4F

% of Total % of Total
RMB (°000) Revenue RMB (°000) Revenue % Growth
15 48 0 77 it en R
AR T BEAl ARBTIL B F A 1
Retail and Wholesale ES V&S 1,379,398 89.6 1,625,685 75.3 -15.1
Contract Manufacturing Rk EER 112,198 7.3 211,226 9.8 -46.9
Retail of Toys Io BE R 47,772 3.1 320,618 14.9 -85.1
Total Wy 1,539,368 100 2,157,529 100 287
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Profitability

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the gross profit from continuing
operations decreased by 25.8% to RMB860.7 million, the gross profit
margin was 55.9%, a decrease of 4.0 percentage points from 59.9% in

last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, distribution and selling expenses
from continuing operations reached RMB801.8 million, a decrease
of 22.4%, compared to expenses of RMB1,033.5 million last year.
Distribution and selling expenses from continuing operations accounted
for 52.1% of revenue from continuing operations, compared to 53.4% in

last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, administrative and general
expenses from continuing operations amounted to RMB137.3 million, a
decrease of RMB10.4 million compared to the same period of last year.
Administrative and general expenses accounted for 8.9% of revenue from

continuing operations, compared to 7.6% in last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s other income and
expenses and other gains and losses from continuing operations recorded
a net profit of RMB75.8 million as compared to a net loss of RMB45.8
million last year. Other income and expenses and other gains and losses
mainly included impairment of property, plant and equipment and other
intangible assets, government subsidies, interest income on bank deposits
and net foreign exchange gain. The increase was mainly attributable
to the impairment losses of property, plant and equipment and other

intangible assets in 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded finance
costs of RMB5.3 million, compared to RMB19.6 million last year. The
decrease was mainly attributable to the repayment of borrowings and the

decrease in lease liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s income tax expense
from continuing operations decreased by RMB105.5 million to RMB9.2
million, compared to an expense of RMB114.7 million last year.
The decrease was mostly attributable to the reversal of deferred tax
in 2019. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded
profit attributable to owners of the Company of RMB6.2 million
from continuing operations, as compared to the loss of approximately

RMB209.5 million recorded in 2019.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

During the year, the Group adopted prudent treasury policies in managing
cash resources and bank borrowings. As at 31 December 2020, the Group
had cash and cash equivalents of RMB546.4 million (2019: RMB401.1

million).

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the Group had no bank

borrowings.

According to the Group’s current level of cash balances, working
resources and banking facilities, the Board is confident that the Group

has sufficient resources to meet its future business expansion.

Gearing ratio
As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the Group’s gearing
ratio, computed by dividing total loans and borrowings by total assets,

was 0.0%.

Capital structure

The Group’s operations were financed mainly by shareholder’s equity,
bank facilities available to the Group and internal resources. The Group
will continue to adopt its treasury policy of placing its cash and cash
equivalent as interest bearing deposits. The Group’s loans and cash and
cash equivalents were mainly denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong
dollars, GBP and U.S. dollars. As of 31 December 2020, the Group had

no bank borrowings denominated in foreign currency.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Pledge of Asset
As of 31 December 2020, the Group had no pledge of assets.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any substantial or contingent liabilities as of 31

December 2020.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group’s sales are mainly denominated in RMB, while its
Contract Manufacturing is mainly denominated in USD. The Contract
Manufacturing accounted for 7.3% of total revenue. Nevertheless, the
Board will keep monitoring the impact of the exchange rate on our
business closely and take appropriate measures to mitigate the impact

where necessary.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded a RMB5.4
million loss from currency exchange, compared to a RMB1.1 million gain
last year. The Group did not hold any derivative instruments for hedging

against foreign exchange risk.

Human Resources

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had 5,876 employees (31 December
2019: 7,459 employees). The Group provides its employees with
competitive remuneration packages including mandatory pension funds,
insurance and medical benefits. In addition, the Group pays discretionary
bonuses to qualified employees according to the business performance

and their individual work performance.

Dividend
The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend for the

year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: nil).

Events after the Reporting Period
There were no significant events after 31 December 2020 and up to the

date of this annual report.

LR SO

HEEm
B OE2020F 12 A31 H > A £ | MmE & E
B

%R £
2020412 A 31 H > A 48 [ 3l % A% fo] &
NE AR =R

[ Ja, J, B 45 B

AEWZHETEL ARG MA
KEEERNEELLCFE 8%
FEET G A BN T 3% - B k> #
& N A BT D) B B R B IR M 2E TS Y
BB NN A BERE PR OO RS DA e e
.

B E20204F 12 31 H Ik 4F B AR 4R B
BEREIRARES4T®E T 2404
Wt NRBIITE G AEEI BIFH
AT AT fi5 A2 T EL DA 3B b BE R B o

N 1 & W

 F20204F12 431 H > A 4 [ 58764
& B (2019412 H31H : 7,459 % 8 &) - &
LE L HEBRMEABF INHMAS -
£ 355 5 ] kR R B o R B R R A R o
[P R SN ) R N (] =
Ty TAE R B m & B A% E B 8RN A
4T o

B K
SO0 M L A £ 20204 12 31 H Ik FEE
#kE IR A W B (20194 © %) o

e W% B E
AN A R20204F 12 H31 H & H H £ A 4F
B 0 S 4 AT fo] B K S E o

T AT R

SF R

47



48

Management Discussion and Analysis
B T o v B o0 A

Outlook

In the later part of 2020, China was able to get the pandemic under
control and progressively restore social and economic order. However,
by the beginning of 2021, in some of China provinces and other
countries, COVID-19 re-emerged bringing back new social distancing
measures. The global situation is expected to be further aggravated as
relations between China and the United States intensify with political
and economic sanctions implemented by both countries. It is very likely
that in the foreseeable future, the pandemic prevention and control
will be normalized and the global economy will continue to face many

subsequent challenges.

Low-efficient stores will be closed gradually in the coming year after
deliberate consideration. On the one hand, the Company expects offline
sales to gradually recover as the COVID-19 pandemic subsides and the
sales performance of each store will be increased. The Company will
strengthen its relationships with high profile celebrities as it seeks new
media opportunities to strengthen brand awareness. On the other hand,
the Company intends to conduct further cooperation with online platform
such as vip.com (M 5 ) and other parties to continue expanding its
online sales channels and make full use of the advantages provided by the
platforms to achieve over-expected performance. The online sales will be
also supported by unleashing the power of live streaming, which is gain
more and more popularity. It will also leverage online-offline synergy
to maximise the potential of the online business and consolidate offline
shoppers into online buying force with the goal to accelerate growth
and boost sales in 2021. Regarding the OEM business, the management
expects it will continue to suffer from the serious COVID-19 situation in

America and Europe.

After the Company’s tremendous efforts in implementing re-centering
strategy in the past several years, divestiture of other business has been
gradually realized. To achieve rapid development in the main business
of the Company, further reform of the operation system and company
structure will be conducted. With more resources tipping towards the
main business, the upgrade of the overall structure and system and
innovative and effective publicity plan in the coming year, the sales

volume of the brand of C.banner is expected to make a breakthrough.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Company values talents and will continue to attract more talents
with attractive benefits to optimize the knowledge structure of the
management. The key management will move southwards to the frontline
with Guangzhou as center to better manage the business and explore
more business opportunities. The research center in Guangzhou has been

transformed to meet the changes brought by COVID-19.

The management has well realized that supply chain management is an
integral part for the business and is essential to company success and
customer satisfaction. The current ever-changing market not only requires
fast response on making decision but also the supply chain management.
On the one hand, the Company will further review and reform the supply
chain system to enhance the product quality; on the other hand, closer
cooperation will be made with external supply chains to smoothen and
strengthen supply chain system. Another focus in the coming year is the
enhancement of offline operation efficiency with an aim of fortifying
the Company’s capability of discovering, cultivating and operating
top-selling products to achieve a satisfactory business performance. In
addition, the Company will further use advanced designs and technology
to simplify the production process, improve production efficiency, and

meet the variable and various customers’ demands.

The COVID-19 outbreak has affected the whole world. Though the
operating condition and financial performance of the Company were
under pressure, the Company confronted these challenges by swiftly
responding to the changing market conditions, promptly adjusting the
strategies and leveraging resource advantages in a bid to minimize the
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. Looking ahead, the Company will
stay focused on strengthening the core business and optimizing online
and offline experience in an effort to further enhance the competitiveness,
hence maintaining stable and sustainable growth and creating increased

shareholder value.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION RELATING
TO THE QUALIFIED OPINION

The external auditors of the Company, ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA
Limited (the “Auditors”), issued a qualified opinion (the “2020 Audit
Qualification”) on the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (“FY2020”) in relation to (i) the opening
balances of Hamleys Global Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries which
were disposed of during the year ended 31 December 2019 (“FY2019”);
and (ii) the net carrying values of certain non-current assets as at 31
December 2018 in connection with the Group’s toys retail business
operating in the PRC (collectively, the “Qualified Matters”). For further
details, please refer to the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 76 to

83 of this annual report.

In view of the 2020 Audit Qualification, the Board would like to provide

the following additional information:

The Management’s View on the 2020 Audit Qualification

The 2020 Audit Qualification was expressed solely in respect of the
comparative figures for FY2019 contained in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for FY2020. In this regard, the management notes
that a qualified opinion (the “2019 Audit Qualification”) was expressed in
respect of the same Qualified Matters in the independent auditor’s report
issued by the Auditors on the Group’s consolidated financial statements
for FY2019 as set forth on pages 67 to 74 of the Company’s annual report
for FY2019 published on 14 May 2020 (the “2019 Annual Report”).

The management also notes that the Company (i) disclosed certain
information on the Qualified Matters in the section headed “Management
Discussion & Analysis — Additional Information Relating to the Qualified
Opinion” on pages 43 to 45 of the 2019 Annual Report; and (ii) disclosed
further information on the background of and circumstances leading to
the Qualified Matters in its supplemental announcement dated 8 June

2020 (the “June 2020 Announcement”).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The management is of the view that, as explained in the June 2020
Announcement, the Company had made repeated attempts to work out
a solution with various parties and had provided relevant records in its
possession to the Auditors in order to facilitate the Auditors’ FY2019
audit work, but unfortunately the Auditors was unable to obtain such
documents and information that it considered sufficient for an unqualified
audit opinion to be issued for FY2019. Insofar as the 2020 Audit
Qualification is concerned, since such qualification was expressed in
respect of the same Qualified Matters as in the 2019 Audit Qualification,

the management’s aforesaid view remains applicable.

The Audit Committee’s View on the 2020 Audit Qualification

In respect of the 2019 Audit Qualification, as disclosed on page 45 of the
2019 Annual Report and pages 2 to 3 of the June 2020 Announcement, (i)
the Audit Committee communicated with the Auditors in detail during a
meeting held on 28 April 2020; (ii) the Audit Committee also reported the
situation to the Board during the Board meeting held on the same date; (iii)
the Audit Committee and the Company both agreed that the matter was
non-recurring; and (iv) the Audit Committee reviewed and agreed with
the Board’s position concerning the 2019 Audit Qualification. Insofar as
the 2020 Audit Qualification is concerned, since such qualification was
expressed in respect of the same Qualified Matters as in the 2019 Audit

Qualification, the Audit Committee’s aforesaid view remains applicable.

Furthermore, specifically in respect of the 2020 Audit Qualification,
(i) on 16 March 2021, the Auditors provided the Company with a draft
of the “Audit Closing Memorandum to Audit Committee and Board
of Directors” for FY2020 setting forth, among other things, details of
the Qualified Matters; (ii) at the Audit Committee meeting held on 29
March 2021, the Auditors went through the Qualified Matters with the
Audit Committee and advised that the 2020 Audit Qualification would
be expressed in the independent auditor’s report for FY2020; and (iii)
at the aforesaid Audit Committee meeting, it was resolved, among other
things, that the Group’s consolidated financial statements for FY2020 and
the annual results announcement for FY2020 (which contained the 2020

Audit Qualification) be recommended to the Board for approval.
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The Management’s and the Audit Committee’s Expectation
Regarding the Year Ending 31 December 2021 (“FY20217)

As the 2020 Audit Qualification was expressed solely in respect of the
comparative figures for FY2019, and the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for FY2021 will not contain such FY2019 figures, the
management expects that the independent auditor’s report for FY2021
will no longer contain any modification in respect of the Qualified
Matters. The Audit Committee has reviewed and agrees with the

management’s expectation.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report in the

annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of Shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The Company has complied with all
applicable code provisions under the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules during the Review Period. The Company will
continue to review and enhance its corporate governance practices to

ensure compliance with the CG Code.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
overseeing the Group’s strategic decisions and monitoring the Group’s
business and performance. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for day-to-day management and operation of the Group
to the senior management of the Group. To oversee particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs, the Board has established three Board
committees including the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”),
the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) (together, the
“Board Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board Committees

responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests of

the Company and its Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify
the Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The

insurance coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis.
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Board Composition

During the Review Period, the Board comprised five executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chen Yixi, Mr. Huo Li, Mr. Yuan Zhenhua, Mr. Wan
Xianghua and Mr. Wu Weiming, one non-executive Director, namely Mr.
Miao Bingwen, and three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson, Mr. Li Xindan and Mr. Zheng Hongliang.
In addition, subsequent to the Review Period, due to health reason, Mr.
Huo Li resigned as executive Director with effect from 4 February 2021.
The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed

“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

Relationships (including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships), if any, among members of the Board are also
disclosed. There was no such relationship as between the chairman of the

Board (the “Chairman”) and the CEO during the Review Period.

Pursuant to the code provision A.5.6 of the CG code, listed issuers are
required to adopt a board diversity policy. The Board has adopted the
board diversity policy and the summary of the board diversity policy is

set out under “Board Committees — Nomination Committee” below.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent
non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the

independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the Audit

Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring directors to disclose the
number and nature of offices held in public companies or organisations
and other significant commitments as well as their identity and the
time involved to the issuer, Directors have agreed to disclose their

commitments to the Company in a timely manner.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and performed by different
individuals. During the Review Period, Mr. Chen Yixi was the Chairman
and Mr. Yuan Zhenhua was the President. Mr. Chen Yixi is responsible
for charting the business strategy and has played a determining role in
establishing the Group’s presence in the PRC women’s footwear industry.
Mr. Yuan Zhenhua was responsible for overseeing the operations
(including brand and product development), finance and human resource
management of the Group. As described above, there is a clear distinction
between the Chairman’s responsibility for providing leadership for the
Board and the President’s responsibility for managing the day-to-day

operations of the Group’s business.

Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

All executive Directors have entered into service contracts with the
Company for a specific term of two years or three years. In addition, all
non-executive Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have entered into letters of appointment with the Company for a specific

term of one year or three years.

In compliance with the code provision in A.4.2 of the CG Code, all
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. Furthermore, pursuant to the bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws, at each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being, or,
if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest
one-third but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation.
The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election. The Company at
any general meeting at which any Directors retire may fill the vacated

offices.
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In compliance with the code provision in A.4.2 of the CG Code, all
Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election
by Shareholders at the first general meeting after their appointment. By
virtue of the bye-law 102(B) of the Bye-laws, the Board shall have power
from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director
either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board but so that
the number of Directors so appointed shall not exceed the maximum
number determined from time to time by the Shareholders in general
meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
shall hold office only until the first general meeting of the Company
after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall
hold office only until the next following annual general meeting of the

Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of directors are set out in the Bye-laws. The Nomination Committee
is responsible for reviewing the Board composition, monitoring the

appointment, re-election and succession planning of Directors.

Induction and Continuing Development of Directors

Each newly appointed Director shall receive formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and full awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the

Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors will be continuously updated on the statutory and regulatory
regime and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Briefing and professional development for Directors will

be arranged where necessary.
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Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. During
the year of 2020, all Directors, namely Mr. Chen Yixi, Mr. Huo Li,
Mr. Yuan Zhenhua, Mr. Wan Xianghua, Mr. Wu Weiming, Mr. Miao
Bingwen, Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson, Mr. Li Xindan and Mr. Zheng
Hongliang, participated in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills by ways of attending
trainings and reading materials which are relevant to the Group’s business
or to directors’ duties and responsibilities. In addition, the Company from
time to time updates and provides written training material relating to the
roles, functions and duties of a director and all the aforesaid Directors
study such materials and they are asked to submit a signed training record

to the Company on annual basis.

Board Meetings and General Meetings

The Company adopts the practice of holding board meetings regularly, at
least four times a year, and at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices
of not less than fourteen days are given for all regular board meetings to
provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend and include matters
in the agenda for a regular meeting. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given. When Directors or
committee members are unable to attend a meeting, they will be advised
of the matters to be discussed and given an opportunity to make their

views known to the Chairman prior to the meeting.

Minutes of the board meetings and committee meetings are recorded
in sufficient detail of the matters considered by the Board and the
committees and the decisions reached, including any concerns raised
by the Directors. Draft minutes of each board meeting and committee
meeting are sent to the Directors for comments within a reasonable time

after the date on which the meeting is held.
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For the Review Period, five Board meetings, a special general meeting
and an annual general meeting were held and the attendance of the

individual Directors at these meetings is set out in the table below:

Attended/Eligible
Directors to attend
Board General
Meetings Meetings
Mr. Chen Yixi 5/5 2/2
Mr. Huo Li 5/5 2/2
Mr. Yuan Zhenhua 5/5 172
Mr. Wan Xianghua 5/5 2/2
Mr. Wu Weiming 5/5 1/2
Mr. Miao Bingwen 3/5 172
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 5/5 2/2
Mr. Li Xindan 5/5 2/2
Mr. Zheng Hongliang 5/5 2/2

During the Review Period, the Chairman held a meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other

Directors on 27 March 2020.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Specific enquiry has been
made of all the Directors and each of the Directors has confirmed that he

has complied with the Model Code throughout the Review Period.

Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management systems,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters. Directors could have
resources to seek independent professional advice in performing their
duties at the Company’s expense and are encouraged to access and to

consult with the Company’s senior management independently.
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The daily management, administration and operation of the Group
are delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has to
be obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered

into by the management.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprised three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson, Mr. Li Xindan
and Mr. Zheng Hongliang, and one non-executive Director, namely
Mr. Miao Bingwen. Therefore, the majority of members of the Audit
Committee are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Kwong Wai
Sun Wilson currently is the chairman of the Audit Committee. The main

duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

. To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the internal audit division or

external auditor before submission to the Board

. To review the relationship with the external auditor by reference
to the work performed by the auditor, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendations to the Board on the

appointment, reappointment and removal of external auditor

. To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk

management system and associated procedures
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During the Review Period, three meetings of the Audit Committee were
held and the attendance record of the Audit Committee members is set

out in the table below:

Attended/Eligible
Directors to attend
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 3/3
Mr. Miao Bingwen 2/3
Mr. Li Xindan 3/3
Mr. Zheng Hongliang 3/3

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the Review Period to
review the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 and the interim results of the Group for the six months ended
30 June 2020, the financial reporting and compliance procedures, the
Company’s internal control and risk management systems and processes
(including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions), and the re-appointment of the external

auditor.

The Audit Committee is also responsible for performing the corporate

governance duties, including:

. To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporate governance

. To review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management

. To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

. To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and

compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors

. To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprised three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Xindan, Mr. Kwong Wai Sun
Wilson and Mr. Zheng Hongliang, and one non-executive Director,
namely Mr. Miao Bingwen. Therefore, the majority of members of the
Remuneration Committee are independent non-executive Directors. Mr.

Li Xindan currently is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy and structure
and remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the senior
management. The Remuneration Committee has adopted the operation
model where it performs an advisory role to the Board, with the Board
retaining the final authority to approve the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for establishing transparent procedures
for formulating such remuneration policy and structure and to ensure
that no Director or any of his associates will participate in deciding his
own remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference
to the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market

practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Review
Period to review and consider the existing terms of remuneration of the
Directors and senior management with reference to the prevailing market
conditions, a Director’s experience, responsibility, workload and fees

paid by the comparable companies.
Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of

the members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31

December 2020 is set out below:
Remuneration band Number of individuals
RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000 1
More than RMB2,000,000 1
Further particulars relating to Directors’ emoluments and the five highest

paid individuals are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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During the Review Period, one meeting of the Remuneration Committee
was held and the attendance record of the Remuneration Committee

members is set out as follows:

Directors Attended/Eligible to attend
Mr. Li Xindan 1/1
Mr. Miao Bingwen 1/1
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 1/1
Mr. Zheng Hongliang 1/1

Nomination Committee

Currently the Nomination Committee comprised one executive Director,
namely Mr. Chen Yixi, and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson, Mr. Li Xindan and Mr. Zheng
Hongliang. Therefore, the majority of members of the Nomination
Committee were independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Chen Yixi

currently is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

. To review the structure, size and composition of the Board and

make recommendations regarding any proposed changes

. To identify suitable candidates for appointment as Directors

. To make recommendations to the Board on appointment or

reappointment of and succession planning for Directors

. To assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors

The Nomination Committee considered and resolved that all the existing
Directors shall be recommended to be retained by the Company.
Furthermore, in accordance with the Bye-laws and as resolved by the
Nomination Committee, Mr. Chen Yixi, Mr. Miao Bingwen and Mr.
Kwong Wai Sun Wilson shall retire by rotation in accordance with Bye-
law 99 of the Bye-laws, and all retiring Directors, being eligible, offered
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of

the Company.
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1. NOMINATION POLICY

The Group adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”)

on 1 January 2019. A summary of this policy is disclosed as below.

1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

Objective

The Nomination Committee shall review the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate

strategy.

The Nomination Committee shall nominate suitable
candidates to the Board for it to consider and make
recommendations to shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholder(s)”) for election as Director at general

meetings or appoint him/her to fill casual vacancies.

The Nomination Policy helps the Nomination
Committee and the Board to ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the

Group’s business.

2. Selection Criteria

2.1

ey

€3]

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a

proposed candidate.

Reputation for integrity;

Commitment in respect of available time and relevant

interest; and
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Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age (18 years or above), cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional

experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

These factors are for reference only, and not meant
to be exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination
Committee has the discretion to nominate any person,

as it considers appropriate.

3. Nomination Procedures

3.1 Appointment of Directors

€y

2

3)

“

(%)

The Nomination Committee identifies individual(s)
suitably qualified to become Board members, having
due regard to the Nomination Policy and the board
diversity policy of the Company, and assesses the
independence of the proposed independent non-

executive Director(s) as appropriate.

The Nomination Committee makes recommendation(s)

to the Board.

The Board considers the individual( s) recommended
by the Nomination Committee, having due regard to

the Nomination Policy and the board diversity policy.

The Board confirms the appointment of the
individual(s) as Director(s) or recommends the

individual(s) to stand for election at a general meeting.

The Shareholders approve the election of individual(s),
who stand(s) for election at general meeting, as

Director(s).
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3.2 Re-appointment of Directors 32 EHRMEES

3.3

ey

2

3

“

&)

The Nomination Committee considers each retiring
Director, having due regard to the Nomination Policy
and the board diversity policy of the Company, and
assesses the independence of each retiring independent

non-executive Director.

The Nomination Committee makes recommendation(s)

to the Board.

The Board considers each retiring Director
recommended by the Nomination Committee, having
due regard to the Nomination Policy and the board

diversity policy.

The Board recommends the retiring Directors to
stand for re-election at the annual general meeting in

accordance with the Company’s bye-laws.

The Shareholders approve the re-election of Directors

at the annual general meeting.

The Board shall have the ultimate responsibility for

all matters relating to the selection and appointment of

Directors.

Review of the Nomination Policy

4.1

The Nomination Committee will review the
Nomination Policy, as appropriate, to ensure
the effectiveness of the Nomination Policy. The
Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that
may be required, and recommend any such revisions to

the Board for consideration and approval.
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The Company adopted the board diversity policy with measurable
objectives. The Nomination Committee evaluates the balance and blend
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives of the Board. Selection
of candidates is based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to age, cultural and educational background, professional
and industry experience, skills, knowledge, ethnicity and other qualities
essential to the Company’s business, and merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Board has reviewed such
measurable objectives in March 2020 to ensure their appropriateness and

ascertain the progress made towards achieving those objectives.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Review Period.

The attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee is set out

as follows:

Directors Attended/Eligible to attend
Mr. Chen Yixi 1/1
Mr. Li Xindan 1/1
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 1/1
Mr. Zheng Honliang 1/1

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the Group’s
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 which give a
true and fair view of the affairs of the Group and of the Group’s results

and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed
assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which are put to the
Board for approval. During the Review Period, the Company provided
all members of the Board with monthly updates on the Company’s

performance, position and prospects.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for
maintaining an adequate risk management and internal control systems
to safeguard Shareholders’ investments and the Company’s assets and

reviewing the effectiveness of such systems on an annual basis.

The Group’s internal audit department plays a major role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The major tasks of the internal
audit department are reviewing the financial condition and internal
control of the Company and conducting comprehensive audits of all

branches and subsidiaries of the Company on a regular basis.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and considered
the risk management and internal control systems to be effective and

adequate during the Review Period.

The Group has embedded its risk management and internal control
systems into the core operating practices of the business. On an ongoing
basis, it will review and assess the status of potential risks which
may impact on their ability to achieve the business objectives of the
Group. This review process includes assessment as to whether the
existing systems of risk management and internal controls continue to
remain relevant, adequately addresses potential risks, and/or should be
supplemented. The results of these reviews are reported to the senior
management and the Board periodically and regularly. However, the
mechanism under the risk management and internal control systems
reasonably but not absolutely ensures the non-occurrence of significant
error, loss or fraud and it is designed to manage, rather than eliminate the

risk of failure to achieve business objectives.

The Group has also adopted procedures to regulate the handling and
dissemination of inside information, ensuring the inside information
remains confidential until the disclosure of such information is
appropriately approved, and the dissemination of such information is

efficiently and consistently made.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Annual audit fees of the financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020 payable to the external auditor are
approximately RMB1.83 million, and the fees of non-audit services in
relation to circular for very substantial disposal payable to the external

auditor are approximately RMBO0.8 million.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and understanding of the
Group’s business, performance and strategies. The Company also
recognises the importance of timely and non-selective disclosure of
information, which will enable Shareholders and investors to make the

informed investment decisions.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.cbanner.com.cn, where up-to-date information on the Company’s
business operations and developments, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are available for public

access.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each issue at Shareholders’ meetings, including the election

of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at Shareholders’ meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in a timely

manner after each Shareholders’ meeting.
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CONVENING OF SPECIAL GENERAL
MEETING

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition sent to the Company’s registered office,
to require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such

requisition.

The written requisition must state clearly the name of the Shareholder(s)
concerned, his/her/their shareholding, the purposes of the general
meeting, signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of those

Shareholders.

If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionists or any of them representing
more than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be

held after the expiration of three (3) months from the said date.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason of
the failure of the Board duly to convene a meeting shall be repaid to the
requisitionists by the Company, and any sum so repaid shall be retained
by the Company out of any sums due or to become due from the Company
by way of fees or other remuneration in respect of their services to such

directors as were in default.

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS

The Company holds an annual general meeting (“AGM”) every year, and
may hold a general meeting known as a special general meeting whenever

necessary.

Any one or more Shareholders holding (i) not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting rights of all Shareholders having the right to vote at
the general meeting; or (ii) not less than 100 Shareholders, can submit a
written request stating the resolution intended to be moved at the AGM
or a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter
referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at a

particular general meeting.
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The written request/statements must be signed by the Shareholder(s)
concerned and deposited at the Company’s registered office and its
principal office not less than six weeks before the AGM in the case of
a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one week

before the general meeting in the case of any other requisition.

The written request will be verified with the Company’s Hong Kong
branch share registrar and upon their confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Board should (i) include the resolution in the
agenda for the AGM; or (ii) circulate the statement for the general
meeting, provided that the Shareholder(s) concerned have deposited a
sum of money reasonably determined by the Board sufficient to meet
the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the resolution and/ or
circulating the statement submitted by the Shareholder(s) concerned
in accordance with the statutory requirements to all the registered

Shareholders.

PROPOSING A PERSON FOR ELECTION AS
A DIRECTOR

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the procedures

are available on the website of the Company.

ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the Company to

the Board could email their enquiries to info@cbanner.com.cn.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged Ms. So Lai Shan of TMF Hong Kong Limited,
(a company secretarial service provider) as its company secretary. Her
primary corporate contact person at the Company is Mr. Yuan Zhenhua,

an executive Director.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Ms. So has undertaken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training in compliance with Rule

3.29 of the Listing Rules.
Ms. So resigned as the company secretary of the Company on 29 March

2021 and Ms. Wong Sau Ping was appointed as the company secretary of

the Company.
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CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Review Period, there is no significant change in constitutional

documents of the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Subject to the Companies Act, the Company, through a general meeting,
may declare final dividends in any currency, but no dividend may be

declared in excess of the amount recommended by the Board.

Future dividend payments will depend upon the availability of dividends
the Company receives from our operating subsidiaries in China. PRC
laws require that dividends be paid only out of the net profit calculated
according to PRC accounting principles, which differ in many aspects
from IFRS. PRC laws also require foreign-invested enterprises, such
as the operating subsidiaries of the Company in China, to set aside
part of their net profit as statutory reserves, which are not available
for distribution as cash dividends. Distributions from the subsidiaries
of the Company may also be restricted if they incur debts or losses or
in accordance with any restrictive covenants in bank credit facilities,
convertible bond instruments or other agreements that the Company or its

subsidiaries have entered into or may enter into in the future.

Subject to the above factors, our expected dividend policy is that not
less than approximately 20% of our profits available for distribution will
be recommended for distribution in each financial year. The amount of
dividend actually distributed to the Shareholders of the Company will
depend upon the earnings and financial condition, operating requirements,
capital requirements of the Company and any other conditions that our
Directors may deem relevant and will be subject to approval of our

Shareholders.
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Executive Directors

Chen Yixi (Pl 25 B8), aged 54, is the Chairman, an executive Director
and the chairman of the Nomination Committee. Mr. Chen founded
Nanjing Mayflower Footwear Corporation (74 &% 35 BB #E # 25 [R A 7))
(“Mayflower Footwear”) in 1995 and is a co-founder of the Group. Mr.
Chen is responsible for charting the business strategy of the Group and
has played a determining role in establishing the Group’s presence in the
PRC women’s footwear industry. Mr. Chen was honored by the People’s
Government of Jiangsu Province and the People’s Government of Nanjing
as an Outstanding Entrepreneur of Non-Stateowned Companies (& 7
[ # 1> 3% %) and is currently the Vice Chairman of Nanjing Federation
of Industry & Commerce (7 4 T L f 3 B & @) and Vice President
of Nanjing Enterprise Directors Association (B & 11 1> % K Iy &).
Mr. Chen graduated from Nanjing Normal University with a Bachelor’s
Degree in News Propagation in 1988 and obtained a Master of Business
Administration Degree from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business
in 2007. He served with the news publications department of Jiangsu
Chinese Communist Party Council from 1988 to 1995 before co-founding
Mayflower Footwear with other partners. Mr. Chen is the sole director of
Hongguo International Group Limited, which is a substantial shareholder
of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance. Mr. Chen has not been a director of any other listed
company in the three years immediately preceding the date of this annual

report.

Yuan Zhenhua (5 ¥ #%), aged 39, was appointed as an executive Director
in December 2016. He is also the President of the Group. He obtained a
Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting from Nanjing University of Aeronautics
and Astronautics in 2005. Mr. Yuan is currently a non-practicing member
of the PRC Certified Public Accountant Association. From 2005 to 2015,
he held various positions in the Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified
Public Accountants LLP, Nanjing Branch, including being senior
manager of the Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants
LLP, Nanjing Branch. Mr. Yuan has not been a director of any other
listed company in the three years immediately preceding the date of this

annual report.
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Mr. Wan Xianghua (# ## 3#), aged 52, is the vice president of the
Group. Mr. Wan joined the Group in 1996 and was appointed as an
executive Director in November 2019. He is currently responsible for the
operation of natursun brand and the design, research and development
and procurement of MIO brand and supply chain management. Mr. Wan
has served as a committee member of the National Technical Committee
on Footwear of Standardization Administration of China (7 5] il i 2
#E fL 4% fif Z5 B @) since 2008 and has been a professor specializing in
footwear manufacturing at Guangling College of Yangzhou University (85
N KB JE % E2 %) since 2010. Mr. Wan also holds a certificate of first
level footwear designer. Mr. Wan has not been a director of any other
listed company in the three years immediately preceding the date of this

annual report.

Mr. Wu Weiming (52 & W] ), aged 49, is the vice president of the Group.
Mr. Wu joined the Group in 2000 and was appointed as an executive
Director in November 2019. He is currently responsible for the retail
operations of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wu had served
with Shenzhen Zhen Xing Footwear Company (% Il 2 ¥ A
F]) since 1997 and was the general manager of East China Branch of
the company when he left the company in 2000. Mr. Wu has not been
a director of any other listed company in the three years immediately

preceding the date of this annual report.

Non-executive Director

Miao Bingwen (W 30), aged 53, is a non-executive Director and a
member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr.
Miao is a co-founder of the Group who served as an executive Director
from 1995 to 2007, overseeing the sales and business planning of the
Group. With effect from 1 March 2007, Mr. Miao was re-designated
as the non-executive Director. Mr. Miao obtained a Bachelor’s Degree
in Chemistry and a Master of Business Administration Degree from
Nanjing University in 1988 and 2005, respectively. He worked in Nanjing
University Technology Development Limited (Fg &% K €% B} % BH 4 2 7))
from 1988 to 1991 and served as the Nanjing market supervisor from 1991
to 1995, before co-founding Mayflower Footwear with other partners. Mr.
Miao has not been a director of any other listed company in the three years

immediately preceding the date of this annual report.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Kwong Wai Sun Wilson (B f% {5 ), aged 55, has been an independent
non-executive Director since August 2011. He is also the chairman of
the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Kwong has been appointed as
an executive director of China Metal Resources Utilization Limited,
a manufacturer of recycled copper products in China and a listed
company on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, with effect from 16
August 2013. He is also an independent non-executive director of
Shunfeng International Clean Energy Limited, China Outfitters Holdings
Limited and China New Higher Education Group Limited, all of which
are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. On 15 March 2019,
Mr. Kwong was appointed as independent non-executive director of
Koolearn Technology Holding Limited (i % J7 7€ &% B % # I A R
/% ), a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 28 March
2019. Mr. Kwong graduated from Cambridge University, England with a
Degree of Bachelor of Arts in 1987 and is currently an associate member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kwong, who
previously worked at a number of investment banks in Hong Kong, has
16 years of experience in corporate finance and equity capital markets
in Asia. From 2002 to 2003, Mr. Kwong was the head of equity capital
markets for Cazenove Asia Limited. From 2004 to 2006, he was a
managing director of investment banking and head of Hong Kong and

China equity capital market of CLSA Equity Capital Markets Limited.
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Li Xindan (2= . #}), aged 54, has been an independent non-executive
Director since August 2011. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Li currently holds several positions with Nanjing
University, including the director of the Academic Committee and the
Anzhong Chair Professor of the School of Management and Engineering
of Nanjing University, the director of the Financial Engineering Research
Center and the executive director of the Venture Capital Research and
Development Center of the university. Mr. Li graduated from Fudan
University in 1988 with a Bachelor’s Degree in Management Science as
well as a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics. He further obtained a Doctor’s
Degree in Finance from Fudan University in 1999. Mr. Li joined the
Southeast University as an assistant professor in 1988 and was promoted
to an associate professor and a professor in 1993 and 1999, respectively.
Then Mr. Li joined Nanjing University as a professor in 2001. Mr. Li
was an independent non-executive director of Holly Futures Co., Ltd., a
company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 3678)
until 15 November 2018. On 5 December 2020, Mr. Li was appointed as
non-executive director of OCI International Holdings Limited, a company

listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 329).

Zheng Hongliang (% 41 3% ), aged 62, has been an independent non-
executive Director since April 2014. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.
Mr. Zheng is currently a professor of the Institute of Economics Chinese
Academy of Social Science (1[4t & B} 5L BE £ FEWF 5% AT ). Mr. Zheng
was the executive vice-editor-in-chief of editorial office of Economic
Research Journal (€ £ % #F 5% )), which is a PRC journal in economic
theory research published by the Institute of Economics of Chinese
Academy of Social Science. Mr. Zheng’s field of research mainly
covers the areas in respect of microeconomics, comparative study of
corporate system, theory of corporate governance, and revolution of state
enterprises. Mr. Zheng graduated from the Department of Economic of
Renmin University of China with a Master Degree in 1987. Mr. Zheng
is currently an independent non-executive director of Asian Capital
Resources (Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 8025), a company listed on
GEM of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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ZHONGHUI

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF C. BANNER INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of C. banner
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 84 to 195,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described in
the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the consolidated
financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standard
Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

Corresponding figures

1) Hamleys Global Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively known as the “Disposal Group”)
We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
satisfy ourselves concerning the balance of the Disposal Group,
disposed during the year ended 31 December 2019. As the balances
of the Disposal Group as at 1 January 2019 significantly affected
the determination of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
December 2019, we were unable to determine whether adjustments
to the Group’s loss and loss for the year from discontinued
operation of RMB102,159,000 might be necessary for the year
ended 31 December 2019.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION (continued)

Corresponding figures (continued)

2)

Toys segment

We are unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
satisfy ourselves on the recoverability of the property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and prepayment for rental expenses
(collectively known as “Toys Assets”) as at 31 December 2018,
in particular, based on the business results of the Toys segment.
Consequently, we are unable to determine whether any adjustments
in respect of the net carrying values of the Group’s Toys Assets and
provision on onerous contract of rental agreement at 31 December

2018 are necessary.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded the
following depreciation, amortisation, written off and impairment
loss. We have not yet obtained sufficient and appropriate audit
evidence to satisfy ourselves as to these depreciation, amortisation,
written off and impairment loss, and whether these depreciation,
amortisation, written off and impairment loss should be recognised

in the year ended 31 December 2019 or 31 December 2018.
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Depreciation of right-of-use assets 1 ) HE 5 E AT B 20,510
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ER &SR 7,045
Amortisation of other intangible assets HoAlh 4 A A S 1,944
Written off of property, plant and equipment ES &SR 12,446
Impairment loss on prepayment T AT 3O (E e 18 10,000
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets fdE A HE & RE W R 4H 4,804
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment LR E &L RN R 53,247
Impairment loss on other intangible assets HoAth S TR B A R (H R B 910

B bl A BT AT SR T RE Y 3%
£ EBEE2019F12A31H EFEZHEE
W 3% B M A B & T R DA K S S B
RO N 2 M B B R R RAE R R .

Any adjustments to the figures as described above might have a
consequential effect on the Group’s consolidated financial performance
and consolidated cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2019, and

the related disclosures thereof in the consolidated financial statements.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION (continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matters described in the Basis
for Qualified Opinion Section, we have determined the matters described

below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

Refer to Note 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the amounts of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets for impairment. This impairment test is significant
to our audit because the balances of property, plant and equipment of
RMB64,608,000 and right-of-use assets of RMB117,880,000 as at 31
December 2020 are material to the consolidated financial statements. In
addition, the Group’s impairment test involves application of judgement

and is based on assumptions and estimates.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
(continued)

Our audit procedures included, among others:
- Assessing the identification of the related cash generating units;
- Assessing the arithmetical accuracy of the value-in-use calculations;

- Comparing the actual cash flows with the cash flow projections;

- Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions (including
revenue growth, profit margins, terminal growth rates and discount

rates); and
- Checking input data to supporting evidence.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets are supported by the available

evidence.

Inventories

Refer to Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the amount of inventories for impairment. This
impairment test is significant to our audit because the balance of
inventories of RMB336,813,000 as at 31 December 2020 is material to
the consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group’s impairment

test involves application of judgement and is based on estimates.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Inventories (continued)

Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the Group’s procedures on ordering and holding of

inventories;
- Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment;
- Assessing the marketability of the inventories;
- Assessing the ageing of the inventories;
- Assessing the net realisable values of the inventories; and
- Checking subsequent sales and usage of the inventories.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for inventories is supported

by the available evidence.

Trade and other receivables

Refer to Note 25 and 26 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the amount of trade and other receivables for
impairment. This impairment test is significant to our audit because
the trade receivables of RMB202,787,000 and other receivables
of RMB338,099,000 as at 31 December 2020 are material to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group’s impairment

test involves application of judgement and is based on estimates.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Trade and other receivables (continued)

Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the Group’s procedures on granting credit limits and

credit periods to customers and debtors;

- Assessing the Group’s relationship and transaction history with the

customers and debtors;
- Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment;
- Assessing ageing of the debts;
- Assessing creditworthiness of the customers and debtors;
- Checking subsequent settlements from the customers and debtors;
- Assessing the value of the collateral for the debts; and

- Assessing the disclosure of the Group’s exposure to credit risk in

the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for trade and other

receivables are supported by the available evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The other information is expected to be made

available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we will not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.
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OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears

to be materially misstated.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

Oor error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of

users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the

consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA’s website at:

http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/standards/

auditing-assurance/auditre/

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Li Shun Fai

Audit Engagement Director
Practising Certificate Number P05498

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Gim TR R 2 TR W
For the year ended 31 December 2020
W E 20204 12 4 31 H 1L 4

2020 2019
2020 4 2019 4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
iiga ANR¥FrL AR¥TIT
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FHREEY
Revenue g 4 7 1,539,368 1,935,538
Cost of sales RN (678,700) (776,452)
Gross profit EF 860,668 1,159,086
Other income and expenses and HoAth e A B2 BH LA K
other gains and losses NN e d R 8 75,832 (45,840)
Distribution and selling expenses 73§ K 8 4 B 32 (801,778) (1,033,471)
Administrative and general expenses 17 B K — M BH 3¢ (137,344) (147,724)
Share of profit of an associate I A W B AN | s A - 1,651
Share of loss of joint ventures R R /NI i (837) (4,713)
Finance costs W W5 LA 9 (5,274) (19,556)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries R il /N 38 23,546 -
Profit/(loss) before income tax R T 45 B A 38 R Ofs 48) 14,813 (90,567)
Income tax expenses JiT 75 i BA 2 10 (9,208) (114,709)
Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing R AR KL HEEHE W
operations AN AL 18) 11 5,605 (205,276)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION CRIEER
Loss for the year from discontinued AH &R FEB W
operation G Y R 12 - (102,159)
Profit/(loss) for the year AE R ¥R AL 48) 5,605 (307,435)
Other comprehensive income: H Al 4 Wk 2
Items that may be reclassified to ] 3 50 AR 5 2
profit or loss: HH -
Exchange differences reclassified to EHR A E BN EA A
profit or loss on disposal of subsidiaries 5 %5 1 BE L 25 B - 43,565
Exchange differences on translation of WMBE I EFEEZ
foreign operations ifE 5%, 7% %A - 2,938
Share of other comprehensive income of JRE A B 2 A R 2 HoAth
an associate ERTRE - 20
- 46,523
Items that will not be reclassified to NEHFENGHER @G Z
profit or 10ss: HH :
Fair value changes of equity investments N FRAEFE A H A A T
at fair value through other W 4 2 A E A RE
comprehensive income 5 ) - (20,000)
Other comprehensive income for the year AR A A T R 8 - 26,523
Total comprehensive income/(expenses) AN A T R (B S0
for the year A 5,605 (280,912)

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Fra Rt S H AR A T i R 3R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE20204F 12 A 31 H 1L 4 ¥

2020 2019
2020 4 2019 4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
iiga ANR¥FL AR¥TIT
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: N F A AR N R
(fe5 18) -
Owners of the Company AN EHEA N
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations LREESS R S
i i F1,Ofs 18) 6,179 (209,493)
Loss from discontinued operation KA DA R R - (101,987)
6,179 (311,480)
Non-controlling interests I FE B RE 25
(Loss)/profit from continuing operations H R AR
1 (ks ) i Fl (574) 4,217
Loss from discontinued operation H B &R R - (172)
(574) 4,045
Total comprehensive income/(expenses) T 5 A A T 0 5
attributable to: (BH =) #a %
Owners of the Company ENY/NESIE RSN 6,179 (284,957)
Non-controlling interests I e I HE 75 (574) 4,045
5,605 (280,912)
Earnings/(loss) per share B M i %5 ,7 Ok 18) 15
From continuing and discontinued operations 2 H £ 4 £8 & I £ ¢ 1k
E
— Basic (RMB cents) =3 A (NRE W) 0.30 (15.11)
— Diluted (RMB cents) ot T AUN ) 0.30 (15.11)
From continuing operations A B R R T
— Basic (RMB cents) —EA(NR WD) 0.30 (10.16)
— Diluted (RMB cents) — (R ) 0.30 (10.16)
From discontinued operations A H B IR ¥
— Basic (RMB cents) e TN VNG - (4.95)
— Diluted (RMB cents) — (N R ) - (4.95)

T AT R

SF R
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RS RTINS
As at 31 December 2020
2020412 A 31 H

2020 2019
2020 4¢ 2019 4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
fif 3 AR¥FLE AR¥EFI
Non-current assets Ik W By & A
Property, plant and equipment ESE: F & & 16 64,608 160,993
Right-of-use assets i HE & 17 117,880 152,289
Other intangible assets HoAth 4 T A 18 23,439 11,455
Goodwill [k 19 5,725 5,725
Interest in an associate A R /N e 20 - -
Interest in joint ventures /NI 21 6,473 7,310
Equity investments at fair value through e O oAl wT A H A A T
other comprehensive income I 25 B B AR % 22 - 20,000
Deferred tax assets I GIE Bl JH E 23 53,884 59,103
Long-term deposits, other receivables and = W ¥ 4 - R i IE
prepayments K FE AT R 26 176,131 28,520
448,140 445,395
Current assets i B
Inventories & 24 336,813 510,578
Trade receivables & 5y e U B TE 25 202,787 286,940
Other receivables and prepayments b i K TE R TE A 3K 26 228,005 84,992
Current tax assets R 31 B0 T & E 681 3,619
Financial assets at fair value through AR AERGZ
profit or loss 4 & E 27 - 65,300
Pledged bank deposits O I SR AT A7 3K 28 - 20,000
Bank balances and cash WRATH R LB & 28 546,391 401,057
1,314,677 1,372,486
Current liabilities i B £ fE
Trade and bills payables B 5 e A R I R A R 29 183,344 127,206
Other payables b AF 3 IH 30 148,125 132,232
Contract liabilities B H A 31 21,506 26,932
Lease liabilities HEAMR 32 22,812 40,645
Current tax liabilities R i TE £ 10,590 6,709
386,377 333,724
Net current assets i B RS WA 928,300 1,038,762
Total assets less current liabilities o SR Al = W 1,376,440 1,484,157
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
LEE AR LR

As at 31 December 2020
JA20204F12 431 H

2020 2019
2020 4 2019 4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

Bt &1 ARBEFT ARWFTT

Non-current liabilities Ik W By A AR
Lease liabilities IR = 32 49,162 83,887
Net assets & E T 1,327,278 1,400,270
Capital and reserves AR KAk
Share capital B A% 34 209,097 209,097
Reserves it fhi 1,108,864 1,120,714
Total equity attributable to owners A E R ON RE AL ARRE 23

of the Company 1,317,961 1,329,811
Non-controlling interests I ¥ B HE £5 9,317 70,459
Total equity AR A 1,327,278 1,400,270
The consolidated financial statements on pages 84 to 195 were approved %5 84 % 195 19 4% & B B ¥t & 742021 43 87
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2021 and ~ H 29 H 4 3 = & b 1 J& 3% i 71 4% > 6 iR
are signed on its behalf by: TN A REE
Yuan Zhenhua Wu Weiming =R 2 e 4 W
Director Director EH EH
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

/N 3L 224
o HE 4 B2 B 3
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#ZE20204F 127 31 A Ak 4R &

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

RATEANENES
Shares held Equity
under the PRC  Sharebased  investment  Accumulated Non-
Share Share  shareaward  sfatofory compensation  revaluation profits/  Translation conrolling
capital -~ premium scheme Teserve Teserve TEServe (Losses) reserve  Subofal  interests  Total equify
fhhg HRhA
Bitles  nREE ERG RARE BHEN/
Bt RbEE  HRE BE O ORERE  ZERE BB KOG it oREREE A&
RBOW — RMBUW  RMBUO  RMBUMD - RMBUW - RMBUW - RMBUW RMBUNM - RMBUW - RMBUW  RMBUW
ARETT ARETD ARETT ARETD LEETD ARETL ARETD ARETT ARETD ARETL ARETR
Balance at | January 2019 RO00EL IR I8 W01 602 0y 286768 - - T (e L8147 N6 LA
Profl(Los)for the year ERif/ g8 - - - - - - (4 N 1 7 Y T € 1
Othercomprehensive incomeexpensey) A IARAE/ (5]
for the year
~Echnge diffeences o rnshionof ~—— ~J B AL HHELN
foreign operation EizH - - - - - - - 198 193 - 198
- Share of other comprebensive incomeof - ~E BB AT Z L B2 TRE
associate - - - - - - - 0 0 - 0
~Bxchange differences reclassiied o proitor ~EF A HES ERELARE
loss on disposal of subsidiaries NELEE - - - - - - - 14,365 14,365 - $,365
~Fair valu change of equiy imvestments at fair -S4 A BR A 2 62
value through oter comprebensive nome. AR AR ERD - - - - - (20.000) - - (20,000) - (20.000)
Total comprehensive expensesfor theyear /[0 & 7 3 S840 - - - - S0 (I 4653 (84) A5 8091
Transfer g - - - AN - - @m - - - -
Disposalof subsidiaries HEHBAR - - - - - - - - - 6,708 6,708
AC31 December 019 and LSRR
| January 2020 ROWELAH W07 G6MI (44 28945 - (000 548 m 1l 049 1400270
Total comprehensive ncome for the year 49 AlESE - - - - - - 6,79 - 6,79 (574) 5,005
Disposal o equiy imesmentsatfirvae 4 E 5 A AR AL M2 B &
through other comprehensive income LhERE - - - - - 20,000 20,000) - - - -
Acguistion of partie inerestna subsidiery 4%~ B AR 2 7
(Note 39(a) (&390 - - - - - - () - ) sy @I
Dividends paid tonon-<ontolling shrehoders 13 E¥ AR A 2 B 4 - - - - - - - - N N ¥ ]
Equity-setfed shere award NERSENRARBHA
scheme (Note 3) (B - - - - 130 - - - 250 - 250
Tranfer o awarded shares wpon FEREZLBRE ()
vesting (Nete ) - - 633 - (250) - - - - -
Trngfer ag - - - 4 - - (44) - - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEREAR - - - (14550) - - 114350 - - - -
At 31 December 2020 RONERANR DI ) (580 175389 - - 086 m 131 37 1
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GoBemER

For the year ended 31 December 2020

B A 20204F 12 A 31 H 1E4F

2020 2019
2020 4¢ 2019 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBEFT ARWFTT
Cash flows from operating activities REAKBWHBWH SR E
Profit/(loss) before income tax Bk fir £5 B A AL ks 38) 14,813 (199,921)
Adjustments for: )
Amortisation of intangible assets 4 T E BB 2,640 9,209
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment E R S E A R 42,636 85,205
Depreciation of right-of-use assets fdi A HE & RE BT 39,461 63,719
Finance costs B AR 5,274 40,696
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate A AR — [ T 4 2 )OI - (1,008)
Gain on modification of right-of-use assets and & 2t i i # & & M A0 & A
lease liabilities P& (11,808) (1,719)
Gain on concession of lease payment B A OB e 2 I A (6,108) -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and S AR N R 2 I AR
equipment a77) (1,064)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of subsidiaries R A B 2 (U 3R) s 1R (23,546) 62,154
Impairment loss on property, plant and E R N RN R
equipment - 53,247
Impairment loss on long-term deposit 1% WA % 4 Bk (H 5 18 - 1,200
Impairment loss on prepayment A AT 3O (E K R - 10,000
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets o1 FME ¥ E e (E i 4R - 4,804
Impairment loss on other intangible assets HC Ay 6T A (R H - 32,689
Impairment loss on joint ventures & 8o F W E R - 4,781
Impairment loss on an associate = /NN RN i - 2,375
Interest income on long-term Trade Debts R 5 &R Bl A (3,023) -
Interest income on bank deposits SRAT A KA Bl A (7,637) (4,555)
Income from other financial assets HoAh 4 RlE E Uk A (106) (2,750)
Reversal of write-down of inventories 7 10 77 B WO 2 n] 2 B
to net realisable value (2,019) (21,689)
Reversal of impairment provision in respect of T8 [l BF 5 IR WK T I el (EL 9 A
trade receivables (5,515) (13,445)
Share of profit of associates o3 Ak 8 2 A i - (L,651)
Share of loss of joint ventures AR /NIl R 837 4,713
Share-based payment expense DLy A 2 B 32 2,530 -
Written off of property, plant and equipment ERR SN &Lk - 12,446
Written off of other intangible assets A B15 HCAth, 06 TR 76 -

THERBERARAR T REFEERE
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2020 2019
2020 4¢ 2019 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FLE AR¥EFI
Operating cash flows before working capital R A S W) AR B A R
changes 48,328 139,436
Change in inventories e (30,816) 92,056
Change in trade receivables B Gy I Rk TE 5 ) 69,095 11,914
Change in other receivables and prepayments A 1 i R TE K A A 3K A B 51,702 58,777
Change in trade payables B G WEAT BRI 22 ) 56,998 19,809
Change in other payables A R AT B 5 ) 8,556 187,907
Change in contract liabilities BHAEEE (5,426) (18,347)
Change in provisions BT - (5,490)
Change in long-term deposit =W % & 52 ) 1,181 1,255
Change in financial assets at fair value o AR ARG 2 & EE
through profit or loss 5 ) 65,300 (65,300)
Cash generated from operations MEEBEMELZ A 264,918 422,017
Interest paid B £ F] B - (17,051)
Income taxes paid B} fir 15 i (28,921) (77,649)
Net cash from operating activities B ER IS H & #E 235,997 327,317
Cash flows from investing activities R HBRE BB e
Acquisition of partial interest in a subsidiary e S — (A A JaS A W] 2 AR HE (59,717) -
Change in pledged bank deposits O K7 SR AT A 5 H) 20,000 (20,000)
Interest received from bank deposits £ W SR AT AE A B 7,637 1,552
Income received from other financial assets i H A 4 7T E R A 106 2,750
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from WERE AR ZBHEGRE)
disposal of subsidiaries WA R (2,260) 295,560
Payments for acquisition of property, T 2 B B SRR A A A
plant and equipment (33,298) (97,450)
Payments for acquisition of intangible assets e i A R R A R (9,833) (46,170)
Proceeds from disposal of equity investments B e A A E FF A H A 4 T ik
at fair value through other comprehensive fi 2 B A AR & A5 3K
income 20,000 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, 2 M A KR T A
plant and equipment IH 5,848 6,212
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities & w4
5% (51,517) 142,454

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN n= ANl = = 2
M ilf{',j»_’rflL'jll X

For the year ended 31 December 2020

B A 20204F 12 A 31 H 1E4F

2020 2019
2020 4 2019 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FLE AR¥EFI
Cash flows from financing activities R H L& BB R
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders O 9k 72 A AR o i 2 (21,410) -
Lease interest paid SR EN=IpsY (5,274) (26,412)
Repayment of borrowings B - (277,520)
Repayment of lease liabilities 3% il & A 1 (12,462) (50,476)
Net cash used in financing activities Fl TG B AT OB A U R (39,146) (354,408)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 4 IR 4 4 1E W B A 145,334 115,363
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January RIATEM B & LB & EEY 401,057 288,974
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes Hh B [ 22 52 8) 1 5% B - (3,280)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December MRI2ABIEMBEES R SEHD 546,391 401,057
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year, ERBERBEEFHEHD W
represented by
bank balances and cash WATH B LB & 546,391 401,057
THEBRBEERARAR  —F RAREFERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&30 I 5 e R Bl e

For the year ended 31 December 2020
W E 20204 12 4 31 H 1L 4

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

C.banner International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Bermuda under the Companies Act as an
exempted company with limited liability on 26 April 2002. The
address of its registered office is Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31
Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10, Bermuda. The address of its
principal place of business is Unit 2904, 29th Floor, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong. The Company’s
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries,
associate and the joint ventures are principally engaged in
manufacture and sale of branded fashion footwear and retail of
toys. The principal activities of the subsidiaries, the associate and
the joint ventures of the Company are set out in notes 42, 20 and
21 respectively. The Company and its subsidiaries are collectively

referred to as the “Group”.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi

(“RMB”), which is the functional currency of the Company.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued
by the International Accounting Standard Board (“IASB”) that
are relevant to its operations and effective for its accounting
year beginning on 1 January 2020. IFRSs comprise International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”); International Accounting
Standards (“IAS”); and Interpretations. The adoption of these
new and revised IFRSs did not result in significant changes to
the Group’s accounting policies, presentation of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and amounts reported for the

current year and prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)
The Group has not early applied any new or revised IFRSs that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period, except for the
amendment to IFRS 16 “COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions”.
Impact on the application of the amendment to IFRS 16 is

summarised below.

Amendment to IFRS 16 “COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions”

IFRS 16 was amended to provide a practical expedient to lessees in
accounting for rent concessions arising as a result of the COVID-19
pandemic, by including an additional practical expedient in IFRS
16 that permits entities to elect not to account for rent concessions
as modifications. The practical expedient applies only to rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of COVID-19

pandemic and only if all of the following criteria are satisfied:

(a)  the change in lease payments results in revised consideration
for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than,
the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the

change;

(b) the reduction in lease payments affects only payments

originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

(c) there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions

of the lease.

Rent concessions that satisfy these criteria may be accounted
for in accordance with this practical expedient, which means the
lessees do not need to assess whether the rent concession meets
the definition of lease modification. Lessees shall apply other

requirements of IFRS 16 in accounting for the rent concession.

456 PSR I 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
#ZE20204F 127 31 A Ak 4R &

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)
Amendment to IFRS 16 “COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions”
(continued)

Accounting for rent concessions as lease modifications would
have resulted in the Group remeasuring the lease liability to reflect
the revised consideration using a revised discount rate, with the
effect of the change in the lease liability recorded against the
right-of-use asset. By applying the practical expedient, the Group
is not required to determine a revised discount rate and the effect
of the change in the lease liability is reflected in profit or loss in
the period in which the event or condition that triggers the rent

concession occurs.

The Group has elected to utilise the practical expedient for all
rent concessions that meet the criteria. In accordance with the
transitional provisions, the Group has applied the amendment
retrospectively, and has not restated prior period figure. As the rent
concessions have arisen during the current financial period, there is
no retrospective adjustment to opening balance of retained earnings

at 1 January 2020 on initial application of the amendment.

The application of the new or revised IFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group will not have material impact on the consolidated financial

statements of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs and the applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by revaluation of the

investments which are carried at their fair values.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires the use of certain key assumptions and
estimates. It also requires the directors to exercise its judgements
in the process of applying the accounting policies. The areas
involving critical judgements and areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to these consolidated financial statements

are disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of

these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant

activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Consolidation (continued)

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties,
to determine whether it has control. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise

that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date

the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a loss
of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value of
the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment
retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the
net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill relating
to that subsidiary and any related accumulated foreign currency

translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by

the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between the non-controlling shareholders and owners of the

Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity
as owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised

directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of
a subsidiary in a business combination. The cost of acquisition
is measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and contingent
consideration. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the services are
received. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the

acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s share
of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit
or loss as a gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to the

Company.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combination and goodwill (continued)

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its acquisition-date
fair value and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is added to the cost of

acquisition to calculate the goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity interest in
the subsidiary were recognised in consolidated other comprehensive
income (for example, equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income), the amount that was recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised on the same basis as would be

required if the previously held equity interest were disposed of.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might
be impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. The method of measuring impairment losses
of goodwill is the same as that of other assets as stated in the
accounting policy below. Impairment losses of goodwill are
recognised in consolidated profit or loss and are not subsequently
reversed. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition for the

purpose of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate share
of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and

liabilities at the acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of an entity but is not
control or joint control over those policies. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible, including potential voting rights held by other entities,
are considered when assessing whether the Group has significant
influence. In assessing whether a potential voting right contributes
to significant influence, the holder’s intention and financial ability

to exercise or convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially recognised
at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate in an
acquisition are measured at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities
is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included in the carrying
amount of the investment and is tested for impairment together
with the investment at the end of each reporting period when there
is objective evidence that the investment is impaired. Any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated

profit or loss.

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and its share of
the post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in the
consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements
are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. If
the associate subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes
recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the

profits equals the share of losses not recognised.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Associates (continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a loss
of significant influence represents the difference between (i) the
fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that associate and (ii) the Group’s share of
the net assets of that associate plus any remaining goodwill relating
to that associate and any related accumulated foreign currency
translation reserve. If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture, the Group continues to apply the

equity method and does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by

the Group.

Joint arrangement

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two or more parties
have joint control. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control. Relevant activities are activities that
significantly affect the returns of the arrangement. When assessing
joint control, the Group considers its potential voting rights as
well as potential voting rights held by other parties, to determine
whether it has joint control. A potential voting right is considered

only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a joint venture.
A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets,
and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A
joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the

arrangement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Joint arrangement (continued)

In relation to its interest in a joint operation, the Group recognises
in its consolidated financial statements, its assets, including its
share of any assets held jointly; its liabilities, including its share
of any liabilities incurred jointly; its revenue from the sale of its
share of the output arising from the joint operation; its share of
the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation; and
its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly,
in accordance with the IFRSs applicable to the particular assets,

liabilities, revenues and expenses.

Investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially recognised
at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the joint venture in an
acquisition are measured at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the joint venture’s identifiable assets and liabilities
is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included in the carrying
amount of the investment and is tested for impairment together
with the investment at the end of each reporting period when there
is objective evidence that the investment is impaired. Any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated

profit or loss.

The Group’s share of a joint venture’s post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and its share of
the post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in the
consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements
are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds
its interest in the joint venture, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
venture. If the joint venture subsequently reports profits, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share of

the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Joint arrangement (continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a joint venture that results in a
loss of joint control represents the difference between (i) the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that joint venture and (ii) the Group’s share
of the net assets of that joint venture plus any remaining goodwill
relating to that joint venture and any related accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve. If an investment in a joint venture
becomes an investment in an associate, the Group continues to
apply the equity method and does not remeasure the retained

interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in
the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Renminbi, which is the

Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised in profit

or loss.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates at

the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of that

gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into the Company’s

presentation currency as follows:

(i) Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at

the date of that statement of financial position;

(i) Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the exchange

rates on the transaction dates); and

(iii)  All resulting exchange differences are recognised in

the foreign currency translation reserve.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(¢) Translation on consolidation (continued)
On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the foreign currency translation
reserve. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in consolidated profit or loss as

part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing

rate.

Property, plant and equipment
Land and buildings comprise mainly factories and offices.
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit

or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at rates
sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual

rates are as follows:

Buildings 4.5%
Machinery 9%
Furniture and fixtures 5%-33%
Motor vehicles 18%

Leasehold improvements useful life or over the term of the

lease, whichever is shorter
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting

period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount

of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and corresponding
lease liabilities when the leased assets are available for use by
the Group. Right-of-use assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation of right-of-use
assets is calculated at rates to write off their cost over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
The principal annual rates are as follows:

Land use rights 50 years
Buildings over the lease term of 1 year to 13 years
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount
of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities, lease payments
prepaid, initial direct costs and the restoration costs. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the lease payments
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate
can be determined, or otherwise the Group’s incremental borrowing
rate. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on

the remaining balance of the lease liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expenses in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms. Short-term leases are leases with an
initial lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets are
assets of value below US$5,000 (approximately equivalent to

RMB35,000).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets

The brand of Hamleys Global with indefinite useful life is stated at
cost less any impairment losses. Impairment is reviewed annually
or when there is any indication that the brand of Hamleys Global

has suffered an impairment loss.
Intangible assets other than the brand of Hamleys Global have
finite useful lives.

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation

and impairment losses. The principal useful lives are as follows:

Trademarks 5 years
Other brands (other than the Hamleys Global Brand)  2-10 years
Software 3-5 years
Concession agreements 6 years
Others 3-5 years
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average basis. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of all production
overhead expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting
charges. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion

and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments
(continued)

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets;
or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained
control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the

consideration received is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or

loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis where the purchase or sale of an asset is under a contract
whose terms require delivery of the asset within the timeframe
established by the market concerned, and are initially recognised at
fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs except in the
case of investments at fair value through profit or loss. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of investments at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or

loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(CONTINUED)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the following

categories:

()

Financial assets at amortised cost;

Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive

income; and

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets (including trade and other receivables) are
classified under this category if they satisfy both of the

following conditions:

- the assets are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect

contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the assets give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less loss allowance for expected

credit losses.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial assets (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

On initial recognition, the Group can make an irrevocable
election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate
investments in equity instruments that are not held for

trading as at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income are subsequently measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair values recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
equity investment revaluation reserve. On derecognition of
an investment, the cumulative gains or losses previously
accumulated in the equity investment revaluation reserve are

not reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividends on these investments are recognised in profit or
loss, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part

of the cost of the investment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified under this category if they do
not meet the conditions to be measured at amortised cost and
the conditions of debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income unless the Group designates an equity
investment that is not held for trading as at fair value through

other comprehensive income on initial recognition.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or losses
arising from changes in fair values recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value gains or losses recognised in profit or
loss are net of any interest income and dividend income.
Interest income and dividend income are recognised in profit

or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses
on financial assets at amortised cost. Expected credit losses are
the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of a

default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures the loss
allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the
expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of that financial instrument (“lifetime
expected credit losses”) for trade receivables, or if the credit risk
on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial

recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a financial
instrument (other than trade receivables) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the
loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal
to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses that represents
the expected credit losses that result from default events on that
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the

reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust the loss
allowance at the end of the reporting period to the required amount

is recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are also included as

a component of cash and cash equivalents.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under IFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific financial

liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using

the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least

12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in

which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue from contract with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer with reference to the customary business
practices and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. For a contract where the period between the payment by
the customer and the transfer of the promised product or service
exceeds one year, the consideration is adjusted for the effect of a

significant financing component.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contract with customers (continued)

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring control over a product or service to a
customer. Depending on the terms of a contract and the laws that
apply to that contract, a performance obligation can be satisfied
over time or at a point in time. A performance obligation is

satisfied over time if:

- the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the

benefits provided by the Group’s performance;

- the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that

the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

- the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to

date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue
is recognised by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains control of

the product or service.

Other revenue

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

()

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision
is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered by employees

up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are

not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees. Contributions
to the schemes by the Group and employees are calculated
as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement
benefit scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents

contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution
retirement scheme organized by the government in the PRC.
The Group is required to contribute a specific percentage of
the payroll of its employees to the retirement scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the retirement
scheme. No forfeited contributions may be used by the

employers to reduce the existing level of contributions.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the dates
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring costs

and involves the payment of termination benefits.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share-based payments
The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain

directors and employees.

Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at the fair value
(excluding the effect of non market-based vesting conditions) of the
equity instruments at the date of grant. The fair value determined
at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based
on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest and

adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting conditions.

For share awards that vest immediately at the date of grant, the
fair value of the share awards granted is expensed immediately
to profit or loss. Where the Company’s employee share trust
purchases shares from the market, the consideration paid, including
any directly attributable incremental costs is presented as “Shares
held under the share award scheme” and presented as a deduction

against equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.

When the awarded shares are transferred to the awardees upon
vesting, the related cost of the awarded shares previously
recognised in “Shares held under the share award scheme”, and
the related employment costs of the awarded shares previously
recognised in “Share-based compensation reserve” are transferred

to accumulated profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by
applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the

purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.

Government grants
A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching

to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised
in profit or loss over the period to match them with the costs they

are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they

become receivable.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Government grants (continued)

Government grants relating to the purchase of assets are deducted
from the carrying amount of the assets. The grant is recognised
in profit or loss over the life of a depreciable asset by way of a

reduced depreciation charge.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the

taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

3.

F 2 S BOR (8)

B Al Bh (%)

AT R AR BON A BD BB E
HRe THT (BL 109 o A I A5 A 0 I B
JH R AT AT 5 A DA AR AR A R

Bt
[ 5% B 45 R0 309 B IH R IR SE B A A
o

RS0 A BE T T AR 8 A A e R B v
A &5 o 8RB R A B 4R 4R A e
wR Y R A BT R > T R R B
i ) AS L A A 4 2 Y R SR B B AT
THBUWAKZHEHE > AR A HE
15 G Bl BA AT 40 B H o AR S F D
1B TH AR R O I OR 2 A
B R A Y B R RS

R S L TE H R e BV MBS R R
AT Y B T (SRR R SRR uE A R
19 AR M L AL 1) 2 A AR o AR A€ B R
BN — % BT AR SR BT R 2 A
o T A GE B IH R U TR AT RE A
JRE Rt A AT 3 £F S T P A
R 25 %R - R B) I BL s 1 2R B R
o By B JE A G IR e R o i BT Ry
22 FE) R R SR AR R — R R
SRR OB ik R N AN B2 B wT A
W 22 B (ZEH5 & fF B A6 o i At 5
B R B W E R RIS & SR A
HERAM-

2R B DL R G A Y R
fi T EE A R B R B T W 2 A D
i A< 52 AT W R O R Bt
| > HR% W W2 R AT RE A AN & TE AT
B3 B A ] 3 BR A o

A Sl YH B A8 TG % 0 T e s w B T
%
2



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to

allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or

settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax

assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purpose of allocating resources and

assessing the performance of the Group’s various lines of business.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Segment reporting (continued)

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of productions processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may be

aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group, the
operations and cash flows of which can be clearly distinguished
from the rest of the Group and which represents a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations, or is part of
a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is a subsidiary

acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or
when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held for
sale in accordance with IFRS 5, if earlier. It also occurs when the

operation is abandoned.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount is
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income, which comprises:
- The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation; and
- The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement to

fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets

or disposal group constituting the discontinued operation.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(a)

(b)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related

to the Group if that person:

®

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the

Company or of a parent of the Company.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

®

(i)

(iii)

iv)

)

The entity and the Company are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and

fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of

a group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the

Group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Related parties (continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies: (continued)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to

the Company or to a parent of the Company.

Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or not yet
available for use are reviewed annually for impairment and
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in

circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and other intangible assets except goodwill,
deferred tax assets investments, inventories and receivables to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of any impairment loss. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to

which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the

time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in

which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset or cash-generating
unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment

loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present

value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as

contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
#ZE20204F 127 31 A Ak 4R &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the reporting
period or those that indicate the going concern assumption is not
appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected in the financial
statements. Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when

material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATION

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors
have made the following judgements that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.

(a) Consolidation of entity of less than 50% equity interest
Although the Group owns less than 50% of the equity
interest in Jiangsu Meisen Footwear Company Limited,
Jiangsu Meisen Footwear Company Limited is treated as a
subsidiary because the Group is able to control the relevant
activities of Jiangsu Meisen Footwear Company Limited as a
result of the shareholders’ agreement between the Group and
other shareholders of Jiangsu Meisen Footwear Company

Limited.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year, are discussed below.
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4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATION (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(a)

(b)

()

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and
right-of-use assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is determined with reference to
the present value of estimated future cash flows. Where
the future cash flows are less than expected or there are
unfavourable events and change in facts and circumstance
which result in revision of future estimate cash flows, a

material impairment loss may arise.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group’s
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives and residual
values of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. The Group will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives and residual values are different to those
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been

abandoned or sold.

Intangible assets and amortization

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related amortization charges for the Group’s
intangible assets. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives and residual values of
intangible assets of similar nature and functions. The Group
will revise the amortization charge where useful lives and
residual values are different to those previously estimated,
or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or

non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATION (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

VAN
AN =]

4.

(d)

(e)

®

Measurement of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

The Group estimated the right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities based on the terms of the rental agreements and the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Estimates are required

in determining the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based on the
ageing and estimated net realisable value of inventories. The
assessment of the allowance amount involves judgement and
estimates. Where the actual outcome in future is different
from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of inventories and allowance charge/
write-back in the period in which such estimate has been

changed.

Provision for impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts
based on assessments of the recoverability of the trade and
other receivables, including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each debtor. Impairments arise
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible. The identification of bad and
doubtful debts requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the actual result is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of
the trade and other receivables and doubtful debt expenses
in the year in which such estimate has been changed. If
the financial conditions of the debtors were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments,

additional allowances may be required.
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4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATION (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(g)

Revenue recognition in relation to the award credits
earned by the customers under the Group’s customer
loyalty programme

The Group reviews the total number of award credits
expected to be redeemed at the end of the year, taking into
accounts various factors including the number of award
credits not redeemed by the customers upon expiration.
The directors of the Company estimate that customers
will redeem the award credits under its customer loyalty
program in the valid period of the award credits in a manner
consistent with historical redemption pattern. This estimate
will be reviewed on an ongoing basis, and revision to the
expected number of award credits to be redeemed will be
made if there is significant difference between the actual
number of award credits redeemed and the expected number

redeemed in the future.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise

potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk
The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk
as part of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are denominated in United States dollars (“US$”), Hong
Kong Dollar (“HKS$”), European Dollar (“EUR”) and Great
British Pound (“GBP”) which are currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities.
The Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure closely
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency

exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the group entities sensitivity to
a 5% increase and decrease in RMB against the relevant
foreign currencies. 5% represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the reporting date on a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. A positive/negative number below indicates
a increase/decrease in profit (2019 decrease/increase in loss)
where RMB weakens/strengthen 5% against the relevant

foreign currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the trade and other receivables,
deposits, cash and bank balances and investments included
in the consolidated statement of financial position represents
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to

the Group’s financial assets.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to

customers with an appropriate credit history.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances and investments
are limited because the counterparties are banks with
high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating

agencies.

The Group considers whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of financial assets on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period by comparing the risk of
a default occurring as at the reporting date with the risk
of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers
available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking

information. Especially the following information is used:

- internal credit rating;

- actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the

borrower’s ability to meet its obligations;

- actual or expected significant changes in the operating

results of the borrower;
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
(b) Credit risk (continued)
- significant changes in the value of the collateral or in

the quality of guarantees or credit enhancements; and

- significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the borrower, including changes in the

payment status of borrowers.

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor is
more than 30 days past due in making a contractual payment.
A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails
to make contractual payments within 120 days of when they

fall due.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage
in a repayment plan with the Group. The Group normally
categorises a loan or receivable for write off when a debtor
fails to make contractual payments greater than 360 days past
due. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the
Group, if practicable and economical, continues to engage
in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable

due.

(¢) Liquidity risk
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements

in the short and longer term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5.

(CONTINUED)

(¢c) Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash flows, of

the Group’s financial liabilities is as follows:

A AR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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&l B A PR (A
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Total

At
Less than Between1  Undiscounted Carrying
1year and 5 years cash flow amount
D4 —ERE RIBBERE i T £
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000
ARWTLE  AR¥TL  ARWTT  AR¥TT

At 31 December 2020 #2020 12H31H

Trade and bills payables B0 JE A O R T Ao S 183,344 - 183,344 183,344
Other payables oA R HR 147,004 - 147,004 147,004
330,348 - 330,348 330,348

Total
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Less than Between 1 Undiscounted Carrying
1 year and 5 years cash flow amount
DR —ELE KWBBSRE SR (e
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5.

(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Interest rate risk

(d)

The Group’s bank deposits bear interests at fixed interest

rates and therefore are subject to fair value interest rate risks.

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from its

bank deposits. These deposits and borrowings bear interests

at variable rates varied with the then prevailing market

condition.

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets and

liabilities as at 31 December 2020, the Group’s operating

cash flows are substantially independent of changes in

market interest rates.

Categories of financial instruments at 31 December (e)

& il B PR (A
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W12 H 31 H 1 4 /b T B

2020 2019
2020 4 2019 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FILX ARWETIT
Financial assets: 4 i’ E
Financial assets at fair value through B RER AE G Z
profit or loss BREE
Mandatorily measured o il w1 - 65,300
Equity investments at fair value through &% 2 fo B 51 A H Ath & 17 i 25
other comprehensive income A 1% g - 20,000
Financial assets at amortised cost T B R A w4 A E
(including cash and cash equivalents) (LR KB EEEY) 1,112,638 782,652
Financial liabilities: <l
Financial liabilities at amortised cost i 8 85 LA HE R & B A 330,348 250,407
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

®

Fair values
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement

of financial position approximate their respective fair values.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair
value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs to

valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access at

the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date of the

event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

ey BT R I

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE20204F 12 A 31 H 1L 4 ¥

5. <l ke A BE (4)

(®

T R B B T A BR A )

A

B A OB IR UL R R e B AR 4R
P fOA E Ko @R R IR
T (B B A B A SRR AR

AP RITR T  { +
AMET AP S &
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B T < N S AE T AR M R
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
W E 20204 12 4 31 H 1L 4

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
(f)  Fair values (continued)

(i) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy

At 31 December 2019

5. <l ke A BE(4)

6 2 RfE(H)
() 2 oMl e e
72019412 H 31 H

Fair value measurements using:

FERLT 8 A Wbk 2 A Rl i &

Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
i it B B BEH At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETE ARBETFLZ ARBFZ ARBTE

Recurring fair value measurements: BN RET R

Financial assets at fair value through 4% /4 72 (H 71 A 8 % 1 4 A
profit or loss B
Unlisted wealth investment product ~ JF 1 7 8 Bf 7

Equity investments at fair value through % 73 ft (B 5 A 204 4 if i 4
other comprehensive income i) e A &
Private equity investments CUNI T X133

Total recurring fair value measurements #& % ¥ 2 1 (f 51 & 4 &6

(ii) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value
based on level 3:
At 31 December 2020

- - 65,300 65,300
- - 20,000 20,000
- - 85,300 85,300

) MIEPL=HEHD MG
B R B -
# 2020412 H 31 H

Equity

investments

Financial at fair value
assets at fair  through other
value through comprehensive

Description profit or loss income Total
AR
%R it AJEfb
FtABEN  REREEN
i it SHEE it A 4 B Mgt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFZ AREFT ARETE
At beginning of year i A 65,300 20,000 85,300
Disposal & (65,300) (20,000) (85,300)
Atend of year RER - - -

(#) Include gains or losses for assets held ~ (#)  FF A 45 B B 45 & 2 1

at end of reporting period I i 5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

) Fair values (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value
based on level 3: (continued)

At 31 December 2019

ey BT R I

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE20204F 12 A 31 H 1L 4 ¥

&l B A PR (A

H A RAL(E)
(i) PR = A R
B E B R ()
R20194- 12 31 H

Equity
investments

Financial assets at fair value

at fair value  through other
through profit ~ comprehensive
Description or loss income Total
/AN
bR/ I st A AL
FPARER  REdEN
i it THEE BARE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB 000
ANRETFL ARETL ARKETIL
At beginning of year AR 50,000 40,000 90,000
Total gains or losses recognised in T LR JE e R A 4
- other comprehensive income -t 2 s - (20,000) (20,000)
Purchases L35 65,300 - 65,300
Transfer to other receivables 0 3 B g R (50,000) - (50,000)
Atend of year R 65,300 20,000 85,300
(#) Include gains or losses for assets held — (#) =+ A 44 8 K I & 10
at end of reporting period I 4 o i 1R - (20,000) (20,000)

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair
value measurements

The Group’s financial controller is responsible for
the fair value measurements of assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes, including
level 3 fair value measurements. The financial
controller reports directly to the Board of Directors
for these fair value measurements. Discussions of
valuation processes and results are held between the
financial controller and the Board of Directors at least

twice a year.

(i) A< 5 W Br A Al R R K
o fuE wF R BT BR W AR
5 B N\ R 9 8
AR TR B AR B
W B R PR E E
ERAEGEAAE
WA =N fER R -
Wh B A B R R
WEZEARMERE-
W5 A B B R 49 AR
e bt Al (E R S A5 R
HEAT WY i o

THERBERARAR  —F REEERSE

133



134

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o PR TR B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
W E 20204 12 4 31 H 1L 4

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. 4@l a b5 B (%)

(CONTINUED)

) Fair values (continued)

(®

(iii) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group

and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair

value measurements (continued)

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will

normally engage external valuation experts with the

recognised professional qualifications and recent

experience to perform the valuations.

Level 3 fair value measurements

At 31 December 2019

2% fu il (41)

(i) A &R N A 1 R P R
AR AW
B 25 K i N BOBg B % ()
B =N REFE
EREE 1 Bl &3
AR R ERK R E
KR IY Ah ERAN (R
17 {H -

FE=RARMA R
A 20194F12 A 31 H

Effect on fair value

Description Valuation technique ~ Unobservable inputs for increase of inputs Fair value
LIPN-§ 3 DIIE ]
i 4t fii (575 iR 3 VN ¢ AREZEE AR
RMB 000
ARWT I
Financial assets at fair value Discounted cash flow  Rate of return of 2.29% Increase 65,300
through profit or loss
- Unlisted wealth investment
product
A REF ARG N2 H BB & i i 4 #2.29% 4 65,300
B E
—J b
Equity investments at fair value Selling price Selling price Increase 20,000
through other comprehensive
income
- Private equity investment
A REF AR E L &H (L Ly 20,000

e A4
—RAB AR E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operating segments are based on information prepared
and reported to the chief operating decision makers (“CODM”),
the board of directors of the Company, for the purposes of resource

allocation and performance assessment.

The Group has three reportable segments as follows:

- retail and wholesale of branded fashion footwear (“Retail

and wholesale of shoes™)

- contract manufacturing of footwear (“Contract manufacturing

of shoes”)

- retail of toys

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units that
offer different products and services. They are managed separately
because each business requires different technology and marketing

strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
those described in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
Segment profits or losses do not include loss on disposal of
subsidiaries, gain on deemed disposal of an associate, impairment
of an associate and joint ventures, share of profit/(loss) of an
associate and joint ventures, finance costs and income tax expense.
Segment assets do not include interest in an associate, deferred
tax assets, current tax assets, interests in joint ventures, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, and other unallocated
head office and corporate assets. Segment liabilities do not include

deferred tax liabilities and income tax liabilities.

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as if the

sales or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current market prices.

6.

THERBERARAR —F %

e B

5 A M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE20204F 12 A 31 H 1L 4 ¥

% 2 41 7 B R
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RN EZEERE AN BIA LA
ER R FTE Y E L S SV E Y
AR B o) B B 2 BLAT Al T &

ASE T = AT R AR

— AR EEE R E R (F
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- HBEASHLEE(GHLEER
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- HR=
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A4 B AT R WO R R IR E
i S M 5 I B 6 B B A o th R S
H S BE X R BRI BT B B B OR
W A B B ) o B A B

KL 2 W B FE O B AR B )
F M FE3 BT A & AR o 43 R A
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18 B B — IR W A 2 AR
— W) I R R A LI B
o A B 2 A B 8 A ALY i AL
(s 48) ~ BB BAS & B 44 B BH 52 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
W E 20204 12 4 31 H 1L 4

6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by

6. KB E K (4)

B RN R DI e

operating and reportable segments for the year: S s K ESE S TR
2020 2019
20204 2019%
Continuing Continuing ~ Discontinued
operations Total operations operations Total
RHER _ HEgE
ES At ¥ CHRIEEHR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ARBFE ARBFLZ ARKTET ARWTE ARETIL
Segment revenue 2 W
Retail and wholesale of shoes FERMERRE
~ external sales I g 1,379,398 1,379,398 1,625,685 - 1,625,685
- inter-segment sales =7 E A 1,609 1,609 - - -
Contract manufacturing of shoes ANEERE
— external sales =S ge 112,198 112,198 211,026 - 211,226
- inter-segment sales = H 8 33,666 33,666 112 - 12
Retail of toys nHTE
— external sales =S g 47,1 41,1 98,627 221,991 320,618
Segment revenue O £ 1,574,643 1,574,643 1,935,650 221,991 2,157,641
Eliminations i (35,275) (35,275) (112) - (112)
Group revenue A S 1,539,368 1,539,368 1,935,538 221,991 2,157,529
Segment results Ve
Retail and wholesale of shoes TEIMERE 2,989 2,989 70,520 - 70,520
Less: Written off of other intangible assets 3 : 4l BEMEY Y E (18) (18) - - -
2971 2971 70,520 - 70,520
Contract manufacturing of shoes BHEEHRRE 9,773) 9,773) 1,674 - 1,674
Retail of toys nA%E ‘ 4,238 4,238 (19,609 (26,060) (45,669)
Less: Written off of property, plantand i * # $ 41 3¢ + B 45 J 7k
equipment } - - (12,446) - (12,446)
Written off of other intangible assets ML EREE (58) (58) - - -
Impairment loss on long-term deposit Rl W EER - - (1,200 - (1,200)
Tmpairment loss on prepayment T 3R B B - - (10,000) - (10,000)
Impairment on right-of-use assets i JF B & 7 38 £ - - (4,804) - (4,804)
Impairment on property, plant and UERE VT R
equipment - - (53,247) - (53,247)
Impairment loss on other intangible Hoth e T 3 s
assets - - (32,689) - (32,689)
4,180 4,180 (133,995) (26,060) (160,055)
(2,622) (2,622) (61,801) (26,060) (87,861)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries R A J G g/ (B R 23,546 23,546 - (62,154) (62,154)
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate % E ¥ £F — [ B 2% 2 7 2 i 4 - - 1,008 - 1,008
Impairment loss on an associate — B ARz B ER - - (2,375) - (2,375)
Impairment loss on joint ventures AENAWEER - - (4,781) - (4,781)
Finance costs BF 5 A (5,274) (5,214) (19,556) (21,140) (40,696)
Share of profit of associate A1 N A i A - - 1,651 - 1,651
Share of loss of joint ventures MEEE AT ER (837) (837) 4113 - 4113)
Profit/(loss) before income tax B B 158 i i A/ (B 4 14,813 14,813 (90,567) (109,354) (199,921)
Income tax expense Jir 13 BB (9,208) (9,208) (114,709) 7,195 (107,514)
Net profit/(loss) for the year ER AL O R 5,605 5,605 (205,276) (102,159) (307,435)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by

ey BT R I

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE20204F 12 A 31 H 1L 4 ¥

28 oy B & OB (A7)

A AR B AR TR KC R I nT 2 ) A

operating and reportable segments for the year: Gy ERE K AR TR
2020 2019
2020 4 2019 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr AR¥TIT
Segment assets o W' B
Retail and wholesale of shoes TE LA EEE 1,782,968 1,773,392
Contract manufacturing of shoes R EE 164,215 119,151
Retail of toys I 2 & & 17,142 79,614
Total segment assets o BB & E R E 1,964,325 1,972,157
Eliminations Eal (262,546) (309,607)
Unallocated 43 i 61,038 155,331
Total consolidated assets A EEE 1,762,817 1,817,881
Segment liabilities 43 b £
Retail and wholesale of shoes TAE T e 352,930 209,657
Contract manufacturing of shoes G R EE R E 235,355 229,992
Retail of toys b B F AR 98,948 285,442
Total segment liabilities 4 AR A 687,233 725,091
Eliminations Eagc! (262,284) (314,189)
Unallocated & 43 Bt 10,590 6,709
Total consolidated liabilities A A EAE 435,539 417,611
T BE B R RO PR ) LF R R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 AR 2 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020
W E 20204 12 4 31 H 1L 4

6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. &E o0&k (4)

(CONTINUED)

Other segment information I {43 #B & Bl
Continuing operations
PRI
Retail and Contract
wholesale manufacturing Retail
of shoes of shoes of toys Total
TERMBRE AR%ERE NRZHE At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETLE  ARETZ  ARETT  ARETT
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HWE2020/F 12H31 H ILFFE
Depreciation of property, VESE ST i
plant and equipment 40,973 1,562 101 42,636
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ARG T 21,971 9,091 8,399 39,461
Amortisation of other intangible assets o Y e g 2,439 - 201 2,640
(Reversal of)/write-down of (10 /AT & TS
inventories to net realisable value FE (2,826) 807 - (2,019)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment TEE W - W Rkt 54,546 378 - 54,924
Purchase of intangible assets T B T A 16,473 - 11 16,484
Reversal of impairment provision in respect of 15§ 1] 5 5 REWST (1) ol (8¢ £
trade receivables (5,515) - - (5,515)
Gain on modification of right-of-use assets and Bl FIHE B A B £ 5
lease liabilities Wi (867) - (10,941) (11,808)
Gain on concession of lease payment A 3 2 s (214) - (5,894) (6,108)
Written off of other intangible assets Hi AT 18 - 58 76
Interest income on bank deposits AT A EIA (7,567) (61) ) (7,637)
Interest income on other financial assets oAb R B (106) - - (106)
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6.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A

R A

For the year ended

A A 3

31 December 2020

# 20204 1271 31 A 1R 4F )%
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. 4 4 & ¥l ()
(CONTINUED)
Other segment information (continued) I A 4y #B & R (4)
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
E S ERIEEH
Retail and Contract
wholesale  manufacturing Retail Retail
of shoes of shoes of toys of toys Total
TEL &8
HEEE EEHRE nALE RA%TE it
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB’000
ARBTE  ARETL  ARETZ ARETLZ ARKTZ
For the year ended BE019F12A310 1k
31 December 2019 FE
Depreciation of property, ERR L YT
plant and equipment & 61,909 1,113 7,045 12,758 82,825
Depreciation of right-of-use assets i fil # & /& 7 & 20,597 8,122 20,510 14,490 63,719
Amortisation of other HAb I & 7 4 8
intangible assets 1,594 - 1,944 5,671 9,209
(Reversal of)write-down of inventories (1 [2]) /i i 77 & %
1o net realisable value & B E (21998) 309 - 18,469 (3.220)
Purchase of property, IEEWE - HE R
plant and equipment B} 91,863 2,255 7 3,260 97,450
Purchase of intangible assets M 8 642 - 34,537 4,340 39,519
Reversal of impairment provision B 5 SRR
in respect of trade receivables 1 360 (L 48 £ (13,445) - - - (13,445)
Impairment loss on long-term deposit 1% 4 4 i (£ 5 18 - - 1,200 - 1,200
Impairment loss on prepayment RN 3 - - 10,000 - 10,000
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets {3 i HE # 7 il (B 5 12 - N 4,804 - 4,804
Impairment loss on property, plant and 4 % ~ ## K 3t
equipment W18 1 - - 53,047 - 53,047
Impairment loss on other intangible % flt ¥ ¥ i i i
assets BH# - - 32,689 - 32,689
Written off of property, HWE - HE R
plant and equipment & M - - 12,446 - 12,446
Interest income on RATAE A B A
bank deposits (4,462) (63) (30 - (4,555)
Interest income on HieBERED
other financial assets FLEHA (2,750) - - - (2,750)

T

| R R4 T AT BR A )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A A R T

For the year ended 31 December 2020

#ZE20204F 127 31 A Ak 4R &

6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.
(CONTINUED)
Geographical information
The Group’s operations are mainly located in the People’s Republic

of China (the “PRC”).

The Group’s revenue from external customers, based on location
of the domiciles of its group entities and information about its non-
current assets by geographical location of the assets are detailed

below:

28 oy B & OB (4])

b I R
ASE B B E B AR PR IE AN
B ([ ]) -

A4 AR B SRR T (B M E
kAT A S W ) 2 iR o DA K AR
T AE )y 2 R B R R RE
pac

Revenue from external customers

PR - ol &
2020 2019
2020 4 2019 4
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWTLZ ARWFTIT

The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC™) 1 %8 A [ 2L A1 B ([ 2 )

The United States of America X F B A R
Discontinued operations B#&IEEH
Total M Et

There is no single customer contributing over 10% of the total sales

of the Group during both years.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

1,428,442 1,724,312
110,926 211,226

- 221,991
1,539,368 2,157,529
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE20204F 12 A 31 H 1L 4 ¥

gee A

MRE

7. REVENUE 7. Wi

2020 2019
2020 4F 2019 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIX ARWETT
Retail and wholesale of shoes T Rt B e 1,379,398 1,625,685
Contract manufacturing of shoes SRt ESE 112,198 211,226
Retail of toys It B EE 47,772 320,618
Total revenue O 4 1,539,368 2,157,529

Representing VLT H b
Continuing operations PR R T 1,539,368 1,935,538
Discontinued operations B &Ik T - 221,991
1,539,368 2,157,529

T B B B AT IR A R
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Aoy B R R I

For the year ended 31 December 2020
W E 20204 12 4 31 H 1L 4

7. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers:

W ik (4)

LR- ety ol &~ iR g i

2020 2019
2020 4 2019 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIr AR¥ETIT
Geographical markets H P T35
The PRC RN 1,428,442 1,724,312
The United States of America X H B G R 110,926 211,226
United Kingdom of Great Britain and KA TN Je A % W WS
Northern Ireland EC| - 176,939
Other countries HoAh B % - 45,052
Total M5 1,539,368 2,157,529
Major products/services W E R
Retail and wholesale of shoes TE LA EE 1,379,398 1,625,685
Contract manufacturing of shoes GRAEEE 112,198 211,226
Retail of toys R % & 47,772 320,618
Total F 1,539,368 2,157,529
Timing of revenue recognition T w8 B £ 1Y I [
At a point in time A — I R e 1,539,368 2,157,529
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE (CONTINUED)

Retail and wholesale of shoes

The Group manufactures and sells self-developed brands and
licensed brands footwear to the customers. Sales are recognised
when control of the products has transferred, being when the
products are delivered to a customer, there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the

products and the customer has obtained legal titles to the products.

Wholesale of shoes to customers are normally made with credit
terms of 60 to 75 days. For new customers, deposits or cash on
delivery may be required. Deposits received are recognised as
a contract liability. The Group would also allow longer credit
period for certain customers with long term relationship. No credit
terms are granted to retail customers. In respect of sales to retail
customers made through cooperative stores, credit terms of 30 to

90 days are granted to cooperative stores.

A receivable is recognised when the products are delivered to
the customers as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is required before

the payment is due.

Contract manufacturing of shoes

The Group acts as an original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”)
or original design manufacturer (*ODM”) to provide products
and services for international shoes companies dealing in export.
Sales are recognised when control of the products has transferred,
being when the products are delivered to a customer, there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance
of the products and the customer has obtained legal titles to the

products.

Wholesale of shoes to customers are normally made with credit
terms of 60 days. For new customers, deposits or cash on delivery
may be required. Deposits received are recognised as a contract

liability.

A receivable is recognised when the products are delivered to
the customers as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is required before

the payment is due.

THERBERARAR —F %

o BB TR B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE20204F 12 A 31 H 1L 4 ¥

W ik (4)
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e MimmELEEFRTEEMK -
MEBSIEEHEE TEEEFP M
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gee A
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P55 e = I 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020
W E 20204 12 4 31 H 1L 4

7.

REVENUE (CONTINUED)

Retail of toys

The Group sells toys to the customers. Sales are recognised when
control of the products has transferred, being when the products are
delivered to a customer, there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customer’s acceptance of the products and the customer
has obtained legal titles to the products. No credit terms are granted

to customers.

Customer loyalty programme

Within its retail segment, the Group operates a loyalty points
programme, which allows customers to accumulate points when
they purchase products in the Group’s retail stores. The customers
are entitled to redeem the award credits as cash to be used in future
sales upon the fulfilment of certain criteria as set out in the terms

and conditions of the Group’s customer loyalty programme.

Consideration received for the products sold within the retail
segment is allocated between the products sold and the points
issued based on the relative stand-alone selling prices of the
products sold and the points issued. The stand-alone selling
prices of the points are determined by applying the expected cost
plus a margin approach. The value allocated to the points issued
is deferred and recognised as a contract liability. Such contract
liability is recognised as revenue when the points are redeemed or

expired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 AT 2

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE20204F 12 A 31 H 1L 4 ¥

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES AND 8. H fs Wt A KB X P K H

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES fi W 25 K N6 18
2020 2019
2020 4 2019 4
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B ARWTFLE AR¥FTT

Other income H At e A
Government grants BT M Bl 4 (i) 29,788 43,530
Interest income on bank deposits SRAT A7 3K RLE A 7,637 4,555
Interest income on other financial assets b 4 Bl & & 19 F 5
e A 106 2,750
Gain on disposal of property, 2 AR R
plant and equipment Z g g 177 1,064
Interest income on long-term RIWE 5 6% 0 R B
Trade Debts (Note 26) e A (K 5% 26) 3,023 -
Service fee income from A& B T B A R IR B
a former subsidiary g A (ii) 6,861 -
Others HoAte 10,182 7,711
57,774 59,610
Other gains and losses 3 W 25 % G 18
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain FE 52, (&5 #8) i 45 1% 41 (5,373) 1,142
Reversal of impairment provision in M E 5 R K T Y
respect of trade receivables Uk (H 5 A 5,515 13,445
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate % 1 ¥ ¢ — [#] B & A 7]
Z W 45 - 1,008
Impairment loss on property, L/E SR E & R A
plant and equipment 5 5 - (53,247)
Impairment loss on long-term deposit I3 iR RIEY i) - (1,200)
Impairment loss on prepayment TA AT 3CE0E 18 - (10,000)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets il Fil i & & Uk (H f5 18 - (4,804)
Impairment loss on other intangible assets H fill # J& ¥ /& i {H 5 48 - (32,689)
Impairment loss on joint ventures G o Al R - (4,781)
Impairment loss on an associate Wt 7 oy m) B (E s 1R - (2,375)
Gain on modification of right-of-use assets & B F #E & &= X &
and lease liabilities Rl (i) 11,808 1,719
Gain on concession of lease payment B AT 3O e 2 ik g (iv) 6,108 -
Written off of property, plant and T8 W 2 - B TR
equipment - (12,446)
18,058 (104,228)
Total other income and expenses and HoAth e A K B DL K
other gains and losses HoAth W 55 M s E Y
Exil 75,832 (44,618)

THRBBHERARAT % BRI
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A A R T

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#ZE20204F 127 31 A Ak 4R &

8. OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES AND 8.

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES (CONTINUED)

Hofth e A K B X DL &K
il W i K s 18 (4])

2020 2019
2020 4 2019 4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E ARBEFT ARETT
Representing PLF 3 H b
Continuing operations FRA R 2 75,832 (45,840)
Discontinued operations B # Ik - 1,222
75,832 (44,618)
Notes: [ 3 -
(i) The amount mainly represented the subsidies received from the local (i) AR T E A I B E E BT A

governments in the PRC where the Group entities were located for

encouragement of business development activities in the local areas.

(ii) The amount represented the service fee income based on 5% of sale

proceeds charged for inventories sold on behalf of a former subsidiary.

(iii) ~ The amount mainly represented the gain on early termination of rental

agreements.

(iv)  The amount mainly represented the concession of lease payment resulted

from the COVID-19.

H BRSO Y B R
B 4% R 3 ) 2 W Db e

(i) A% 4 8 R OT % BRI 5% it U
i B Ja 2 A i AE T i R R B
LA -

(i) % 4 FH AR R A A R FL B R
i 2 -

(iv) % 4% 245 N COVID-191f % % 1)
LA AT Ko

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BB A

2020 2019
2020 4F 2019 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥Fr AR¥ETIT
Leases interests L& A B 5,274 26,412
Interest on borrowings £ ) B - 14,284
5,274 40,696

Representing VLR Hh
Continuing operations ER R 5,274 19,556
Discontinued operations B2 - 21,140
5,274 40,696
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 AT 2

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE20204F 12 A 31 H 1L 4 ¥

10. INCOME TAX 10. Fr 15 B

2020 2019
2020 £ 2019 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥FrL AR¥TIT
Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax R4 B8 35 — v [ A 3 P A5 B
Provision for the year =N i 30,294 72,473
Over-provision in prior years R E e i R ) (3,467) (7,986)
26,827 64,487
Current tax — PRC withholding tax R399 B JE — v 2 7 0 B 8,913 2,375
Current tax — United Kingdom Corporation Tax R #] B TH — 9% [ 1> 2 Bl
Provision for the year GENE 0 - 507
Deferred tax (Note 23) K 3E B OTE (B 52 23) (26,532) 40,145
Income tax expenses REYNC 53 9,208 107,514 147
Representing VLR Hh
Continuing operations FRAE R W 9,208 114,709
Discontinued operations Bk T - (7,195)
9,208 107,514

T B B B AT IR A R
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I/Z{TI/Jﬂ/) IhtM n|

For the year ended 31 December 2020
W E 20204 12 4 31 H 1L 4

10. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 10.

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the product
of profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations multiplied by

the PRC enterprise income tax rate is as follows:

i 75 Bt (4)

JT A5 Bl B S B RE 4 40 8 26T R B
FE i Ak 48 e DL A B A 2 P
5 BBL % 2 HERE S W

2020 2019
2020 4F 2019 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIL ARWTIT

Profit/(loss) before tax B BT G A1) 4R 14,813 (90,567)
Tax at the income tax rate of 25% o i 15 BLBL K 25% 5 H 2

(2019: 25%) (Note) B IH (2019 4F © 25%) (Ff 5E) 3,703 (22,642)
Tax effect of share of profit of an associate 43 A6 B N T i R 2 B

P x - (100)
Tax effect of share of loss of joint ventures A6 G s A T s 1R 2 BB
2 209 1,465

Tax effect of expenses not deductible BMBLE BB ?F LR a3

for tax purpose Z BB 5 B 400 19,950
Tax effect of income not taxable bk A =R ZE XA (PN

for tax purpose 2 B B (7,249) (1,050)
Over-provision in prior years W 1E A R A (3,467) (7,986)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KRB IE R 2 B ﬂ?"? 5 f‘% 6,101 51,547
Effect of different tax rates of group entities ~ F& o [8] DA #h 7] ¥4 i [ 73

operating in jurisdictions other than the PRC 4 [ B il 1 [F] Bi % 2§ & 377 (3,515)
Tax effect on withholding tax on distributed 1 B =R 43 i i #1] 76 1 Bl 2

profits in the PRC Bl w2 % 8,913 2,375
Tax effect of other temporary differences HC At A e R T N 25 A 2 BLES

not recognised s 221 20,467
Reversal of deferred tax assets recognised in 4§ [1] #4 £ 4F JF e 58 2 4E %t

prior years Bl 6 & 7 - 54,198
Income tax expense for the year AR T 15 BB 3 9,208 114,709
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Note:

The Group is not subject to taxation in the Bermuda and the British Virgin Islands
(“BVI").

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for the year ended
31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 as the Group did not generate any
assessable profits arising in and derived from Hong Kong in both years.

United Kingdom Corporation Tax has been provided at a rate of 19% on the
estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been provided at a rate of 25% on the estimated
assessable profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: 25%).

Under the relevant tax law and implementation regulations in the PRC,
withholding income tax is applicable to dividends payable to investors that are
“non-PRC tax resident enterprises”, which do not have an establishment or place
of business in the PRC, or which have such establishment or place of business but
the relevant income is not effectively connected with the establishment or place of
business, to the extent such dividends have their sources within the PRC. Under
such circumstances, dividends distributed from the PRC subsidiaries to non-PRC
tax resident group entities in Hong Kong shall be subject to the withholding tax at
5%. Dividend distributed from a PRC subsidiary to a non-PRC tax resident group
entity in BVI shall be subject to the withholding tax at 10%.

456 PSR I 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE20204F 12 A 31 H 1L 4 ¥

10. v 75 Bt (4)

Wi 5 -

A A RS TS L R o R (12K JE R
LORE B D) B RS A BLOR -

A 2020412 H31 H K%20194 12 H31 H 1E4F
J Sl i s A s R A5 B R ER A 0 0 Hh i A B
[ RS AW AR G AR A W A A AT ] E AR B
it F) o

o A B OO PR B 2019 12 A3 H Ik
AF B 2 AR RE SRR Vi R 4% B 9% w1 R 48 A o

] A 2T 1 OB COAR BB %2 20204F 12 A 31
AR AR BE 2 Al 51 0 SR BE 3 A B R 25% (2019
AF 0 25%) w9 A o

R o I A B B UK B R b k) E A T TR
BB R R A B B 2 LR
B BT N R T A Sy R A4 TE A T AR B
% 45 B R B S R S B R R
i > SR B A R 7 R 3K 5 BT (E AR
BE T A5 B T b B CHL A o B R LR A R S
SE U BT BB o WR MU UL b BB A R
s G IR o BB e R 4R R
Fie # M A S% B B R MR AR -
B B 2y R IR B T S R i R 0 IR R
BLBS o B A 3 4R [ B8 A0 BB R 10% 1)
Tt R SR TR AT BL

THERBERARAR  —F REEERSE

149



150

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

gee A

MR

P 55 k2 P

For the year ended 31 December 2020
W E 20204 12 4 31 H 1L 4

11. PROFIT/LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Profit/(loss) for the year has been arrived at after (crediting)/

11. 2R B # 8 R 8 ¥ % F
M i A 18
4 iy R OB ) B A G A9

charging: DLF & A
2020 2019
2020 4 2019 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FILX ARWETIT
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment L/ EE Y & R 42,636 70,067
Depreciation of right-of-use assets fdf P HE & 7E BT 39,461 49,229
Amortisation of other intangible assets HoAth 48 T & EE B 2,640 3,538
Directors’ emoluments A 9,904 6,447
Auditors’ remuneration % B 1 4 1,830 1,100
Cost of inventories sold BB 7R RA 678,700 776,452
Reversal of write-down of inventories to 1 ) {7 & AW 2 T 5
net realisable value (included in cost of FHEFLERFEEN
inventories sold) B AR) (2,019) (21,689)
Reversal of impairment provision 125 8] 5 g JIE A0 K TR Y TR
in respect of trade receivables B (5,515) (13,445)
Share-based payment expenses DA A7 3 AT 2 BH 3 2,530 -
Impairment loss on property, L/ & LR RN R
plant and equipment - 53,247
Impairment loss on long-term deposit 1 e 48 Bk (E S 1R - 1,200
Impairment loss on prepayment TA AT 3COEUE 18 - 10,000
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets PR RE & 7 UMH A 4R - 4,804
Impairment loss on other intangible assets HoAth S8 T B A R (H A 1B - 32,689
Impairment loss on an associate — [ WA N ED (L RS 1R - 2,375
Impairment loss on joint ventures G 8 A R - 4,781
Written off of property, plant and equipment 55 W 2E - B SR - 12,446
Written off of other intangible assets B At e TR 76 -
Employee benefits expenses fiE & & | B 52
— Salaries, bonus and allowances — WA AL AL R 328,042 454,885
— Retirement benefits scheme contributions — B AR AE A ErEfE K 21,853 71,576
349,895 526,461
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SEE ARSI B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020
# 20204 1271 31 A 1R 4F )%

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 12. &1L EH
2019
2019 4F
Notes RMB’000

Ff 51 ANR¥T T

Revenue i i 7 221,991
Cost of sales B 5 B AR (115,910)
Gross profit E A 106,081
Other income and expenses and A i A B B ST B H AR I %R

other gains and losses I 18 8 1,222
Distribution and selling expenses o3 85 B 88 B 32 (105,055)
Administrative and general expenses AT B & — g BH 3 (28,308)
Finance costs 05 A 9 (21,140)
Loss before income tax [ Jor A5 B 1T G 18 (47,200)
Income tax credit Jr 45 Bl ik % 10 7,195
Loss for the year N R (40,005)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries B E A R R 1R (62,154) 151
Loss for the year from discontinued operation 2 H T & 1k 3 % % 4F W 5 8 (102,159)

THERBERARAR  —F REEERSE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SEE ARSI B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#ZE20204F 127 31 A Ak 4R &

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 13. ## - ¥ 2478 A B K E

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS B M
The emoluments paid or payable to the directors of the Company O A B AT 7 A 4 F)FE 2 B4
were as follows: T
Contributions
to retirement
Salaries and benefits ~ Share-based
Directors’ fee  other benefits scheme payments Total
18R Bk A VLR 2
EE2 K HmA A d g ERHLH wit

RMBUOO  RMBOWO  RMBUMO  RMBOO  RMB'OD
ARKTE  ARKTE ARKFrn ARKFr  ARKTx

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HENNELRANE LEE

Executive directors: AhES:

Chen Yixi e - 2455 16 2507 4978

Huo Li (Note ) A (M) - 1,002 7 - 1,009

Yuan Zhenhua Rk - 1,302 7 - 1,309

Wan Xianghua B - 943 7 - 950

Wu Weiming KA - 943 19 - 962

Non-executive director: FanEs:

152 Miao Bingwen Zmx 174 - - - 174

Independent non-executive directors: BUlan®Es:

Kwong Wai Sun Wilson R 14 - - - 174

Li Xindan 0 1 - - - 1

Zheng Hongliang s 1 - - - 174
696 6,045 56 2507 9,904

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEN9F12A3H LFE

Executive directors: HhEs:

Chen Yixi R - 2957 16 - 2973

HuoLi Eh - 1019 19 - 1,038

Yuan Zhenhua EiRE - 801 19 - 820

Wan Xianghua (Note ii) B3 (W ki) - 58 2 - 60

Wu Weiming (Note i) S (i) - 54 2 - 56

Zhao Wei (Note ii) 8 f (i) - 670 19 - 689

Non-executive director: FanEs:

Miao Bingwen 2K 177 - - - 17

Independent non-executive directors: BulgfEs:

Kwong Wai Sun Wilson Bl 177 - - - 177

Li Xindan ZL 17 - - - 177

Zheng Hongliang LIE 17 - - - 177

Zhang Zhiyong (Note i) fEH (W) 103 - - - 103
811 5,559 7 - 6,447
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13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

i. Mr. Huo Li resigned as an executive director on 4 February 2021.

ii. Mr. Wan Xianghua and Mr. Wu Weiming appointed as executive directors
on 29 November 2019.

iii. Mr. Zhao Wei resigned as an executive directors on 29 November 2019.

iv. Mr. Zhang Zhiyong resigned as an independent non-executive directors on
23 July 2019.

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included three (2019: four) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. For the year ended 31
December 2020, the emoluments of the remaining two individuals

are set out below:

A AR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
# 20204 1271 31 A 1R 4F )%

13. #BH - FRITHANER KR
B M & (4)

fff 5 -

i. NS 2021 F2 A4 H B AT AT
#H

ii. HOREHE A R % MW SR R R 201948
1LH29 A M ZAT AT H F -

iii. B R R 20194F 11 H 29 H & AT
fTHES-

iv. % & 5 e A R 20194E7 H 23 H AT 8
SLHEMATHE R -

RAFERE, ALH A A HEH AL

A5G = 4 (20194F = Y 44) # = > Ll

&R WA B ST AT e BE 2020 4F 12

HA3IHIEFE > g T4 AL 2 M

L H P
2020 2019
2020 4E 2019 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TTE ARWTT

Salaries and other benefits

#r
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme B AR AE A EE S R

Total £ FF

3,597 632
14 18
3,611 650

THEMBERARAT % R RS
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LA IS B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#ZE20204F 127 31 A Ak 4R &

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 13. #%H - ¥ 2B A B ki
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS B M & (4)
(CONTINUED)

The emoluments fell within the following band: B 4 A7~ 5 A
2020 2019
2020 £ 2019 4%
No. of No. of
employees employees
fE B % H & 8 % A
Nil to HKD1,000,000 0 # 7T % 1,000,000 #& 7T - 1
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 # 75 % 2,000,000 #5 ¢ 1 -
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,001 # 76 % 2,500,000 # JC 1 -
2 1
During the both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group AR AR B R s AS £E E A 4 ) AT ]
to any of the directors or the highest paid individuals as an WO A Ao O b S A A T
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation o EBHEMARAEFRBFRZHEZ
for loss of office. £ 8 - m% AV By L EE R A A o
14. DIVIDENDS 14. % B

The directors of the Company did not recommend the payment of

any dividend for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

From continuing and discontinued operations

Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to owners
of the Company is based on the profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company of approximately RMB6,179,000 (2019:
loss approximately RMB311,480,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares (deducted shares held under the share
award scheme of 2,286,000 (2019: 15,874,000)) of 2,061,765,000
(2019: 2,061,126,000) in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share
There was no dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding for
both years. Accordingly, the diluted earnings/(loss) per share is

same as basic earnings/(loss) per share for both years.

From continuing operations

Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share from continuing
operations attributable to owners of the Company is based on
the profit for the year from continuing operations attributable to
owners of the Company of approximately RMB6,179,000 (2019:
loss approximately RMB209,493,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares (deducted shares held under the share
award scheme of 2,286,000 (2019: 15,874,000)) of 2,061,765,000
(2019: 2,061,126,000) in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share
There was no dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding for
both years. Accordingly, the diluted earnings/(loss) per share is

same as basic earnings/(loss) per share for both years.

o BB TR B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE20204F 12 A 31 H 1L 4 ¥

15. # I W sk Ol 18)

RAFHEEERORIEEE
5 A 48Ol 18)

AN T HEA N AL A A R T
el FNYNICIE RNy R
A R 6,179,000 7T (20194« Ji5 18 49
£ N B ¥311,480,000 7)) K it 4F A 8%
AT 0 5 28 R R ST 149 S (o AR 0
1y 5 B St B R A 0O 452,286,000 i
(20194 : 15,874,000/8))2,061,765,000
J (20194 : 2,061,126,000 %) ifi 715

5 M 0 W 2 O 1)
7 AR AR A B R AT AE AL BB
5 B 28 B o R UL i W R AR R
2 AR (s 1R B A A
AR, (s 48) MR -

PR F

B 5 AW %O 8)

AN T B ON EAL R B R A AR
BB EAZFTIREANFES
N BE G 2 B 4 48 AR R i A
# N B 156,179,000 7T (2019 4F 5 16 45
5 N B 209,493,000 70) B i 4F I8 B 41
4 5 S R o R S 25 (R AR 48 R
5% J8 51 ) F5 A 09 % 132,286,000 % (2019
4 115,874,000 11%) ) 2,061,765,000 J1 (2019
4F 1 2,061,126,000 /1) 111 55 -

15 M 8 M 2 O 1)
7 AR AR A B R AT AE AN BB
5 B 3 28 B o TR UL aZ W R AR R
2 AR (s 18 B A A
A aR, (s 48) MR -

THERBERARAR T REFEERE
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S5 AR 2 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#ZE20204F 127 31 A Ak 4R &

15. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 15.
(CONTINUED)

From discontinued operations

Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share from discontinued
operations attributable to owners of the Company is based on
the profit for the year from discontinued operations attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately RMB Nil (2019:
loss approximately RMB101,987,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares (deducted shares held under the share
award scheme of 2,286,000 (2019: 15,874,000)) of 2,061,765,000
(2019: 2,061,126,000) in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share
There was no dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding for
both years. Accordingly, the diluted earnings/(loss) per share is

same as basic earnings/(loss) per share for both years.
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*H DK IEEE
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HBREARBADBREALAEAR A
R SRR | 7 RN I FON
RMWZ 00194 A A AR WK
101,987,000 78 ) K J& 4F I8 85 47 1Y % 8
Fe Jonn R ST Ay S B AR B A 003 5 B ST
B EE A0 B 2,286,000 1 (2019 4F
15,874,000/5) ) 2,061,765,000/8% (20194F
2,061,126,000 1) 1M 51 5. -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020
# 20204 1271 31 A 1R 4F )%

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

A

R A

16. P 3€ ~ 1k & B wk i

Property,
plant and
equipment
Fixtures under
and Motor Leasehold finance ~ Construction
Buildings ~ Machinery  equipment vehicles  Improvements leases ~ in progress Total
HEH K
BT
HEhE 0k HE
By B KERRE i kB kit GRIR wit
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARBTE AREFL ARETL ARETL AREFr ARKTE ARKFE ARFTL
Cost Rk
At ] January 2019 R09EIATH 149,805 52,074 133,99 U3 203,736 15,171 - 579,353
Additions RE - 4,098 4064 1,167 88,121 - - 97450
Disposals k3 - (8.34) (3.399) (4519 (1,606) - - (17368)
Written off s - - - - (15316) - - (15316)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERE A - - (107481) - (85,309) - - (192,790)
Transfer to right-of-use assets HRERELE - - - - - (15,171) - (15,171)
Exchange adjustment EXAE - - 419 - 3l - - 750
At31 December 2019 and TR2019% 12131 B 2020
1 January 2020 F1A1H 149,805 47828 1597 241 189957 - - 436,608
Additions iE - 553 4331 810 20,048 - 28982 5494
Disposals it - (1587) (6797) (3799) (15,149) - - (3.93)
Writien off fit 4 - - - - (21.386) - - (21,386)
Disposal of subsiciaries (Note 38) 1 & 4 7 ([ #£.38) (149.805) - - (1255) (89,187) - - (251,547)
At31 December 2020 2008121311 - 40,794 131 5877 77483 - 28982 178467
Accumulated depreciationand R 7H 0% KW B R
impairment losses
At 1 January 2019 HN9FIA LA 55425 36,446 94,023 19,226 103,090 11,532 - 319,742
Charge for the year R 6,823 3,614 487 2597 67,299 - - 85,205
Tmpairment loss HEER - - - - 53047 - - 5347
Disposals k3 - (6.355) (24%) (3.931) - - - (12720)
Writen off fit - - - - (2870) - - (2870)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEREL - - (T3444) - (82554) - - (155.998)
Transfer to right-of-use assets WEERELE - - - - - (11,532) - (11,532)
Exchange adjustment Ei#E . - 75 - 266 - - 541
THERBERARAR R REEE RS
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SEE ARSI B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#ZE20204F 127 31 A Ak 4R &

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥ % ~ ¥ 2% & % 5 (%)

(CONTINUED)
Property,
plant and
equipment
Fixtures under
and Motor Leasehold finance ~ Construction
Buildings ~ Machinery  equipment vehicles  Improvements leases  in progress Total
HERE
BT
LERY T
By BG RERRMH R HEREEE Rt  ERLE wit
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000
ARBTT ARBTT ARKTT ARETT ARKTT ARETT ARETT ARKTx
At31 December 2019 and 019124310 &
1 anuary 2020 WO LATH 62248 B105 B 182 1847 - - IS
Charge for the year EBEY 3,980 3,075 1,678 852 33,051 - - 42,636
158 Disposdls & - (1.066) (3,086) (636 (478) - - (28261)
Written off s - - - - (27,586) - - (27386)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 38) HERER
(HfiE38) (66,228) - - (10.992) (71,329) - - (148,545)
At31 December 2020 20209 12A31H - 9714 21,884 4426 571833 - - 113,859
Carrying values i
At31 December 2020 20204 1231 H - 11,080 3447 1451 19,648 - 28,982 04,608
At31 December 2019 2019 12 A31H 81,557 14,123 4305 3,529 51479 - - 160993

No impairment loss has been recognised for the year ended 31  # % 2020412 4 31 H 1F 4F J&F HE 86 7 32 3
December 2020. 18 -
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16.

17.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

456 PSR I 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE20204F 12 A 31 H 1L 4 ¥

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥ 3 - ¥ % B &% i (#8)
(CONTINUED)
As at 31 December 2019, the Group carried out reviews of the FA20194E12 A31H > i AL B W
recoverable amount of its property, plant and equipment as a BE AL TG e AR Y B
result of the deterioration of the markets of the Group’s products. A B R A T i IR 4 BE AT AR o
These assets are used in the Group’s retail of toys segment in ZEEERR ALY b AE
the PRC. The Group expects the toys segment in the PRC will By BB o A 42 [ T B Y B B 4y
continuously incurring losses. The reviews led to the recognition WA EE A ZEFENASA
of an impairment loss for all property, plant and equipment of LEER B PR IR S AT A
the toys segment of approximately RMB53,247,000 that has been Pk HE 2 WEERS A
recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2019. [ 553,247,000 70 - A8 B & A 19 AT lL
The recoverable amount of the relevant assets of RMB300,000 has | 4 %8 & N R %300,0007C > J5 R 18
been determined on the basis of their value in use using discounted A4 (A I BR R A B B 4 U
cash flow method (level 3 fair value measurements). The discount BIE(E =N REFRE)EE -
rate used was 10%. FHG B % /5 10% -
LEASES AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. #8 K i ' E
Disclosures of lease-related items: LB A B TE B bR
2020 2019
2020 4 2019 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIL ARWETIT
At 31 December: W12 H31H -
Right-of-use assets il AR B
— Land use rights — b Al RE - 12,622
— Land and buildings — b R M 117,880 139,667
117,880 152,289
Lease commitments of short-term leases a6 30 FH B Y RS 3,054 3,395

THEMBERARAT % R RS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEA BB R I 5T

For the year ended 31 December 2020

& 20204F 12 H 31 H R4 B

17. LEASES AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
(CONTINUED)
The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash flows, of the

Group’s lease liabilities is as follows:

17. H8 K £ B A ()

ERANHRAERE L AEEAME
SRR R NI T 1

2020 2019
2020 ¢ 2019 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr AR¥TIT
— Less than 1 year — D 14 23,363 41,662
— Between 1 and 2 years —1Z24F 15,445 29,890
— Between 2 and 5 years —2 & S4F 29,367 40,869
— Over 5 years — i 5 4F 14,093 30,999
82,268 143,420
2020 2019
2020 4 2019 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIL ARWETIT
Year ended 31 December: BAE12H31HIEFE
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets A EE T EE N
— Land use rights — 1 Al RE 224 397
— Land and buildings — b R #E 39,237 63,322
39,461 63,719
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets fd A HE A 7E B R 4R - 4,804
Lease interests A B 5,274 26,412
Expenses related to short-term leases BT A B A B 2 B S 21,729 19,675
Expenses related to leases of low-value assets 5 3 IF 48 {1 & 2 & & (H
that are not short-term leases HEMHER B2 40 2,721
Expenses related to variable lease payments a3 N = =R A
not included in lease liabilities MESFA Rz XL 2,514 463
Total cash outflow for lease R R el X 42,019 99,747
Additions to right-of-use assets fifi W& R E 60,276 10,136
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17. LEASES AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

(CONTINUED)

The Group leases various land use rights and land and buildings.
Lease agreements are typically made for fixed periods of 50 years
and 1 to 13 years respectively. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
and the leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing

purposes.

Some of the Group’s property leases contain variable lease
payment terms that are linked to sales generated from the Group’s
shops. There is a wide range of sales percentages applied. Variable
lease payment terms are used to minimise the fixed costs for newly
established shops. Variable lease payments that depend on sales
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the condition
that triggers those payments occurs. A 5% increase in sales in
2020 across all shops in the Group with leases containing variable
lease payment terms would increase total lease payments by

approximately RMB 126,000 in 2020 (2019: RMB308,000).

ey BT R I

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE20204F 12 A 31 H 1L 4 ¥

17. M8 K £ B A ()

A% 42 E A £ W - b i RE DL R £
b Ko BT o AR W RR Y R E B B
WA B S04F K1 B34 o LR
Th 4 B 3 MG AT BE R - A KM
A TR B A K B A AR o L W R I A
it in AT o] %2 5% 5 1 A 6 B A 1
VB A8 68 F & 10 8 410 5 -

AEAF T EME QT ALEEE
Fl T B A B S A B Y R s A B AT K
fhe s o JUT M 8 65 | 4y LU RE R 2 o
mJ g8 AR B A5 ROR i 2 AT RE D BT B
[ D N e A I 7 T R D
58 A0 B A RO M R % AR AT 3O e 44
oA )R R RS W AR o AS SR W BT A
O R & & n] 8 AR B AT 3 30
A 2020 4F 1) 8 B 184 0 5% 1% 42019 4F
T A5 3 48 4 1 T 49 N R 126,000
JC (2019 4F = A B 308,000 7T) °

THEMBERARAT % R RS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 AR 2 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020
W E 20204 12 4 31 H 1L 4

18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18. H ftb B & &

Concession
Trademark Brand Software  agreements Others Total
T B h UG 8T HAb wiit
RMB'000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
ARBTE ARETLZ ARFFL ARBTE ARETT ARETH
Cost A
At 1 January 2019 2019 1A 1A 7,897 826,086 22,944 34,093 3,728 894,748
Additions e 2 - 5,076 34,409 9 39,519
Witten off il 85 - - - - (110) (110)
Disposal of subsidiaries Ry A (1,732) (815,773) (15,446) (34.231) (1,771) (874,953)
Exchange adjustment HE 54, i % 31 3,903 9 138 7 4,088
At31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 #20194F 12 31 H &
2000 1A 1H 21 14216 12,583 34,409 1,863 63,292
Additions e - 5 16,479 - - 16,484
Witten off i (221) - (6,241) - - (6,462)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 38) HERE A
(B 55 38) - - (4,510) - (1,863) (6.373)
At 31 December 2020 20204 12 131 A - 14221 18311 34,409 - 66,941
Accumulated amortisation and kB T WA 4R
impairment losses
At 1 January 2019 R2019F 1A 1H 5171 200,210 16,740 17,671 2,590 242,988
Charge for the year LN BT 98 4,876 1,810 2,047 178 9,209
Impairment loss W i 18 - - - 32,689 - 32,689
Witten off il 85 - - - - (110) (110)
Disposal of subsidiaries iy A (5,688) (199,510) (8,262) (18,266) (1,539) (233,265)
Exchange adjustment HE 54, i % 29 152 71 68 6 326
At31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 1 20194F 12 31 H &
2000 1H1H 216 5,728 10,359 34,409 1,125 51,837
Charge for the year AR B X - 1,432 1,208 - - 2,640
Written off s (216) - (6,170) - - (6,386)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 38) BB
(Hf&E38) - - (3,464) - (1,125) (4,589)
At 31 December 2020 20204 12 431 H - 7,160 1,933 34,409 - 43,502
Carrying values I T £
At 31 December 2020 20204 12 431 H - 7,061 16,378 - - 23,439
At 31 December 2019 2019412431 H 5 8,488 2,004 - 738 11,455
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18.

19.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(CONTINUED)
No impairment loss has been recognised for the year ended 31

December 2020.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group carried out reviews of the
recoverable amount of its other intangible assets as a result of
the deterioration of the markets of the Group’s products. These
assets are used in the Group’s retail of toys segment in the PRC.
The Group expects the toys segment in the PRC will continuously
making losses. The reviews led to the recognition of an impairment
loss for all other intangible assets of the toys segment of
approximately RMB32,689,000 that has been recognised in profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2019. The recoverable
amount of the relevant assets of RMB nil has been determined on
the basis of their value in use using discounted cash flow method

(level 3 fair value measurements). The discount rate used was 10%.

GOODWILL

The amount of goodwill recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position, arising from the acquisitions of subsidiaries,

is as follows:

18.

19.

ey BT R I

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE20204F 12 A 31 H 1L 4 ¥

i 8 & & (4)
H,E 2020412 A 31 A 1F 4F FF HE 4 T
ERR RN R =

2019412 H31 H » | % A 4 H W
FE i 3 . AS A2 B A OB
P 1Y AL R R AT R - X
G E AR A A E R b B B B E 4y
# o A A [ T b B Y Be B A E A
FEELEH ZEKHNLSAEH
A ZE20194F 12 H 31 H Ik 4F B2 v 8
T of W RR B L4k A BT oA A SO
R Wk R A A R 132,689,000
JG o AH BB EE A RT i I A A O N R
W 22 o0 > T MR AR B SE 0 R fE (I
RO A BL B & Bk (G =% A R
(B 71 &) B oE o I B B A 10% o

(LR
7 B o S R UL 7 e R E A 13 O
(Y TNGICLE B X FURSE

RMB’000
AR T

Cost B AR
At 1 January 2019 R201941H1H 161,601
Disposal of subsidiaries & B A ) (155,876)
At 31 December 2019, 1 January 2020 and 2019412 H31 H ~ 20201 H 1 H &

31 December 2020 20204 12 H31 H 5,725
Impairment WA
At 1 January 2019 20191 H1H 155,876
Disposal of subsidiaries B B A A (155,876)
At 31 December 2019, 1 January 2020 and R20194F12 H31 H ~ 2020F1 H1H K&

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H -
Carrying values W A
At 31 December 2020 2020412 H31 H 5,725
At 31 December 2019 A 20194F12 A 31 H 5,725

THERBERARAR  —F REEERSE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SR IS Ff

For the year ended 31 December 2020
W E 20204 12 4 31 H 1L 4

19. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the cash generating units (“CGUs”) that are expected
to benefit from that business combination. The carrying amount of

goodwill had been allocated as follows:

19. 72 (4)

SEE B OF BT WU R i B
Vil VECR AR I O R e i )
CEEEMOREEAEEMD - M
BCIRWECE SR T

Goodwill
T

2020 2019
2020 4 2019 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥Fr AR¥TIT

Retail and wholesale of shoes & ]

Mega Brilliant International Limited (“Mega”) 3% %% Bl B¥ A FR 2~ @ ([ £ %)) 5,725 5,725

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGUs and their

major underlying assumptions are summarized below:

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based
on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by directors of the
Company covering a five-year period, and discount rate of 19%
(2019: 25%). Mega’s cash flow beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using an average 3% (2019: 5%) per annum growth
rate. Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate
to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted
sales and gross margin, such estimation is based on the unit’s
past performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount of Mega to exceed the aggregate recoverable

amount of Mega.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

b B G AR LAY AT i ]
JFCE AR B AR S A 2 A R N S

A R DA CE R DR W N
88 B A B FE SRR AL
AERETMEEE AN W E
B K 19% (2019 4F = 25%) 2 B Bl R 1%
2 B4 U TE WAE W o M T AR
Z 26 % B i R E - ¥3%(2019
AE SRy MR RMEE AT o FHE A
FE (2 HoAth 3 22 R 5% B A 58L&
WA U A B (IS TE B
KB L EME I RIEE A2
MEXREUREREHTHEEN
TR MR o g A S AT T 5% SR R
B2 AT A A BT AR B ) o % N g
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 AT 2

20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE20204F 12 A 31 H 1L 4 ¥

20. J7 W B 2 W) B RE 4R

2020 2019
2020 4 2019 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt ARETT
Unlisted investment: K EHHE:
Share of net assets JE AL & E 2,375 2,375
Goodwill RS 16,662 16,662
19,037 19,037

Impairments W AE (19,037) (19,037)

The associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial

statements using the equity method. The summarised financial

information presented is based on the financial statements of the

Wt 2 A U9 BE AR kR AR A MBS
R AR o BT 250l B R TS
B W 4 F BRI R S R

associates using IFRS. Iy B 5 S 2 o 165
% of ownership interests/
Name of associate Place of incorporation Principal place of operation  voting rights held by the Group  Principal activity
AR Z A RS
Uy A ik M3 3 EX 3£ 3151 REMZHNIL FEEH
2020 2019
20204 20194
United Nude international Limited The British Virgin Islands Hong Kong 19% 19% Branded shoes supplier
(“UN") and trading
United Nude international Limited 3 B J% 4 B & Fik 19% 19% B R R R
(TUNJ) 85

T B B B AT IR A R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SEE ARSI B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#ZE20204F 127 31 A Ak 4R &

20 INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2020, the operations of the associate continued
to incur operating losses and is expected to continue its downward
trends. The Group carries out impairment assessment on the
investment with impairment indications to assess the recoverable
amount of the interest in an associate. Impairment loss on the
Group’s equity interests in UN amounted of approximately
RMB2,375,000 was made for the year ended 31 December 2019.
The impairment loss mainly resulted from revision of financial
outlook of the associate and changes in the market environment
of the underlying business. The Group has not recognised loss for
the year amounting to RMB133,000 (2019: RMB Nil) for UN. The
accumulated losses not recognised were RMB133,000 (2019: RMB
Nil).

21. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES

20. 77 Bk & A 6 B BE  (4)

R20204F 12 H 31 H > B #& A 7 588
BEELBRXEI S EEZ TR
B o A SR T B BB B 5
F A AT WC(E RY Al R EE A T
BN AR OME SR R ] A R e B R
20194F 12 H31 H I 4F - B 3 A %
B ORUNM I RE 2 AN R 12,375,000
76 E Bk (8 e 4R - W (E G 4R 2 R
W A R BE B A R B IR XA B
2E TS T By B B Y B T 8K o A SR
MG A R UNBE 38 4F 0 s 4B N RO
133,000 76 (2019 4F = AN R H & Jo) »
filE 52 1 2 5 48 2 A 133,000 0
(20194F + AR ¥Z J0) »

21. &8 A A MR &

2020 2019
2020 4E 2019 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETT

Unlisted investments: FELEHRE:
Share of net assets JE 1 & B I E
Impairments RS

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s share of

the amounts of all individually immaterial joint ventures that are

accounted for using the equity method.

21. A8

ey BT R I

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE20204F 12 A 31 H 1L 4 ¥

oy ) B HE 4% (4E)

RN I A AR B A T RE ARk A
R IFAEBERGEAFASEDY
T 4% -

2020 2019
2020 4 2019 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETFILE ARHFIL
At 31 December: P12H31H :
Carrying amounts of interests HE £ W T (H 6,473 12,091
Year ended 31 December: BEI12H31H L4 -
Loss and total comprehensive expenses AF N i 18 R A T
for the year B 7 837 4,713

As at 31 December 2020, the bank and cash balances of the Group’

joint ventures in the PRC denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)

amounted to RMB 14,776,000 (2019: RMB25,436,000). Conversion

of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign

Exchange Control Regulations.

Notes:

Dongguan B&H Footwear Industries Limited # 5t 3% J# % 3 45 BR 24
(“Dongguan B&H”) is a 100% subsidiary held by Hong Kong B&H. The
principal activity of Dongguan B&H is manufacture and retail of branded
fashion footwear. The joint venture agreement of Dongguan B&H expired
in 2017. The Group and respective joint venture partners signed a deed on
12 December 2020, pursuant to which the Group agrees to waive its rights
and entitlements to any return of capital as well as any proceeds payable
to a shareholder upon liquidation of Dongguan B&H in relation to shares
in Dongguan B&H registered in its name.

Xuzhou C.banner Shoes Co., Ltd. (“Xuzhou C.banner”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement with
Madden Asia International Limited (“Madden Asia”) for the establishment
of SM (Jiangsu) Co., Ltd (“SM”). SM is owned as to 50% by Xuzhou
C.banner, and as to 50% by Madden Asia.

JR20204E 12 131 H » A& 4 )
B A s\ LN RN R D
FFEMRIT KRB S B AR
14,776,000 G (20194 : A R #¥
25,436,00000) » A R W 5 5 A0 K
JEL I SE R B A RE B O 1

fff S -

i. R EREEARA AR LR
hEBERL2EHA Z W E LA -
WEEE R THEF AAE MEE
PR R R ERZ A E L
A 1 R TR 2017 4F i I o A S K &
&N A AR R 20204F 12 H 12 H %
By AR PR UL > AR 4 R RS
B AT fa] A ] R0 HE R K A AR
DL e i 3 B R 5E 95 B I EE DL K &
ﬁ%%%“%%kﬁm%ﬁ~@%
Y AT AT BT 459 3H

ii. AN A B A MR A R RN T
HEEEARARTHMTTED
Bl Madden Asia International Limited
(IMadden Asial) % 57 fh 5% > &7 28 2
ML) ARAR(EZEHE]D -
2SRl RO T B A 50% I
1 Madden Asia # £ 50%

THERBERARAR  —F REEERSE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LA IS B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#ZE20204F 127 31 A Ak 4R &

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 22. # 2 ;A fA 5F A\ H {2 &\

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

e tE &l E E
2020 2019
2020 4 2019 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBEFT ARETT

Unlisted equity investments, at fair value FEdRARE UAARHE

I

The above investments represented investment in 3 /< % which
were intended to be held for the medium to long-term on initial
recognition. Designation of these investments as equity investments
at fair value through other comprehensive income can avoid the
volatility of the fair value changes of these investments to the

profit or loss.

On 22 January 2020, the Group disposed of 2.78% of the registered
capital of # /& % at a consideration of RMB20,000,000.
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P B ERERERE LG SE R
PR U e AR AR R RO R A -
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A20204F1 A 22 H > A 4E @ 4% 0 (E A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SRA BB IR BN 5T

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE20204F 12 A 31 H 1L 4 ¥

23. DEFERRED TAXATION 23. & %t B JH
The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) and assets DL £ AR 4 [ W R Y O B R A B IH
recognised by the Group. (&) K& E -
Fair value
adjustment

on intangible

assets

Unrealised arising from
profitin ~ Write down ECL Contract  acquisition of
inventories  of inventories ~ Taxlosses allowances liabilities  a subsidiary
TR e

W B

EREH LN ERRER

WA REER RMER  BREE  GARE AAHNR
RMBOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBUOD  RMBUW  RMBUW
ARBTE ARWTZ ARWTZ ARKTZ ARKTxZ ARKTE

Others Total

S fil
RMBOO)  RMB'000
ABBTE ARKTI

At 1 January 2019 20191 418 45,191 22,903 31,405 5494 6,378 (117,883) 6417 (%)
(Charge)/eredit to profitor loss ~ (FHE& %) /5 A & 11,793 (14,894) (26,982) (5.434) (5.921) 1,293 - (40,145)
Disposal of subsidiaries LG E A - (6.407) (4441 - - 116,803 (6.443) 99,512
Exchange differences ERER - - 18 - - 213) 2% (169)
At31 December 2019 and 2019 12310 )

1 Jamuary 2020 W0FIATH 56,984 1,602 - 60 457 - - 59,103
(Charge)leredit to profit or loss ~ (FI #4571 6%) /3F A B 4 (1,446) 608 24,300 Ml 279 - - 26,53
Disposal of subsidiaries R A (31,751) - - - - - - (31,751)
At 31 December 2020 2004 12731 23,781 220 24,300 401 3,186 - - 53,884
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for DUR Z 0 B 15 4R BB R A8 B JE 4
financial reporting purposes: [P

2020 2019

2020 4F 2019 4F

RMB’000 RMB 000

AR¥FILX ARWTIL

Deferred tax assets I SiE B T K 53,884 59,103

T B B B AT IR A R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

VAN
Pt
S a

AT B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
W E 20204 12 4 31 H 1L 4

23.

24.

DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period the Group has unused tax
losses of RMB234,365,000 (2019: RMB370,906,000) available
for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of RMB97,200,000 (2019: RMB Nil) of such
losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining RMB137,165,000 (2019: RMB370,906,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised
tax losses are losses of RMB137,165,000 (2019: RMB310,079,000)
that will expire in 2025. Other tax losses may be carried forward

indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised is RMB789,432,000 (2019:
RMB1,082,292,000). No liability has been recognised in respect of
these differences because the Group is in a position to control the
timing of reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable

that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

23. & %€ B JH (4)

R R . AR E KB A B
H AN R 234,365,000 7T (2019
A0 N R #5370,906,000 6) AT E 4K &
A% Fl 2 e 5t A B4R AR
97,200,000 7T (20194F : A R ¥ &
JC) B GRUE GE B IH B E o R H AR
T P O A TE W A kAR A
I 137,165,000 JC (2019 4F © A R ¥
370,906,000 7T ) filf 33 4E 4E Bi JH & & -
AR TE R OBLIE 1R B it 2025
A E R R BN ) 137,165,000 0
(20194F + A R %#310,079,0005) » H
ftb B T s 45 0] 4 BR A &5 4 -

R R A B s A R
By A KA A R R IR BRI R
A1 =l =R ORIl
B N R 789,432,000 70 (2019 4F = A
R #1,082,292,000 56 ) » & A< 4 B
A BE Jy B W IR 2 R A IR
H 5% 45 2 FEAR AT e AE T 5L AR OR g
A CI O A R R (=

o

INVENTORIES 24. 1+ 8

2020 2019

2020 4 2019 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARWTIT

Raw materials M R 20,889 19,606
Work in progress 1E 8 i 8,658 11,481
Finished goods B 316,060 549,844
345,607 580,931
Allowance of inventories obsolescence [ e = R (] (8,794) (70,353)
336,813 510,578

Because of the change in the market conditions of the Group’s
products during the year, part of the inventories written down in
previous years were sold during 2020. As a result, allowance made
in prior years against the inventories of RMB2,019,000 (2019:
RMB21,689,000) from continuing operation was reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 AT 2

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE20204F 12 A 31 H 1L 4 ¥

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES 25. ¥ 5 WE Wk JH
The Group’s trading terms with other customers are mainly on AR FEELE R A EF
credit. The credit terms generally range from 30 to 90 days. Each FI 0L 3 5y MR AR o g B — IR A R 30
customer has a maximum credit limit. For new customers, payment BORAE -BNEFHAFEEL
in advance is normally required. The Group seeks to maintain MR B % F — Mk 5 282 A AT R e K
strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances £ [ Ty SR 3 L R i B0y E i R I
are reviewed regularly by the directors. The Group would also M R b B BE R o R M b B E
allow longer credit period for certain customers with long term iR o AMLE IR TR A TR ER
relationship. BMEREFRTERENESN-

2020 2019

2020 4 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT

Trade receivables B 5 e R TE 204,400 295,473
Provision for loss allowance I 48 Y i 0 8 A (1,613) (8,533)
202,787 286,940
The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the revenue e W £ FEFR BSR4 BR 8 A 1R 0
recognition date, and net of allowance, is as follows: B o W K TR At R
2020 2019
2020 4 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWTFLE AR¥FTT

0 to 60 days 02 60K 181,084 198,623
61 to 180 days 61 180K 20,483 54,133
181 days to 1 year 181 K £ 14F 805 4,203
Over 1 year 3 1A 415 29,981

202,787 286,940
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I/Z{TI/Jﬂ/) IhtM n|

For the year ended 31 December 2020
W E 20204 12 4 31 H 1L 4

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 25. B 5 BE Wk IH (4)
Reconciliation of loss allowance for trade receivables: B G JRE AT I Jis 8 A 0 AR
2020 2019
2020 4F 2019 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIL ARWETIT
At the beginning of year ) 8,533 21,978
Decrease in loss allowance for the year A A e 48 B A WD (5,515) (13,445)
Disposal of subsidiaries th 5 B JEg A W (1,405) -
At the end of year AER 1,613 8,533
The Group applies the simplified approach under IFRS 9 to provide A A ] RE R S B R RIS
for expected credit losses using the lifetime expected loss provision SEIER M 5 kT A E S L
for all trade receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, AKCTE S ) A 0 TE Wl R B ST B
trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk WMEEER - A2 EAGEEEE
characteristics and the days past due. The expected credit losses Z 5 M 3 T T AR 98 3L = 5 AR B
also incorporate forward looking information. TR R R MO e TH S B
IS 0 R
Neither Over
past due 1 days to Over
nor 1 year 1 years
impaired past due past due Total
W@ ) JE IR g
75 I R A E1HE @B1EF 5t
At 31 December 2020 JA20204F 12 431 H
Weighted average expected Jin KE T 35 TE 0 S 4R %
loss rate 1% 1% 78 % 1%
Receivable amount (RMB’000)  MEW & # (A R ¥ Tor) 178,173 25,815 412 204,400
Loss allowance (RMB’000) s IR A (A R T oe) 917 374 322 1,613
At 31 December 2019 JA20194F 12 431 H
Weighted average expected Jin KE T 35 TE 0 S 4R %
loss rate 2% 4% 6% 3%
Receivable amount (RMB’000)  FE Uk & %6 (A B ¥ F o) 199,423 64,612 31,438 295,473
Loss allowance (RMB’000) s IR A (A R T oe) 4,319 2,323 1,891 8,533
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
P55 ik 2R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE20204F 12 A 31 H 1L 4 ¥

gee A

MRE

26. OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS 26. H {tb B W 3% ¥8 K% 78 £ 3%

2020 2019
2020 4F 2019 4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR¥TIE AR¥ETL
Non-current assets I W B A

Long-term deposits 1= W e 4 15,964 21,869
Prepayments AT 3 3,268 -

Trade Debts due from JRE Wie — [ i B A W)

a former subsidiary W) & S I U iR K (i) 156,899 -
Prepayments for acquisition of W5 TR RE 1 TE A

intangible assets e - 6,651

176,131 28,520
Current assets B oE
Prepayments T AT 8,585 4,776
Trade Debts due from JRE Wie — [ i B A W)

a former subsidiary W) & S I Ui R K (i) 181,200 -
Value-added tax receivable JE Wi 248 (B 28,823 7,430
Interest receivables JE Wi A B 25 8,008
Refund of deposits for BEEE AN

acquisition of & & # e - 50,000
Others HoAt 9,372 14,778
Total HEr 228,005 84,992

Total ot 404,136 113,512
Notes: Bt 5%
(i) On 18 June 2020, the Group entered into an obligations and debts (i) 202046 H 18 H > A 4 [ Bl 4 4

framework agreement (“Obligations and Debts Framework Agreement”)
with Mayflower (Nanjing) Enterprise Limited (“Nanjing Mayflower”), a

former subsidiary of the Group.

il B 4 ®) 5% T #E A 3 (0 A IR
25 ) ([P At 9% e 22 ]) W7 S — U A A5

5 AHE 2 h e (T4 i B HE 22 T kD) -

T B B B AT IR A R
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A A R T

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#ZE20204F 127 31 A Ak 4R &

26. OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

On 31 July 2020, the Group disposed 100% equity interest in Nanjing Mayflower
(note 38). Nanjing Mayflower owed various members of the Group the trade debts
(“Trade Debts”), being certain intra-group debts which had arisen in the ordinary
course of business over the years.

Pursuant to the Obligations and Debts Framework Agreement, Nanjing Mayflower
shall settle the Trade Debts during the two years from 31 May 2020 (“the Trade
Debts Settlement Period”).

As at 31 December 2020, the Trade Debts will be settled during the Trade Debts
Settlement Period in the following manner:

(a) Nanjing Mayflower delivered all of its inventories (the “Inventories”) at
31 July 2020 to the Group. The Group sell these Inventories on behalf of
the Nanjing Mayflower to offset part of the Trade Debts against the net
sale proceeds;

(b) Nanjing Mayflower would lease certain of its immovable property to the
Group to offset part of the Trade Debts with the rents payable;

(c) Should the Trade Debts not being fully settled in the above manner within
the two-year period, the Nanjing Mayflower shall pay a sum equivalent to
the remaining Trade Debts to the Group upon the expiry of the two-year
period.

As at 31 December 2020, the Trade Debts due from the Nanjing Mayflower with
carrying amount of RMB338,099,000 are secured by the Nanjing Mayflower’s
inventories as collateral with a carrying amount of RMB144,823,000.
Further, other collaterals included land use rights and building at fair value of
approximately RMB170,710,000 in total as determined by an international real
estate valuation firm.
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26. F i FE W sk JH K T AF K
)

(%

l}ﬁu£3(§§)

202047 H31H » A 4 B & R o &
JE # 19100% M HE (BF 5E38) - B4 5T % BB #E X
fTAEMEZRRABARE S EH(ESE
Bl o M ZERTE HHEHEB P EEMN
# TN R

A5 G5 HE A5 B AE 40 10 6 o T ot 3% T HE ZE R
H 202045 H 31 H & 5+ /1 4F (T 5 & 5 5 3
WD) R v 1 5 S e

R20204F 12 A31H - & 5 &I ik E 5 &
A R R R R o 2R

(a) P4 a3 B HE 32 AT R 202047 A 31 H
AT (TR FAEE - A%
MR EEELESSEEE
DLGY & BT A3 S R IR B A B
s

(b) PO EREHE g AR A A TR
C R DN SR o I = 7 R
W

(c) A S A8 TR AR RE DL | At Oy
WO R S B m ot O RE TR
R NER LA L O
N H 5 E B 2 RO -

2020412 H31H - R O OB AN R W
338,099,000 JC ) HE Ik 7 5 3 B 9E B 5 i
DL o 35 EE AR A A R K 144,823,000
B[ E N = (1 L R A N S o [ 1 LR R O 1
K8 — 8 R Hb EE A A RS E A AR A
FH# AR 170,710,000 7C /9 1 db A RE DA
)E =



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SR IS B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
# 20204 1271 31 A 1R 4F )%

27. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 27. ## A A At AHE K 0 £

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS Al &
2020 2019
2020 4 2019 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWTFLE AR¥FTT

Unlisted wealth investment product I b T B B E - 65,300

28. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK 28. & it ## #® 17 7 &% K& s 17

BALANCES AND CASH Gtk kB2

As at 31 December 2020, the bank and cash balances of the Group A20204E12 A31H > AEEM AR

denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to RMB466,535,000 e (TN B M) (B A9 SR AT I B & 4%

(2019: RMB319,901,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign it £ N R ¥ 466,535,000 TG (2019 4F

currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control A R 319,901,000 C) - A R ¥ 58 46

Regulations. T AN ZEUE SF b B A RE A AN B o

As at 31 December 2019, bills payables of RMB20,000,000 are 2019 12 H31H - AT Z 8 AR 175
secured by bank deposits of RMB20,000,000 (note 29). # 20,000,000 7C LA #] 47 FF K A R

20,000,000 JG 1E % ## (Bt 55 29) -

29. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 29. 8 5 WA a3k JEH I BE A R
%
2020 2019
2020 4¢ 2019 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWTFLE ARWFTT

Trade payables B G e AT #OH 183,344 107,206
Bills payables JIE A 5 % - 20,000
183,344 127,206

THERBERARAR  —F REEERSE
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A A R T

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#ZE20204F 127 31 A Ak 4R &

29. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

29. © 5 WA}

X H K FE fF &

(CONTINUED) % (#)
The aging analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice date, is 455 5 B 55 B AT 3 I R i
as follows: AR e
2020 2019
2020 ¢ 2019 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FILX ARWETIT
0 to 90 days 0% 90K 171,079 104,329
91 to 180 days 91 £ 180K 8,355 1,987
181 days to 1 year 181 K £ 14F 2,784 677
Over 1 year 1A 1,126 213
183,344 107,206

As at 31 December 2019, bills payables of RMB20,000,000 are
secured by bank deposits of RMB20,000,000 (note 28).

30. OTHER PAYABLES

R2019412 A31H > A ZH AR
# 20,000,000 75 LA 8B 17 £ A R
20,000,000 JG 1E % # (55 28) -

30. H fib B £F 3k JE

2020 2019

2020 £ 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FL AREFI

Accruals = @ 65,543 65,258

Accrued payroll JE ST ¥ & 34,344 24,442

Other tax liabilities FoAt B H & 6T 1,121 9,031

Security deposits from wholesale customers 3% PR & 8,325 7,967
Payables for acquisition of property, Wi W S B g SRR A TE A

plant and equipment IE 21,626 -

Others HoAtr 17,166 25,534

148,125 132,232

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SRA AR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE20204F 12 A 31 H 1L 4 ¥

SRR
e 35 A B

31. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Disclosures of revenue-related items:

As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 1 January
2020 2019 2019
it 2020 4 2019 4 ix 2019 4F
1273 31H 12H31H 1H1H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBEFIL AR¥FFILC AR¥TIL
Contract liabilities G # A
— customer loyalty programme — % F R # 13,070 17,397 25,956
Contract liabilities G H A
— franchise agreements — B R 671 1,613 10,932
Contract liabilities G H A
— advance from customers —TE U & PR K 7,765 7,922 8,358
Total contract liabilities G & A EARE 21,506 26,932 45,246
Contract receivables A # R i R OE 177
(included in trade receivables) (FF A& ) JE fr 3k 18) 202,787 286,940 301,487
Transaction prices allocated to performance obligations unsatisfied PAERDIHEERBITHEL SEH

at end of year and expected to be recognised as revenue in:

58 5y M8 B W R R B4R 5 e RS A i

5
2020 2019
2020 4 2019 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TIL AR¥TFIT
—2020 — 20204 - 26,261
-2021 —20214F 21,777 942
—2022 —20224F 942 942
-2023 — 2023 4F 942 -
23,661 28,145

T R B B T A BR A )



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 AR 2 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#ZE20204F 127 31 A Ak 4R &

31. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 31. § #1 & & (/)

Year ended 31 December WEI2HA3HIEFE
2020 2019
2020 4 2019 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWTLE ARWFTT

Revenue recognised in the year AR A A AR AR N
that was included in contract liabilities G
at beginning of year 24,823 37,375
Significant changes in contract liabilities during the year: AERNGHEAEWNE RS :
2020 2019
Contract Contract
liabilities liabilities
20204E A M 2019 A #
£ 1% A1
178 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWFLE ARWFTT
Increase due to operations in the year AF TN H A 8 R B 173,789 323,403
Transfer of contract liabilities to revenue [ IR =R (179,215) (341,641)
A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer SR B EREAE MR R A E
products or services to a customer for which the Group has (3% 3 1 A8 200 [ & F R E R
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from R Y T

the customer.
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32. LEASE LIABILITIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 AT 2

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE20204F 12 A 31 H 1L 4 ¥

32. & & fE

Lease payments Present value of lease payments
L8 £ 3% L8 Ak 2 BLAH
2020 2019 2020 2019
2020 4 20194 2020 4 20194F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWFE ARFFT ARBETLZ ARKETE
Within one year — IR 23,363 41,662 22,812 40,645
In the second to fifth years, inclusive BB AEEEE RWA) 44,812 70,759 39,401 63,433
After five years HAER 14,093 30,999 9,761 20,454
82,268 143,420 71,974 124,532
Less: Future finance charges o R ARG X (10,294) (18,888)
Present value of lease liabilities MEABZBE 71,974 124,532
Less: Amount due for settlement within 3 : B 1210 H W E| 45 E 2
12 months (shown under current TIE (1 B £
liabilities) ET) (22,812) (40,645)
Amount due for settlement W12 A BB B E R 2 3O
after 12 months 49,162 83,887

At 31 December 2020, the average effective borrowing rate was
4.35% to 4.90% (2019: 4.35% to 4.90%). Interest rates are fixed at
the contract dates and thus expose the Group to fair value interest

rate risk.

2020412 A 31 0 > F 35 B B 15 &
B Z £ 4.35% % 4.90% (2019 4F : 4.35%
£4.90%) > M T A A H B EE K&

8] I 4> A 4R T R 52 2 Fo i A 5 Al B o

T R B B T A BR A )

R
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S5 AR 2 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020
W E 20204 12 4 31 H 1L 4

33. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the PRC government, the
PRC subsidiaries have participated in a central pension scheme (the
“Scheme”) operated by local municipal government whereby the
PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute 18% of basic salaries of
the employees to the Scheme to fund their retirement benefits. The
local municipal government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of all existing and future retired employees of
the PRC subsidiaries. The only obligation of the PRC subsidiaries
with respect to the Scheme is to pay the ongoing required
contributions under the Scheme mentioned above. Contributions

under the Scheme are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

During the reporting period, the total amounts contributed by the
Group to the Scheme and the Auto-enrolment which were charged
to profit or loss representing contribution payable to the Scheme
and auto-enrolment by the Group at rates specified in the rules of

the Scheme are as follows:

BRHREAKBEFZIBAM

A &t

R T BB B A B A R P R
Ji§ 2> W 20 e H T B A AR Y
SRR & F B TRzt #)) > 0t
w2 E 2R IR B R AR T
18% 3 T 3% wt &1 > DL &y HOR K 4R
IR o Rl S
Jiv A H R R 2 R B A R OR AROB
I8 B 2R IR A8 A AT o o K
2N A R R E — AR A R AT
bl ) JH R B R e AR B AR
IR (iR R b =R ol T
s o

T T A AR e Rt # K
WA SR ARG TR A DB
WO 4B R AR A AR T % w #) A
9 LE < 8 AF 5% w80 AY 3 % B B B
RO B W

2020 2019
2020 4E 2019 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWTFLE AR¥ETT

Amount contributed and HE K I A I8 25 30 BR 1 4 A

charged to profit or loss

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, there was no

outstanding contributions payable to the Scheme.
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S5 AT 2

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE20204F 12 A 31 H 1L 4 ¥

34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. A&
Number
of shares Amount
Ji oy 8 H o
USD’000
T
Ordinary shares of USD0.015 each Ji T {E0.015 3 7T 2 % 8 )
Authorised: W
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019, 20191 H1H ~ 2019412 A 31
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 H 202041 A 1 H %&20204 12
H31H 20,000,000,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: AT M 4R -
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019, 201941 A 1 H ~ 2019412 A 31
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 H 202041 A 1H K&20204F 12
H31H 2,077,000,000 31,155
Amount
&
RMB’000
AR FoT
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019, JR20194E1 H1H ~ 2019412 A
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 31 H 202041 H 1H %2020
F12H31H 209,097
During the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company B 220204 M 20194F 12 H31 H IE 4F
did not repurchase any shares through the Hong Kong Stock JE > 7R s ) Sl A A A A Uk 2 T
Exchange. [l AF: f] i A5 ©

THEMBERARAT % R RS
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Aoy B R R I

For the year ended 31 December 2020
W E 20204 12 4 31 H 1L 4

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 35. A 2 &) B % Ik 3 % K&

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 5
2020 2019
2020 4 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TIE AR¥ETL
Non-current assets I W B H A
Investment in subsidiaries g A F 2 A 105,992 540,038
Property, plant and equipment Y ERE & ] 1 1
Other intangible asset HoAth 8 2 K & 7,056 8,488
113,049 548,527
Current assets B &
Other receivables and prepayments At JRE i 3K TE B T AT K 330 579
Amount due from subsidiaries JRE Wi B B 2 ) Kk IE 96,340 98,735
Bank balances and cash SRAT &5 B KBl & 20,874 5,011
117,544 104,325
Current liabilities B A
Other payables H At JBE A 3K TH 5,084 5,438
Amount due to subsidiaries JRE AF B/ 2N W] 3K JH 84,286 298,609
89,370 304,047
Net current assets/(liabilities) W' E (A ) 28,174 (199,722)
Net assets g Ruyi: 141,223 348,805
Capital and reserves & A K
Share capital it 209,097 209,097
Reserves 7t (67,874) 139,708
Total equity HARE R 141,223 348,805

202143 29 H 4% # = & it K
P2 HE ) 8% o

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29

March 2021.

Wu Weiming = PR A -3 4
Director Director #HH E=H

Yuan Zhenhua
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. RESERVES

(a)

Group

@

(i)

(iii)

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising from the
issue of shares at a price in excess of their par value
per share and is not distributable but may be applied in
paying up unissued shares of the Company to be issued
to the shareholders of the Company as fully paid bonus
shares or in providing for the premiums payable on

repurchase of shares.

Shares held under the share award scheme

Shares held under the share award scheme represents
the Company’s employee share trust purchases shares
from the market, the consideration paid, including any
directly attributable incremental costs is presented
as “Shares held under the share award scheme” and
presented as a deduction against equity attributable to
the Company’s equity holders. The details are set out

in Note 37.

(a)

o BB TR B

For the year ended 31 December 2020

36. fifi

B A 20204F 12 A 31 H 1E4F

A4

(i)

(i)

(iif)

THERBERARAR —F %

YV EX T EY OE
50 2 90 R A 4 A R
oMl 2 e 3% R R A A
i 35 5 By % -

i oy ¥ 1

e 3 it 7 45 1% 1 i
e T A 2 fE A EE AT A
I A i = R I N
gy IR - e AT AR N
AT T AL A R AE
OO e AL A R 1
ZA ey E R AT I 2
e Bk > BOM R R 4R I
B 3 AT i AR

HEBE B oy 5% G 38 A
i e By

MR O 58 W 5 B B A
O Vo el /AT I T =
1515 FE A T 35 1 B A
HIE A AE (L4 A T &
e ME AL 9B 1A 81 A
[R5 B 0y 5% B & & 55 A
B B 3 B B A AR 24 ) R
i FF AN HE G HE 4R 2 40
W o W R M RE3T o
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SR AR 2 B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
W E 20204 12 4 31 H 1L 4

36. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(a) Group (continued)

(iv)

PRC statutory reserve

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC applicable to foreign investment enterprises and
the Articles of Association of the PRC subsidiaries, the
PRC subsidiaries are required to maintain a statutory
surplus reserve fund. Appropriations to this fund are
made out of net profit after taxation as reported in the
PRC statutory financial statements of the subsidiaries

(the “PRC Accounting Profit”).

Dongguan Mayflower, Nanjing Soft, Jiangsu Mega
Shoes Co., Ltd are required to transfer 10% of their
PRC Accounting Profit to the statutory surplus
reserve fund in each profit making year until the
balances reach 50% of the registered capital of each
of the Company respectively. The statutory surplus
reserve fund may be used to make up prior year losses
incurred and, with approval from relevant government

authority, to increase capital.

Xuzhou C.banner is not required to maintain this
statutory surplus reserve fund according to the
relevant laws and regulations in the PRC applicable to
Sino-foreign joint investment enterprises. However,
as at 31 December 2018, the directors of Xuzhou
C.banner approved on a discretionary basis to transfer
the maximum amount of RMB9,465,000 to the
statutory surplus reserve fund as the statutory reserve

fund balance reach 50% of the registered capital.
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36. fifi i (#)
7% 45 H (%)

(a)

(iv)

o B ;A Gl

i A R R <
TR A Bk RE R
DL K b i g o W) 2 Al
A e R AW A b BB R
2 FlH HE B TR E BB
i 2 e A b BB
F W E MBS R PR )
Bl A& AR g g
it A1) b R AR
153K o

MO R RS R
# IR T A 2
WREHEEAGRA R ARG
8 & B AR N b B g
FF O AR 10% 1 5 E K
ERBMMHmERE HE
ol = /N s o
EARN50% o ik E B K
i 5 4 0T g 1E W &
AWl R B
A B BT B T
BomE A -

R4 B A A A %
TR B RO
RN T A A ZE A RE
HEE RSN EE-
SR 2018412 H 31
H o 1 R i & il 2k &
i FFZE G B A 19 50% -
WO T O E R
MRS S AR
9,465,000 70 % ¥ E & 8
fith 85 3% 4 o
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36. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

ey BT R I

For the year ended 31 December 2020

B A 20204F 12 A 31 H 1E4F

36. fili 5 (%)

Group (continued) (a) A4 H (%)
(v) Equity investment revaluation reserve v) A B E B AL
The equity investment revaluation reserve comprises W A % & AN kA 6
the cumulative net change in the fair value of equity PSR e G I U S £ /N
investments at fair value through other comprehensive B 7 A H Ath A T Ik 55 19
income held at the end of the reporting period and is B A #E A R
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy in whSE B I R 00 AR R 4
Note 3 to consolidated the financial statements. & EH R R W RE3 ) & s
B 5 R B
(vi) Translation reserve (vi) ¥k
The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange A R T S
differences arising from the translation of the financial AN 36 B BB R 3R T =
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt A WE L ZE K A B R
with in accordance with the accounting policies set out HCR B & A R R R
in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements. Mt 513 BT H 2 B 5 BUR R
B o
Company (b)) A&
Shares held Share-
under the based
Share  shareaward  compensation  Accumulated
Premium scheme reserve  profits/(losses) Total
RER G LR B 2
Rt 8l BRf RaEA/
Rl HHRRR Bt (i ) @it
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000
AREFL  AREFL  ARFFL  ARKFfL  ARKFFZ
At 1 January 2019 20194 1 7 1 H 646,042 (40,483) - (378,393) 227,166
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year  4F 1% 5 48 J & 1 B ¢ 8 4 - - - (87.458) (87458)
At31 December 2019 and at | January 2020 R019%E 121310 &
00F1A1H 646,042 (40,483) - (465.851) 139,708
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year 4 (3 B 18 Jt 2 i [ ¢ 41 & - - - (10,112) (210,112)
Equity-settled share award scheme DU 45 45 50 0 e 0 o2 B ot 81 - - 2,530 - 2,530
Transfer of awarded shares reserve upon vesting FEFEELBRNHE - 34,653 (2,530) (32,123 -
At 31 December 2020 120204 12131 H 646,042 (5,830) - (708,086) (67,874)

T R B B T A BR A )

R it
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R A R A

For the year ended 31 December 2020
W E 20204 12 4 31 H 1L 4

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Pursuant to written resolution passed on 26 August 2011, the
Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Hongguo Hong
Kong Share Option Scheme”), details of which are set out in
“Report of the Directors — Share Option Scheme” to the annual
report. No share option has been granted under the Hongguo Hong

Kong Share Option Scheme since its adoption.

On 31 August 2015, the Company adopted a share award scheme
(the “Share Award Scheme”) under which shares of the Company
may be awarded to selected employees (including executive
directors) of the Group (the “Selected Employees”) pursuant to
the terms of the scheme rules and trust deed of the Share Award
Scheme. The Share Award Scheme became effective on the
adoption date and, unless otherwise terminated or amended, will
remain in force for a term of 10 years commencing on the adoption

date.

The Board shall not make any further award of awarded shares
which will result in the nominal value of the Shares awarded by the
Board under the Share Award Scheme exceeding 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time. The maximum
number of the Awarded Shares which may be awarded to a selected
employee shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the

Company from time to time.

When a Selected Employee has satisfied all vesting conditions,
which might include service and/or performance conditions
specified by the board of directors of the Company at the time
of making the award and become entitled to the shares of the
Company forming the subject of the award, the trustee shall
transfer the relevant awarded shares to that employee at no
consideration. The Selected Employee however is not entitled to
receive any income or distribution, such as dividend derived from

the unvested Awarded Shares allocated to him/her.
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HPE 2011458 H26 H 4 # 1 & 1a
Pek %o AR A R AN — TH OB S
BTG B A s R ST B )) o HRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Movement of the Company’s shares held by the trustee under the

Share Award Scheme during the year is as follows:

A AR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
# 20204 1271 31 A 1R 4F )%

37. VLB O 2 B B A S A (4)
B FE NI 4 AR R A 5 58 D 7t 0 T
B 2 7 I O 10 5 B 40 F

Number of shares
it % H
Held by Held by
the trustee yet the trustee Total held

to be awarded  for the grantee by the trustee
W A 8 T 1 H ZAt A ZitA
ZR AR KRB i 5 48 8

At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 and
1 January 2020
Granted to grantees during the year

Transfer to grantee upon vesting

At 31 December 2020

R2019F1A1H Y 20194E 1231 H

J2020% 111
FRETREA
i I TR

#20204E 12 431 H

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no ordinary shares were

acquired by trustee (2019: Nil).

15,874,000 - 15,874,000
(13,588,000) 13,588,000 -
- (13,588,000) (13,588,000)

2,286,000 - 2,286,000

B 2020412 H31 B IE 4F > A%
e 7 56 N ME A B (20194F ¢ 4IE) o

THERBERARAR  —F REEERSE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
W E 20204 12 4 31 H 1L 4
37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company granted
13,588,000 ordinary shares of USDO0.015 each to Selected

Employees, details are set out below.

37. VAt 7 2 B 0 32 AF (4)

A B 20204E 12 H 31 H Ok 4R s A
75\ 4% 13,588,000 % 4 I 1 {E0.015
FEorm AR THERE B RN R
BT 3 e

Number of awarded shares

BRRHHA
Asat 1 January
019, 31
Number of December 2019
awarded shares and 1 Janvary  Granted during ~ Vested during the  Outstanding as at
Date of grant granted Fairvalue ~ Vesting period 020 the year year 31 December 2020
REALR
W19%
2ARR 9K
fHR 0% 1A3H
giny %A Il BEH 1A1H ERg ERERE WAL
RVB000
ARH T
28 April 2020 04/ 281 109,000 5 23 days Bk - 109,000 (109,000) -
17 July 2020 WNETAITH 55,000 § 25 days JAU - 55,000 (55,000 -
30November 2020 2000411 /130 13424000 2507 18 days 1% - 13424000 (13424000 -

13,588,000 253

The closing price of the Company’s shares on 28 April 2020, the
date of grant of the awarded shares, was HK$0.15 (equivalent to
approximately RMBO0.14). The Group recognised a total expense
of RMB15,000 in relation to share award granted by the Company

during the year.

The closing price of the Company’s shares on 17 July 2020, the
date of grant of the awarded shares, was HK$0.17 (equivalent to
approximately RMBO0.15). The Group recognised a total expense
of RMBS,000 in relation to share award granted by the Company

during the year.

The closing price of the Company’s shares on 30 November 2020,
the date of grant of the awarded shares, was HK$0.22 (equivalent
to approximately RMBO.19). The Group recognised a total expense
of RMB2,507,000 in relation to share award granted by the

Company during the year.
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- 13,388,000 (13,588,000) -

A% @AY iR 20204F4 A 28 H (12 i
A% ) A B 2l i 4 0.15 W T
(R 45 A 40 N RE0.1400) = R 15 > A
AR Tk AR o T B L BE D % 0 B R AR
BH 32 A\ R #15,000 7T ©

A% @AY iR 20204E7 A 17 H (32
A2 W) A B 2l i 4 0.17 W T
(R 45 A 40 N RE0.1500) = E 1 > A
AR Tk AR > W) B BE D % 0 B R AR
BH 32 A\ IR 8,000 7C ©

AN ) A R 2020411 H30 H A (3%
8% B I B ) ZLI&FITEZ%O.ZN%

JC (MR N R ¥0.1970)  F N >
N SR NN e O
B 32 N R 2,507,000 TG e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 18 June 2020, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Huaxin Ventures Limited to dispose 100% equity
interest of Allied Great International Holdings Limited (the “AG
Disposal”) at a consideration of RMBS5,000,000.

The AG Disposal was completed on 31 July 2020. Upon completion
of the AG Disposal, Allied Great International Holdings Limited
ceased to be subsidiaries of the Company and their results, assets
and liabilities and cash flows ceased to be consolidated to that of
the Group since then. A gain on disposal of RMB23,546,000 was

recognised upon the completion, being calculated as follows:

G A BB MR 7

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE20204F 12 A 31 H 1L 4 ¥

38. i 5 K & 2 ¥

202046 A 18 H » A% 4 ] i 3 2 £l
i el /N A IVAS= i T DR A 1
A B #5,000,000 76 H 8 E B B B4
B AT BR 2> A9 100% M HE (7 2% 1 8
FIH] -

M 5% B R JH O R 20204E7 A 31 H
56 0 o I B R O 5T R ARl
BBR AR AR A A A H &AL AW
Bt 2\ H A R KA R R
B4 a3 MR T4 A R AR R
B o MR B U 2R A R 523,546,000 70
EA o8 I HERE > HFH Ay kR

T 3 B P P T AT R

RMB’000
AR ¥ Tz
Net liabilities at the date of disposal were as follows: RHEHYAFEANT
Property, plant and equipment ERE S ] 103,002
Right-of-use assets i W & 13,247
Other intangible assets HAth 4 & E 1,784
Deferred tax assets Gk B VE & 31,751
Long-term deposits and prepayments 15 9 4 4 K TE AT 4,724
Inventories ety 206,600
Trade receivables & 5y e U TR 20,573
Other receivables and prepayments Al R i BT B LA K 99,779
Bank balances and cash SRAT &5 R KB 4 5,561
Trade payables 2078 ZNE- Q| (860)
Other payables H At JBE A 3K TH (14,289)
Lease liabilities fHEAE (770)
Trade Debts due to the Group JE AT A 42 18 & 5 A8 5 (505,030)
(33,928)
Direct cost to the disposal B RAR 1,699
Loss on initial recognition of long-term Trade Debts ) 06 R RO B 5 6 2 48 13,683
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries e o 5 /N Rl 23,546
Total consideration — satisfied by cash MARE-DHE LM 5,000
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: MEEENB &N HH:

Cash consideration received e e By B4 A0 5,000
Cash paid for direct cost VB & BT 2 H R A (1,699)
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of CHEZHE RIESEY (5,561)
(2,260)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
W E 20204 12 4 31 H 1L 4

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Acquisition of partial interest in a subsidiary
On 17 January 2020, Best Invent Holdings Limited (“Best
Invent”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
Fortune Title Holdings Limited, Empire Sky Holdings
Limited, Goldrun Holdings Limited, Cowinner Limited, Gold
Title Limited, Skill Plus Holdings Limited and Well Prosper
Holdings Limited (collectively the “Sellers”), entered into a
sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Sellers
conditionally agreed to sell, and Best Invent conditionally
agreed to purchase 28% of the issued share capital of
Mega Brilliant International Limited, a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (the “Target Company”), for a
total cash consideration of approximately RMB59,717,000.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company indirectly holds 79%
of the issued share capital of the Target Company. The effect
of change in the ownership interests of the Target Company
on the equity attributable to owners of the Company during

the year ended 31 December 2020 were summarised as

. WA Bl & i R R GE

(a)

k=1l

W i — [ BRF B 2 W) B O 43 HE 2R
# 202041 A 17 H > Best Invent
Holdings Limited ([ Best Invent])
(A 2%\ BY 2 8 W o W) B
Fortune Title Holdings Limited ~
Empire Sky Holdings Limited ~
Goldrun Holdings Limited *
Cowinner Limited * Gold Title
Limited ~ Skill Plus Holdings
Limited & Well Prosper Holdings
Limited (% #§ 74 [ 5 77 1) & 52
B ko PRI E A AR
> K Best Invent fi & £
A E R B A R A
/NI DI S o - o () /A )
TEEAWD T #ETKRAMN
28% > B ENREHHARE
59,717,000 JT °

Ailéﬂlﬁ

R2020412 H31 H > A A #] [
mRHABEELA D BT RA
Z79% o B FE 4w B A M 5
2 s ¥ E20204E12 A 31 H
Ik AR B AR A A MR ON RE fL AR

follows: M 2 BT

2020

2020 4

RMB’000

AR ¥ Tx

Decrease in non-controlling interest I I HE 45 B D 39,158
Consideration paid B AR E (59,717)
Movement in equity BE % 5% B (20,559)
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39. NOTES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
WABS i = Bt 5t

For the year ended 31 December 2020
# 20204 1271 31 A 1R 4F )%

B A Bl TR R MR ()

TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(o)

Major non-cash transaction

During the year, Nanjing Mayflower lease certain of its

immovable property to the Group and offset part of the Trade
Debts of approximately RMB55,452,000.

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

The following table shows the Group’s changes in liabilities

A

wRa

b)) FHEHIEHERS

AR R KB KR T
AEyE AT A S SR
A B o OB AN R

55,452,000 7T °

(c0 MEWHELEMAMED

TR IR A BN

arising from financing activities during the year: BpTE AN A RS
Obligations
Lease under finance
liabilities Borrowings leases Total
iRegiiN
a1 fii & HTHE At
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
AREFLT ARBEFL ARBFEFIL ARFFX
At 1 January 2019 201941 11 H - 277,941 5,983 283,924
Changes in cash flows B4 i 2 ) (76,888) (277,520 - (354,408)
Interest paid E A& - (14,284) - (14,284)
Non-cash changes HBEEE
~IFRS 16 adjustments — I 8 B o A
H 55 16 5% 8 927,506 - (5,983) 921,523
— modification of lease -MHEB®K 19,490 - - 19,490
— additions of lease ~-HERE 10,136 - - 10,136
— interest charged -CAAE 26,412 14,284 - 40,696
— disposal of subsidiaries — ¢ I 2 (783,686) - - (783,686)
- exchange differences —IE 5% %% 1,562 (421) - 1,141
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 J#20194£12 H31 H K&
202041 A 1H 124,532 - - 124,532
Changes in cash flows B4 i ) (17,736) - - (17,736)
Non-cash changes F B a5 E)
— offset of Trade Debts —IKSH 5 H B (39,709) - - (39,709)
— modification of lease —THE BN (59,893) - - (59,893)
— additions of lease -HERE 60,276 - - 60,276
— interest charged —BfF A 5,274 - - 5,274
— disposal of subsidiaries — 5 B A (770) - - (770)
At 31 December 2020 20204 12 4 31 71,974 - - 71,974

T B AT B )
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o PR TR B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#ZE20204F 127 31 A Ak 4R &

40. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

40. & A & ¥

The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

AR TR B OR B ARSI T

2020 2019
2020 4 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥FrL AR¥TIT
Property, plant and equipment VESE F & ]
Contracted but not provided for RACAIEOR (E R B 67,510 -
Intangible assets TP B
Contracted but not provided for SHAEOR G R X ] - 8,192
67,510 8,192
41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 41. BRI W5 A 5
(i) Related party transactions i BBTRES

During the year, in addition to those disclosed elsewhere

in the consolidated financial statements, the Group had the

following related party transactions:

R A 4 RS R A
VT T SEE T Py
5

Relationship with related parties Nature of transactions 2020 2019
LB W 5 B AR 251’ 2020 4 2019 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWFLE ARWETT
An associate Purchase of goods 4,564 13,308
— M A == g
A joint venture Purchase of goods 381 2,856
— M A E AT W EE W
Providing management services 185 2,730
12 A R B
A related company, in which certain Rental expense
directors of the Company
have controlling interest 1,120 1,120
— M BB AR AN F s TESER HEMXZ
o A R RE i
(i) Compensation of key management personnel () FEEHANBFHM

The remuneration of directors, who are also the key

management, are disclosed in Note 13.
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42. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 are as

follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 AT 2

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE20204F 12 A 31 H 1L 4 ¥

42. 7 B g A B #EE
2020412 A 31 H KB 2 & /Y R

mr
Place/Country of
incorporation/
establishment Attributable equity interest

Name of subsidiary and operations of the Company Principal activities
Ak A3 R B
B e 2 i) 45 B R A% 4 i) HE Al It A BE g3 FEEH
2020 2019
2020 4 2019 4F
Held directly by the Company:
AR HERA
Best Invent Holdings Limited The BVI 100% 100%  Investment holding
BREE LIRS fEE R
Best Value Profits Limited The BVI 100% 100%  Investment holding
by Y ae i RE R
China Ease Enterprise Limited Hong Kong 100% 100%  Investment holding and sale of
branded fashion footwear
EHAEARALA 7 G PR I T 8 WS 0 TR
Toy Kingdom Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong 100% 100%  Investment holding
7 i RERR
Held by subsidiaries of the Company:
A W A A
Dongguan Mayflower Footwear Corporation ~ The PRC 100% 100%  Contract manufacture and sale of
Limited (“Dongguan Mayflower”) (Note i) branded fashion footwear
WEFRBEEEARAARELREE) TR AR E JOB A ER
(W aED)
Nanjing Soft Garment & Footwear Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC 100% 100% Manufacture and sale of branded
(“Nanjing Soft”) (Note 1) fashion footwear and related
materials
T AT IR B R A E AR A W) el M B N R A
(1" 5 &5 MR ) (B 3E 1) B 0 R
Xuzhou C.banner Shoes Co., Ltd. The PRC 100% 100% Manufacture and sale of branded
(“Xuzhou C.banner”) (Note ii) fashion footwear and related
materials
M THEEEARAATRMNTEED TR M T B RO R R
(W atii) BH

THEMBERARAT % R RS
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o PR TR B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#ZE20204F 127 31 A Ak 4R &

42. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 42. Al B A vl o3& (48)

(CONTINUED)
Place/Country of
incorporation/
establishment Attributable equity interest
Name of subsidiary and operations of the Company Principal activities
ik W A3 B
g 2 =] 4 R SV E A ) I A It A B FEEH
2020 2019
2020 4 2019 4F
Held by subsidiaries of the Company: (continued)
AN HEEA : (F)
Mega Brilliant International Limited (Note iii) Hong Kong 79% 51%  Investment holding
% % BT TR A (B 3 i) 7 i RE R
Jiangsu Mega Shoes Co., Ltd (Note i) (Note iii) The PRC 79% 51% Manufacture and sale of branded
fashion footwear and related
materials
TLBE 5 2 B 8 R 70 (W RED) (M RLii) P He T O O T A
B 0 R
Xuzhou Mayflower Footwear Co., Ltd The PRC 100% 100% Manufacture and sale of branded
(“Xuzhou Mayflower”) (Note i) fashion footwear and related
materials
M EREREERRA A il e R R LI R T A
(TH M 32 BE 2 1) (W 2E i) B 0 R
Toy Kingdom Co., Ltd The PRC 100% 100%  Toys retailing
(“Toy Kingdom”)
S0 B B A R ] il nEZE
(IEwEH A
Toy Kingdom (Nanjing) Co., Ltd The PRC 100% 100%  Toys retailing
(“Toy Kingdom Najing”)
S v b BB 5 (M ) AR Gl BAEE
(TEwE Rl
Toy Kingdom (Xuzhou) Co., Ltd The PRC 100% 100%  Toys retailing
(“Toy Kingdom (Xuzhou)”)
S0 B BB g (M) R ) el GAEZE

(Tt D)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A AR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
# 20204 1271 31 A 1R 4F )%

42. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 42. Al B A vl o3& (48)

43.

44.

(CONTINUED)
Place/Country of
incorporation/
establishment Attributable equity interest
Name of subsidiary and operations of the Company Principal activities
b W kB K
it 18§ 2> W) 4 I 3 % B R A& 2y ) A it A BE FEEH
2020 2019
20204 20194
Held by subsidiaries of the Company: (continued)
AR HERA : (5)
Jiangsu Meisen Footwear Company Limited ~ The PRC 45% 45%  Manufacture and sale of branded
(“Jiangsu Meisen”) fashion footwear and related
materials
TLERE AR A RA A (LB &) ke HeE TS o LR B R A
B 4 B
Meihong Footwear Company Limited The PRC 100% 100%  Retail sale of branded fashion
(“Meihong”) (Note 1) footwear
FmEEHRAA el T W R R
(T 1) (W k)
Notes: B 5E
i. wholly-foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC i. A B R ST A R A 2
ii. sino-foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC ii. LT AL RS - E o
iii. acquisition of partial interest in a subsidiary during the year iii. AT N Wi — D B 2 ) T 43 RE 4

None of the Company’s subsidiaries had issued any debt securities

at the end of the year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING

PERIOD

43.

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, there was no other

significant events that might affect the Group since the end of the

year ended 31 December 2020.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44.

These consolidated financial statements were approved and

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2021.

A AR B R AR 2 Y MR A R
3 8 AT AT o] A B R %

e o 12

B AR 4E i i P 5E & Ah - B 22020
12 H 31 B Ik 4F B &5 R > F 48 0]
fie 5 A 4 [ Y Hofh Ok IE o

ik e 5% A B IR R

HEGAMBHET R E S G R
2021 4E3 A 29 H it v 3 52 # 7] %% -

THEMBERARAT % R RS
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Financial Summary

BB 9

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
2016 F 2017 4F 2018 4 2019 4F 2020 4
RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB’000
ANRWEFIL ARWEFIL ARFEFL AREFLC AR¥FI
Financial results B 4R
Revenue I £ 3,206,562 3,063,524 2,923,659 2,157,529 1,539,368
Net profit attributable to equity 7% 72 f] # # £F A A
holders of the Company JEE 1 46 A 206,253 20,492 (387,029) (311,480) 6,179
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
2016 4F 2017 4F 2018 4F 2019 4F 2020 4
RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB’000
ARWETIT ARWTIT ARWTIET ARWTET ARWFI
Balance sheet summary G A AT
Total assets B A 3,393,785 3,959,830 2,599,748 1,817,881 1,762,817
Total liabilities A A 1,318,242 1,873,437 925,274 417,611 435,539
Total equity HE 45 2,075,543 2,086,393 1,674,474 1,400,270 1,327,278
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